NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 21« Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’)  of
-L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED will be held on Friday, September 2, 2022, at
11:00 a.m. through VIDEC CONFERENCING {‘'VC')/OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS {‘'OAVIMI') to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2022, and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March

31, 2022, and the Report of the Auditors thereon.
2, To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mr.. R. Shankar Raman (DIN: 00019798), who retires by

rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

By order of the Board of Directors
For L&T Infrastructure Development Projectsdimited

-
(4
Date: August 8, 2022 Pradeepta Kumar Puhan
Place: Chennai Company Secretary
FCS-5138

Notes:

1. In view of continuing social distancing horms due to Covid-19, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA’), vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, and the latest being 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and other applicable
circulars issued in this regard, have allowed the companies to conduct AGMs through Video
Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“VC/ OAVM”) facility in accordance with the requirements
provided in MCA General Circular No. 20/2020. in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the said Circulars the 21st AGM of the Company shall be conducted
through VC/OAVM. The Members will be provided with a link to join the meeting through VC/OAVM.
The deemed venue for the 21st AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company i.e. Mount
Poonamallee Road, Manapakkam, Chennai — 600089.
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2. In terms of the MCA Circulars, since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with,
there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies
by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be availahle for the AGM. However, in pursuance
of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the Members may be appointed for the
purpose of voting and participation in the 21 AGM through VC/OAVYM Facility.

3. Attendance of the members participating in the 21¢ AGM through VC/ OAVM facility shall be counted
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send to the
Company a certified copy through e-mail at pkp@Iintidpl.com of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. For any queries related to the
AGM, you can write to the Company at the aforesaid e-mail ID.

5. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM in accordance with the MCA Circulars, the route map,
proxy form, and attendance slip are not attached to this Notice.

6. The facility for joining the meeting shall be kept open at least 15 minutes before the time scheduled
to start the meeting and shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after such scheduled time.

7. Members can also cast their vote by way of an email to the e-mail ID: pkp@intidpl.com.

8. A copy of the Notice and Annual Report for FY 2021-22 shall be displayed on the website of the

~ company i.e. https://portal.Intidpl.com.

9. The Annual Report along with Notice of the AGM is being sent through e-mail to the members and
to all other persons so entitled to receive the same under the Act.

10. Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the ensuing AGM of the Company are provided in
Annexure A to this Notice.

11. Documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the 21 AGM and the Explanatory Statement
shall be available at the Registered Office of the Company for inspection without any fee during
normal business hours (9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M.) on all working days, except Saturday, up to and
including the date of the 21* AGM of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors

For L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited

Date: August 8, 2022 Pradeepta Kumar Puhan
Place: Chennai Company Secretary

FC5-5138
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Annexure A

Jetails of the Directors seeking Re-Appointment in the forthcoming AGM

Name of Director

Mr. R. Shankar Raman

Jate of Birth

20.12.1958

Jationality

Indian

date of Appointment
m the Board

26.2.2001

Jualification

B. Com, CA, ICWA

Xperience

Mr. R. Shankar Raman is a qualified Chartered Accountant and a Cost
Accountant. Over the past 35 years, Mr. Shankar Raman has worked for

- leading listed corporates in varied capacities in the field of finance.

Mr. Shankar Raman joined L&T Group in November 1994 to set up L&T
Finance Limited, a wholly owned Subsidiary.

Over the years, Mr. Shankar Raman assumed responsibilities to oversee
the entire finance function at the Group level including functions like
Risk Management and Investor Relations. Mr. Shankar Raman was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer of Larsen & Toubro Limited in
September 2011 and subsequently elevated to the Board on October 1,
2011. Mr. Shankar Raman is also on the Board of Management of
several companies within the L&T Group.

Mr. Shankar Raman has been a recipient of several awards such as Best
CFO of Asia in the Industrial Sector in a survey conducted by the
prestigious New York based Institutional Investor Magazine, winner of
Best CFO Awards from CNBC TV18, Financial Express, Business Today
and Yes Bank.

Mr. Shankar Raman was the Chairman of the CII’s National Committee
of CFOs in 2017-18. He was also a member of Uday Kotak’s Committee
on Corporate Governance constituted by SEBI.

lirectorships in other
ompanies

1. Larsen & Toubro Limited

2. L&T Seawoods Limited

3. L&T Finance Holdings Limited

4. L&T Investment Management Limited
5. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited

6. L&T Metro Rail {Hyderabad) Limited
7. Mindtree Limited

9

. L&T Construction Equipment Limited
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L&I IDPL

Memberships/ Audit Committee:

Chairmanships of1.L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Committees across2.L&T Metro Rail Hyderabad Limited

all Companies 3.L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
4. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited

5. Mindtree Limited

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

1. L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
2. L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

1. L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

1. Larsen & Toubro Limited

2. L&T Seawoods Limited

3. L&T Investment Management Limited

4. L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
5. L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Shareholding in  the|Nil
Company

Relationship with Nil
Directors

L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 21 Report and Audited Accounts for the year
ended 315t March, 2022.

1. Financial Results / Financial Highlights Rs. in crore

' Particulars 2021-22

Profit / (Loss) before depreciation, exceptional

. 61.94

items & tax

Less: Depreciation & amortization 3.17

Profit / {Loss) before exceptional items and tax 58.77

Less: Exceptional Items 100.58

Profit / {Loss} before tax (41.81)

Less: Provision for tax 1.21

Profit/{Loss) for the year (43.02)

2. State of Company Affairs

The Total Income for the financial year under review were Rs. 128.27 crore, as against Rs. 107.93
crore for the previous financial year, registering an increase of 18.8%. The loss before tax from
continuing operations including extraordinary and exceptional items was Rs. (41.81) crore and the
loss after tax from continuing operations including extraordinary and exceptional items was Rs.
(43.02) crore for the financial year under review, as against Rs. (49.01) crore and Rs. {53.1) crore,
respectively, for the previous financial year, registering a decrease of 14.7 % and 19.0 %,
respectively.

COVID-19 Update

Some months of the period under review were impacted by COVID-19, causing disruption in traffic.
The Company also focused on supporting the health of its employees while maintaining minimal
disruption to its operations.

The Company implemented safety and hygiene protocols like wearing face masks, social distancing
norms, workplace sanitation and employee awareness programs across the organisation and
project sites. The protocols are regularly reviewed and updated based on revision in guidelines
received from concerned authorities from time to time.

L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited

Registered Office: 1% Floor, TCTC Building, Mount Poonamalles Road, Manapakkam, P.B. No. 979, Chennai - 60089, India.
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Capital & Finance:

The Company has not issued or allotted share capital during the year.

Non-convertible Debentures:

During the year, on April 27, 2021 the Company had redeemed 250 units 10.06% of
Non-convertible, redeemable, listed, secured Debentures of Rs.10 lakh each
aggregating to Rs.25 crore.

Further, the Company also re-purchased/bought back the following debentures:

a. On 15.9.2021, 2500 units of 8.6% Non-Convertible, redeemable, listed, unsecured
Debentures of Rs.10 lakhs each aggregating to Rs. 250 crore.

b. On 30.9.2021, 150 units of 10.06% Non-Convertible, redeemable, listed, secured
Debentures of Rs.10 lakhs each aggregating to Rs. 15 crore.

c. On 30.11.2021, 150 units of 10.06% Non-Convertible, redeemable, listed, secured
Debentures of Rs.10 lakhs each aggregating to Rs. 15 crore.

All debentures that were issued/allotted were redeemed/re-purchased/bought back
in full. As on March 31, 2022, the Company has no outstanding debentures.
Furthermore, no public funds are accessed by the Company as on March 31, 2022.

Capital Expenditure:

As at March 31, 2022, the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased assets,
stood at Rs. 18.64 crore and the net fixed and intangible assets, including leased
assets, at Rs. 12.66 crore. Capital Expenditure during the year amounted to Rs. 2.99
crore.

Status as Core Investment Company:

The Company received a certificate of registration dated January 12, 2015, from
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to commence/carry on the business of Non-Banking
Financial Institution without accepting public deposits subject to certain conditions
as mentioned by RBI and is considered as a Systematically Important Non-Deposit
Taking Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI) with effect from April 1, 2015.

RBI carried out an inspection under section 45N of the RBI Act, 1934 and issued a
letter in May 2021 advising the Company to comply with certain RBI guidelines.
Company has complied with those guidelines as advised by RBI and necessary
clarifications given, wherever required.

During the year under review, the Company has made an application to RBI for
voluntarily deregistration of L&T IDPL as a CIC. A reply from RBI is awaited.
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Statutory Disclaimer

RBI does not accept any responsibility or guarantee about the present position as to
the financial soundness of the Company or for the correctness of any of the
statements or representations made or opinions expressed by the Company and for
discharge of liability by the Company.

Neither is there any provision in law to keep nor does the Company keep any part of
the deposits with the RBI and by issuing the Certificate of Registration (COR) to the
Company, the Reserve Bank neither accepts any responsibility nor guarantee for the
payment of the deposit amount to any depositor.

Deposits:
The Company has not accepted deposits from the public and does not fall within
the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Rules framed

thereunder.

Depository System:

As on March 31, 2022, the shares of the Company are held in the following manner:

Equity shares:

62,95,21,664 equity shares @ Rs. 10/- each representing 100% of the Company’s
equity paid up capital are held in dematerialized form.

a. Subsidiary Companies:

i} During the year the Company has not been allotted any shares of its existing
subsidiary companies. However, a new subsidiary in the name of WATRAK
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED was incorporated on November 18, 2021,
wherein 10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each were allotted to the Company
(including 1 equity share of Rs. 10/- held jointly with a Nominee).

ii} Shares Sold/Transferred or Disbosed of During the Year:

No shares were sold/transferred or disposed of during the year.

iii) Performance and Financial Position of Each Subsidiary/Associate and Joint
Venture Companies:

A statement containing the salient features of the financial performance of
subsidiaries / associate / joint venture companies and their contribution to the
overall performance of the Company is provided in the Annual Report. (Format
as per AOC-1 as Annexure 1)
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. Indinfravit Trust:

During the year, the Company sold 555 lakh units of Rs. 100/- each of Indinfravit
Trust to CPPIB Private Holdings (4) Inc. at a consideration of Rs. 564 crores.

Particulars of Loans Given, Investments made, Guarantees given or Security
provided by the Company:

Since the Company is engaged in the business of developing infrastructure facilities

through its subsidiaries (SPVs), the provisions of Section 186 except sub-section (1} of
the Act are not applicable to the Company. The details of loans given, investments
made, and guarantees/securities provided by the Company to its subsidiaries are
given inthe Notes to the standalone financial statement.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties:

All related party transactions during the year have been approved in terms of the Act
and Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has adopted Related Party
Transaction Policy at the Board Meeting held on May 11, 2016, with suitable
guidelines thereunder. Details of material Related Party Transactions as required
under sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act are provided in Annexure 2 (AOC-2).

Amount to be Carried to Reserve:

The Company has transferred Rs. Nil to the statutory reserve for the year ended
March 31, 2022. The total Reserve under Section 45-IC is Rs. 98.33 crore.

Dividend:

The Directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the financial year 2021-
22.

11. Material Changes and Comimitiments affecting the Financla! Position of the Company,

12,

between the end of the Financial Year and the Date of the Repori:

No material changes or commitments adversely affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred/been made between the end of the financial year and the
date of this Report. :

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Qutgo

Conservation of Energy and Technology absorption

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company,
Section 134{3)(m) of the Act, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts} Rules,
2014 relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption does not apply to
the Company.
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutso

-During the year, there has been no foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

Risk Management Policy:

Mr. R. G. Ramachandran is the Chief Risk Officer of the Company. He is authorised to
conduct a detailed study on Enterprise Risk Management of the Company and its
subsidiaries. He shall function independently so as to ensure highest standards of
Risk Management process and shall report to the MD and/or CEQ/ Risk Management
Committee (RMC) of the Board. During the year, standard operating procedures were
examined and discussions conducted at various levels, probable design deficiencies
in operating procedures were identified and recorded. The Risk Management
Committee was re-constituted vide Circular resolution dated September 11, 2020
and it comprises of the following members:

Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Risk Officer

Business Head — Roads

Business Head — Power Transmission

[0, N = FE N N

Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee of Directors was re-
constituted on May 5, 2021. The Members of the Committee are:

Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer {Chairman)
Mr. Sudhakar Rao; and
Mr. D.K. Sen

During the year, one CSR Committee was held on July 19, 2021, through audio visual
means/video conferencing mode. All the Members of the said Committee were
present in the Meeting.

The CSR Policy as approved by the Board of Directors is available on its website
www.Intidpl.com.

The Company has unspent CSR amount of Rs. 1.39 crore for FY 2021-22 as per Section
135, which will be transferred to Fund specified in Schedule VIl of Companies Act,
2013 within a period of six months from the expiry of financial year.



16. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Appointed / Resigned

during the Year:

Changes in Directors and KMP

The composition of Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2022, stood

as below:

Mr. R Shankar Raman

Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. D. K. Sen

Managing Director

Mr. Sudhakar Rao

independent Director

Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer

Independent Woman Director

Prof. A. Veeraragavan

Independent Director

Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni

Non-Executive Director (Investor Nominee)

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on March 31,2022 are:

esignatiol

Mr. D. K. Sen Managing Director

Mr. Pramod Sushila Kapoor Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Pradeepta Kumar Puhan Company Secretary

The tenure of Mr. Shailesh K. Pathak, Chief Executive Officer and Whole-time Director
of the Company concluded at the closing hours of April 27, 2021. The Directors record
their sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution made by Mr. Shailesh K.
Pathak during his tenure.

Dr. A. Veeraragavan was appointed as an Independent Director for a period of five
years with effect from June 5, 2021,

Mr. D. K. Sen and Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni {Investor Director) retired by rotation at
the Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2021, and were reappointed as
Directors.

At the Board Meeting held on December 15, 2021, Mr. D. K. Sen, Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer of the Company was re-designated as Managing Director
and Mr. Sachin Johri was appointedas Chief Executive of the Company.

Mr. R. Shankar Raman, Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board is liable to
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers’
himself for re-appointment.

The Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves on the
Independent Director’s Databank.
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Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more
than 120 days between two consecutive Meetings.

During the year, seven Board Meetings were held. All the Board Meetings were held -
through audio visual means/video conferencing. The details of the Board meetings
conducted during the year are given below:

May 5, 2021

July 19, 2021
October 19, 2021
December 15, 2021

January 20, 2022
February 8, 2022
March 11, 2022

AN | Y| WN
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The Directors were duly provided with the Agenda and supporting documents and
had participated through audio/visual means. The roll call procedure was followed,
and the proceedings of the Meetings were recorded and preserved.

Information to the Board:

The Board of Directors has complete access to the information within the Company
and its subsidiaries which inter alig includes:

e Annual revenue budgets and capital expenditure plans

¢ Quarterly financials and results of operations

e Financing plans of the Company

e Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee (AC),
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), Risk Management
Committee and IT Strategy Committee

e Any materially relevant default, if any, in financial obligations to and by the
Company

o Any issue which involves possible public or product liability claims of
substantial nature, including any Judgement or Order, if any, which may have
strictures on the conduct of the Company

e Development in respect of human resources

e Compliance or non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing
requirements and investor service

e Action Taken Report on the decisions taken by the Board or Board appointed
Committees



Presentations are made regularly to the Board/NRC/Audit Committee {(minutes of
Board, Audit Committee and NRC are circulated to the Board), where Directors get
an opportunity to interact with senior management. Presentations inter afia cover
business. strategies, management structure, HR policy, quarterly, half-yearly and
annual results, budgets, treasury, review of Internal Audit, risk management,
operations of subsidiaries and associates, etc.

Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with the Company’s
management. Interactions happen during the Board / Committee Meetings, when
senior Company personnel make presentations about performance of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Board had re-constituted the Audit Committee on June 5, 2021, in terms of the
Companies Act, 2013 comprising of following members:

Mr. Sudhakar Rao Chairman {Independent Director

Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer Independent Director

Prof. A. Veeraragavan independent Director

Mr. R Shankar Raman Chairman {Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni Non-Executive Director {Investor Nominee}

During the year, five Audit Committee meetings were held. All the Audit Committee
Meetings were held through audio visual means/video conferencing. The details of
the meetings conducted during the year under review are given below:

5.5.2021 4 4
19.7.2021 5 5
19.10.2021 5 4
20.1.2022 5 4

The Members were duly provided with the Agenda and supporting documents and
had participated through audio/visual means. The roll call procedure was followed,
and the proceedings of the Meetings were duly recorded and preserved. All the
recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of
Directors.

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act, the Company is required to
establish an effective Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns.



The Company has a whistle blower policy in place to report concerns about unethical
activities if any, actual/suspected frauds and violation of Company’s Code of
Conduct. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of
persons who avail the same and provides for direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. With effect from July 30, 2020, Mr. Pradeepta Kumar Puhan was
appointed as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company and
currently he is the co-ordinator for Vigil Mechanism and responsible for receiving,
validating, investigating and reporting to the Audit Committee.

Members can view the details of the whistle blower policy under the said framework
of the Company on its website www.LntidpL.com.

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprised of Mr. Shailesh K. Pathak, Mr. R. Shankar
Raman and Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni. Consequent upon the completion of the
tenure of Mr. Shailesh K. Pathak on the closing hours of April 27, 2021, the
Management Committee was re-constituted at the Board Meeting held on July 19,
2021, comprising of Mr. D. K. Sen, Mr. R. Shankar Raman and Mr. Pushkar Vijay
Kulkarni.

IT Strategy Committee

The Company has constituted an IT Strategy Committee consisting of 5 members with
Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer as the Chairperson. An IT Strategy Committee
meeting was held on March 11, 2022, through audio visual means. All the members
were provided with the Agenda and supporting documents to attend the meeting.
The Roles and Responsibilities of IT Strategy Committee is as per Master Direction
DNBS.PPD.N0.04/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 8™ June 2017 is met with.

Company Policy on Director Appointment and Remuneration

The Company had re-constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on
March 11, 2021, in accordance with the requirements of the Act read with the Rules
made thereunder comprising of Mr. Sudhakar Rac (Chairman), Ms. Vijayalakshmi
Rajaram lyer (Independent Director), Mr. R. Shankar Raman (Non-Executive Director)
and Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni {(Non-Executive Director, Investor nominee)

During the year, Four Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
were held. All the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held
through audio visual means/video conferencing. The details of the meetings
conducted during the year under review are given below:
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April 30, 2021
Qctober 19, 2021
December 15, 2021
March 11, 2021

L
Bl W&

The Members were duly provided with the Agenda and supporting documents and
had participated through audio/visual means. The roll call procedure was followed
and the proceedings of the Meetings were recorded and preserved.

The Committee had formulated a policy on Director's appointment and
remuneration including recommendation of remuneration of the KMP and the
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director and also for KMP.

Declaration of Independence

The Company has received declaration of independence as stipulated under Section
149(7) of the Act from the Independent Directors confirming that they are not
disqualified from continuing as an Independent Director.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for

Internal Financial Controls (‘IFC’} within the meaning of the explanation to Section

134(5)(e) of the Act. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the IFC report was placed -
before the Audit Committee / Board. The Board is of the opinion that the Company

has IFC commensurate with the nature and size of its business operations and

operating effectively and no material weaknesses exist.

The Company has a process in place io continuously monitor the same and identify
gaps, if any, and implement new and / or improved controls wherever the effect of

such gaps would have a material effect on the Company’s operations.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms that:

a} In the preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the
applicable accounting standards have been foilowed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any.

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2022, and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.
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¢} The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

d} The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

e) The Directors have laid down an adequate system of internal financial control with
respect to reporting on financial statements and the said system is operating
effectively.

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were

operating effectively.

Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have laid down the
manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board,
committees and individual directors has to be made.

It includes circulation of questionnaires digitally to all Directors for evaluation of the
Board and its Committees, Board composition and its structure, its culture, Board
effectiveness, Board functioning, information availability, etc. These questionnaires
also cover specific criteria and the grounds on which all directors in their individual
capacity will be evaluated.

Further, the Independent Directors meeting was held on March 19, 2022, at Mumbai
in person. The Directors conveyed their suggestions to the Management. The
Directors reviewed the performance of Board, Committees, and Non-Executive
Directors. The performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and Directors was
also reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors. '

Disclosure of Remuneration:

The information in respect of employees of the Company required pursuant to Rule
5(2) and 5(3} of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel} Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, is provided in Annexure 3
forming part of this report. In terms of Section 136(1) of the Act and the rules made
thereunder, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding
the aforesaid Annexure. Any Shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same
may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. None
of the employees listed in the said Annexure is related to any Director of the
Company.
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Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and Annual General Meetings:

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and Annual General Meetings.

Protection of Women at Workplace:

The Company has adopted a policy on Protection of Women’s Rights at workplace in
line with the policy formulated by the parent company, Larsen & Toubro Ltd. This has
been widely disseminated. There were no complaints of sexual harassment received
by the Company during the year.

Consolidated Financial Statement:

Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statement
pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act and prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india
in this regard and audited by the Company’s Statutory Auditors.

Auditors Report:

The Auditors’ Reports on the standalone and consolidated financial statements for
the financial year 2021-22 are unqualified. The Emphasis on Matters made by the
Auditors are adequately covered in the Notes to the said financial statements. The
Notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Reports are self-explanatory and
do not call for any further clarifications under section 134(3)(f} of the Act.

Auditor:

The Company at the Twentieth Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September
29, 2021 had appointed M/s. Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn.
no. 0005115} having their registered office at 48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
Royapettah, Chennai ~ 600014, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
and conduct audit for a terim of three consecutive years from FY 2021-22 to FY 2023-
24.

A certificate from the said audit firm has been received to the effect that they are
eligible to act as Auditors of the Company under Section 141 of the Act.

Secretarial Auditor:

M/s Chitra Lalitha & Associates, Chennai, Partnership Firm with unique code
no.P2021TN085400, was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company
for the financial year 2021-22, as required under Section 204 of the Act and Rules
thereundet. The secretarial audit report dated May 05, 2022, to the Shareholders for
the financial year 2021-22 is attached as ‘Annexure 4’ to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report carries no qualifications.



27. Cost Auditor:

Mr. K. Suryanarayanan, Cost Accountant (Membership No.24946), was re-appointed
as Cost Auditor of the Company at a remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000 p.a. for audit of
cost accounting records for the financial year 2021-22, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 of the Act and Rule 3 and 4 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Amendment Rules, 2014.

The Report of the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2021-22 would be filed with the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs once the same is finalised.

The remuneration of the Cost Auditor was ratified at the Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on May 062021. The Cost Audit Report for the year 2020-21 was filed
with MCA on October 25, 2021.

28. Debenture Trustee:

As at March 31, 2022 there are no outstanding debentures allotted by the Company.
M/s. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, having their office at Asian Building, Ground
Floor, 17, R, Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400001 was appointed as the
Debenture Trustee during the tenure of debentures.

29. Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals:

During the year under review, there were no material and significant orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the
Company’s future operations.

30. Copy of Annual Return

As per the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration} Rules, 2014, a copy of the Annual Return is
available at https://www.Intidpl.com/company/corporate-governance/.

Acknowledegement:

The Board of Directors wish to express their appreciation to all the employees for their
outstanding contribution to the operations of the Company during the year. Your Directors
take this opportunity to thank financial institutions, banks, Central and State Government
authorities, regulatory authorities, stock exchanges and all the stakeholders for their
continued co-operation and support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

L. 3iw~w\~/ |

—
R. Shankar Raman/ Dip Kishore Sen
Chairman Managing Director &
DIN: 00019798 DIN: 03554707

Date : May 05, 2022
Place : Mumbai



Statement containing the Salient Features of the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries | Associate Companies / Joint Ventures for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2022

A) Subsidiaries

AOC-1
Annexure 1

1 AMTL 149 (50} 1289 1289 71 227 ..ﬂd - (17} '14,89,99,900 14,90,00,000 99.99%
2 KTL 193 377 2064 2064 152 242 95 - 95 19,25,99,998 19,26,00,000 99.99%
3 PECL 30 (374} 120 120 2 37 (41) - (41) 3,00,46,604 3,00,46,606 99.99%
4 PNGTL 169 {168) 1 1 - - 167 - 167 12,51,33,500 16,91,00,000 73.99%
5 VBTL 44 122 192 192 2 407 134 23 110 4,34,99,598 4,35,00,000 99.99%
6 L&TCTTL 42 6 354 354 - - - - - 4,19,99,900 4,20,00,000 99.99%
7 L&T DTL 285 (684) 1887 1887 73 192 {139) - (139) 24,33,35,998 28,53,40,000 85.28%
8 L&T HSTL 795 (507) 1253 1253 - 55 {25) - {25) 38,95,19,500 79,53,46,125 48.97%
9 L&T IRCL 57 (10) 152 152 66 26 1 - 1 5,71,59,998 5,71,60,000 99.99%
10 | L&TRVIL 110 (170) 750 750 - 113 111 - 111 10,99,99,900 11,00,00,000 100%

11 | LETSGTL 81 (561) 1526 1526 - 199 (128) - {128} 8,05,27,000 8,05,40,000 99.98%
12 | L&TSRTL 290 (187) 093 993 48 164 (25} - {25) 29,00,29,998 29,00,30,000 100%

13 L&TTIL 41 383 432 482 10 59 40 11 25 3,05,36,000 4,14,00,000 73.76%
14 INDVIT 14 105 157 157 1 26 101 25 76 1,39,50,007 1,39,50,007 100%

15 WIPL 0.01 {0.01) 0.01 0.01 - - {0.01) - (0.03) ' 1,000 1400 100%
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ANNEXURE 2

FORM NO. AOC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain
arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section
(3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s fength basis:

There are no contracts or arrangements or transactions which are not at arm’s length

basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Name of Nature of
Related |Relationship
Party

Nature of the | Duration | Salient | Date(s) of | Amount
transaction terms | approval by | paid as
' the Board | advance

Nil

Date : May 05, 2022
Place : Mumbai

For and on b_ehalf of the Board

h ~JMV\J

a——
R. Shankar Ram Dip Kishore Sen
Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00019798 DIN: 03554707




A\ LALITHA & ASSOCIATES
Flat No. *G*. 1st Floor, Senthil Flats, No.59, Burkit Road.
T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 017
Ph ;044 24338111/9111

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

To

The Members,

L & T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited,
Mount Poonamalle Road, Post Box — 979,
Manapakkam, Chennai 600089

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by L & T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
(hereinafter called the “Company™).

The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing -our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papets, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers. agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the secretarial audit, We
hereby report that, in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March 2022, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 according to the
provisions of:




CHITRA LALITHA & ASSOCIATES
Flat No. *G'. ist Floor, Senthil Flats, No.59, Burkit Read,
T. Nagar, Chennai - 606 017
. Ph . 044 24338111/9111

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) *The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) *The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment which has been
generally complied with and *External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under ther Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’):-

(a) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) *The Securities and Excharige Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

{g) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; and

(h) *The Securities and Ixchange Board of Ihdia (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations
2018

(vi} The other laws applicable specifically to the company:
1. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 to. the extent applicable.




CHITRA LALITHA & ASSOCIATES

Flat No. *G’°. 1st Floor. Senthil Flats, No.39, Burkit Roead,
T. Nagar, Chennai - 604 017
Ph: 044 24338111011

We have also examined whether adequate systems and processes are in place to monitor and
ensure compliance with general laws like labor laws, competition laws, environment laws etc.

In respect of financial laws like Tax laws, Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 etc we have relied on
the audit reports made available during our audit for us to have the satisfaction that the Company
has complied with the provisions of such laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

2. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 with respect to debt sccurities which has been generally complied with.

Note:
* Denotes “NOT APPLICABLE”.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

The company has unspent CSR amount for FY 2021-22 as per Section 135, which should be
transferred to Fund specified in Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013 within a period of six
months from the expiry of financial year.

We further report that there are reasonably adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. ‘

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has the following major

transactions:




CHITRA LALITHA & ASSOCIATES
Flat No. (3. 1st Floor, Senthil Flats, No.59, Burkit Road.
T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 017
Ph: 044 24338111/9111

1. Retirement of Mr. Shailesh Kumar Pathak CEO and Whole Time Director of the
Company with effect from 27.04.2021.

2. The following major transaction was approved by the members of the Company at
its Extra - Ordinary General Meeting held on 06.05.2021:

a) Sale of 555 lakh units of Rs 100/- each of IndInfravit Trust to CPP
Investment Board Private Holding(4) Inc. or its Associates for an
aggregate amount of Rs 563.6 crores

b) Appointment of Mr. Dip Kishore Sen as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company for a period of three years commencing
from May 05, 2021 upto and including May 04, 2024

3. Re-designation of Mr. D K Sen as Managing Director and CEO to Managing
Director of the Company with effect from 15.12.2021. -

This report has to be read along with our statement furnished in Annexure A

For Chitra Lalitha and Associates

M Francis

Partner

FCS No.: 10705

Place: Chennai C P No.: 14967
Date: 26.04.2022 UDIN: FO10705D000158666

Firm Registration Number: P2021TN085400
Peer Review Certificate Number: 1843/2022



CHITRA LALITHA & ASSOCIATES
Flat No. *(G°. 1st Floor, Senthil Flaws, MNo. 589, Burkit Road,
T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 017
Pl 044 2433811179111

Annexure ‘A’

To.

The Members,

L & T Infrastructure development projects Limited,
Mount Pooniamalle Road, Manapakkam,

Chennai 600089

Dear Sir(s),
Sub.: Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2022

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial recerds based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonabie basis for our

opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management feprescﬂtation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events efc.

"5, The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was

limited 1o the verification of procedures on test basis.




CHITRA LALITHA & ASSOCIATES

Flat No. *(°. 1st Floor, Senthil Flats, No.59, Burkit Road.
T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 017
Ph: 044 24338111/9111

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the Company.

For Chitra Lalitha and Associates

\c“:; ‘&*/@“P %

M Francis
Partner

. FCS No.: 10705

Place: Chennai C P No.: 14967
Date: 26.04.2022 UDIN: F010705D000158666
Firm Registration Number: P2021TN085400

Peer Review Certificate Number: 1843/2022




Annexure-5

Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy is approved as recommended by the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in compliance with provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013, Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy} Rules, 2014 and
Schedule VIl of Companies Act, 2013.

The Key Objectives of this CSR policy would be to actively contribute to the social and
economic development of the communities in which we operate by taking up CSR activities
falling under the purview of Schedule VIl of Companies Act, 2013.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation /| Number of |Number of meetings|
Nature of |meetings of CSR| of CSR Committee
Directorship | Committee held|attended during the
during the year year
1 Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram|Chairperson 1 1
iyer (Independent
Director)
2 Mr. Sudhakar Rao Member 1 1
(Independent
Director)
3 Mr. Dip Kishore Sen Member 1 1
{Managing
Director)

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company:

https://www.Intidpl.com/company/policies/

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report):

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies {Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any: Nil



6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5}: Rs. 69,63,69,801/-
7. {(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1,39,27,396/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

{d}Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢): Rs. 1,39,27,396/-

8.  (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (ih Rs.)
ATotaI ¢ Total Amount transferred |  Amount transferred to any fund
S n:cf:unth to Unspent CSR Account as| specified under Schedule Vil as per
pe.n m: € per section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5).
Financial
Year. (in Rs.}
Amount. Dateof |[Nameofthe; Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
0 Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects far the financial year:
Nil

{d} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable

{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

{f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil

{g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): Nil



10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): Nil

{a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset({s): Nil

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

(c} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset): Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5):

The Company has unspent CSR amount of Rs. 1.39 crore for FY 2021-22 as per Section 135,
which will be transferred to Fund specified in Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013 within a
period of six months from the expiry of financial year.

For and on behalf of the Board

Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer R. Shankar Ram Dip ore~s¢én
Chairperson CSR Committee Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 052422860 DIN: 00019798 DIN: 03554707

Date : May 05, 2022

Place : Mumbai



ANNEXURE 6

The Expanded Name of the Companies

AE OF THE SUBS 7 S BRE'
1 L&T Transportation Infrastructure Limited L&T TIL

2 Panipat Elevated Corridor Limited PECL

3 L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited L&T IRCL
4 Vadodara Bharuch Tollway Limited VBTL

5 L&T Rajkot Vadinar Tollway Limited L&T RVTL
6 L&T Halol Shamlaji Tollway Limited L&T HSTL
7 Ahmedabad Maliya Tollway Limited AMTL

8 PNG Tollway Limited PNGTL

9 L&T Samakhali Gandhidham Tollway Limited L&T SGTL
10 L&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited L&T CTTL
11 L&T Sambalpur-Rourkela Tollway Limited 1&T SRTL
12 L&T Deccan Tollways Limited L&T DTL
13 LTIDPL IndviT Services Limited INDVIT
14 Kudgi Transmission Limited KTL
15 Watrak Infrastructure Private Limited KWTL




48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Magar,
wapettah, Chennai - 600 014, India.

Chartered Accountants

[NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Ohpinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of L&T Infrastructure
Development Projects Limited (“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred as “Group™), its
associates, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statemment of Changes in
Equity and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on the financial statements of the Subsidiaries and Associate and
unaudited financial information of an Associate furnished by the management referred to in Other Matter
paragraph below, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 In the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and it’s
Associates as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated chanpes
in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our
reporl. We are independent of the Group and its Associates in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have -obtained is sufficient
and approptiale to provide a basis for our opinion ot the Consolidated [nd AS Financial Statements.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern in respect of certain subsidiary companies
included in the reports of the anditors of those subsidiary companies:

a) We draw attention to Note 63 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which indicates that
the L&T Deccan Tollways Limited (DTL), a subsidiary company incwred a cumulative net loss of
Rs. 7.58.38 crores up to March 31, 2022 resulting in negative net-worth of the DTL of Rs. 3,98.41
crores and Current Liabilities exceeds the Current Assets by Rs. 33.20 crores. These events o
conditions, indicate that a malerial uncertainty exists that mmay cast significant doubt on the DTL's
ability to continue as a going concern. Basis set forth in Note No. 62, the management has prepared
DTL’s financial stalements on a going concern basis.

b) We draw attention to Note 64 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statementls, which indicates that
the Panipat Elevated Corridor Limited {(PECL), a subsidiary company incurred a cumulative net loss
of Rs. 389.94 Crores up to March 31, 2022 resulting in negative net-worth of the PECL of
Rs. 343.46 crores and Current Liabilities exceeds the Current Assets by Rs. 292.55 crores. These
gvents or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
PECL ability to continue as a going concern. Basis set forth is Note No. 63, the management has
prepared PECL financial statements on a going concern basis. /‘

Al
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Chartered Accsunants

¢} We draw aifention to Note 63 of the consolidated Ind AS financial stalements, which indicates that
the L&T Rajkot-Vadinar Tollway Limited (RVTL), a subsidiary company accumulated losses
exceeded ils paid up capital and reserves by Rs. 39.54 crores and, as of that date the current liabilities
of the RVTL exceeded the current assets by Rs. 393.30 crores. These events or conditions, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the RVTL ability to continue as a
going concern. Basis set forth in Note No. 64, the management has prepared RVTL financial
statements on a going concern basis.

d) We draw attention Note 66 of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which indicates that the
L&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited (SGTL) has accumulated losses and its net worth has
teen fully eroded. Also, the SGTL has incurred a net cash loss during the cwrent and previous year

_and, the SGTL’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at the balance sheet date. These
conditions, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
SGTL’s ability to continue as a going concern. Basis set forth in Note No. 65, the management has
prepared SGTL financial statements on a going concern basis.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention fo:

a) Note 55 of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which describes the Management's assessment of
the carrying value of net amount recoverable towards termination compensation as at March 31, 2022,
aggregating Rs. 47.69 crores (As at March 31, 2021: Rs. 52.75 crores) relating to one subsidiary of the
Group, engaged in infrastructure project, which has terminated the concession agreement entered into with
the National Highway Authorities of India (NHAI). The nature of default and termination amount claimed
under the concession agreement has not been accepted by NHAI and arbitration proceedings have been
initiated in respect of the disputes relating to the termination payments/claims. Further, in respect of this
subsidiary, the Tenders have filed petition with Debt Recovery Tribunal for recovery of outstanding loans,

The Management has carried out an assessment of its exposure in this project duly considering the
expected outcome of the arbitration proceedings, contractual stipulations/ irmterpretation of the relevant
clauses in the aforesaid concession agreement, the expected termination payment to be received by the
subsidiary, the possible obligations to lenders, legal advice, etc; and believes that the net amount of
recoverable carried in the books in respect of the subsidiary is good and recoverable and no
provision/adjustment to the same is considered necessary as at March 31, 2022,

b) Mote 51 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes the Management's assessment
of the carrying value of toll collection rights at March 31, 2022 Rs. 3,505.59 crores, net of
amortisation/impairment of Rs. 1,132.47 crores in four operating subsidiaries of the Group, engaged in
infrastructure projects, whose net worth is eroded and have continuing operating losses/undergoing
restructuring due to continuous losses, for a period more than 5 years as per the audited Ind AS financial
statements of those subsidiaries as at March 31, 2022.

As explained in the note, the Management has, considering the gestation petiod required for break even
for such infrastructure investmenis and restructuring/refinancing atrangements carried out/proposed,
expected improved cash flows in its future business projections, opined that no additional
impairment/adjustment to the carrying value of the said toll collection rights is necessary as at March 31,
20232,

=
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aspect of certain subsidiary companies, we invite attention to following Emphasis of Matter included in the
it reporis of the respective auditors of the subsidiary companies:

As mentioned in Note 67 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, Going Concemn is not

appropriate for L

&T Chermai Tada Tollway Limited (CTTL) and PNG Tollway Limited (PNG), hence the

financial statements of CTTL and PNG have been drawn up accordingly.

: opinton is not modified in respect of the above matters.

y Audit Matters

¢ Audit Matters are those m

atters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit

the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

rtext of our au

dit of the Consofidated Ind AS Financial Staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion

reon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these malters. We have determined the matters described
ow to be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated in our report.

No [~

0 U Key Audit Matters. o0

.. Auditor's response _

Management's assessment of the recoverability
of carrying value of net amount recoverable
towards termination compensation relating to
one subsidiary engaged in infrastructure
projects which has terminated its concession
agreement entered info with National
Highways Authorities of India (NHAI)

A subsidiary of the Group, wherein the carrying
value of net amount recoverable towards
termination compensation as at March 31, 2022,
aggregating Rs. 47.69 Crores has terminated its
concession agreement with NHAT and submitted
claims stating default to recover dues from NHAIL
The natare of default and the termination amount
claimed by the subsidiary under the concession
agreements has not been accepted by NHAI and

accordingly arbitration proceedings have been

initiated.

The Management has carried out detailed
evaluations considering its legal position based on
contractual  stipulations/interpretations and the
likely expected outcome of the arbitration
proceeding and concluded that the carrying value
of net amount recoverable towards termination
compensation, as at March 31, 2022, from such
subsidiary is good and recoverable.

The recoverability of the colnpensation claim
involves complex legal issues as well as various
assumptions, requiring significant judgment in
determining the compensation recoverable. Any
adverse change to these assumptions could result
into reduction in the -compensation claim
determined resulting in a potential impairment to
be recognised.

Our Audif Procedures include the following:

a) Evaluated the design and implementation of
the relevant controls and the operating
effectiveness of such internal controls over
the assessment of claims relating to
subsidiaries who have terminated their
concession agreements by the claims &
contracts department/ legal department in
determining the validity and basis of claim.

We obtained the related documents
supporting such claims and any counter
claims and performed the following
procedures:

b)

Examined the documents/rationale used
by the claims &  contracts
department/legal  department  with
regard to the ongoing arbitrations and
verified that the claim is a contractually
valid claim,

@

(i) We carried out inquiries with key
management personnel overseeing the
arbitration process to understand the
status of the claims and examined the

minutes of the meetings, as available.

We obtained legal note from the legal
department of the Company With
regard to the termination compensation
as in arbitration award to understand the
basis supporting.

(1ii)

We examined the Management's
assessment of the probability of
recoverability of its termination claims
and the counter claims to verify if the
assessment was consistent with the

(iv}

nani Road, Balaji Nagar,
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S.No Key Audit Matters .- - Aunditor’s response
legal  position  veceived  from
Management.
2 | Impairment evalnation carried out by | Our Audit Procedures include the following:
Management Tor Toll Collection Rights Of
certain operating projects of the company who | o) EBvaluated the design and implementation of
have incurred continuous losses and/or are the relevant controls and the operating
undergoing restructuring due to continuous effectiveness of such internal conirols
losses for a period more than 5 years. which inter-alia includes the completeness
and accuracy of the input data considered,
Toll collection fights, aggregating Rs. 3,505.59 reasonableness of assumptions considered
crores as at March 31, 2022, obtained in in determining the future projections and
consideration for rendering construction services, the assumptions considered in preparing the
represent the right to collect toll revenue during impairment calculations.
the concession period in respect of Build-Operate- . . )
Transfer ("BOW") or Design-Build-Finance- | b) Obtained the investment valuations
Operate-Transfer (“DBFOT") projects undertaken (prepared by Management or as carried out
by the company. Toll collection rights are by Management's exfernal valuation
capitalized as intangible assets upon completion of specialist) pertaining to such subsidiaries
the project at the cumulative construction costs and performed the following procedures:
plus the present value of obligation towards
1 negative grants and additional concession fee | (i) Conducted discussions with Company
payable to National Highways Authority of India personnel to identify factors, if any, that
("NHAI"Y/State authorities, if any. should be taken into account in the
analysis.
The Group has carried out detailed evaluations | .. ’ :
considering various factors and concluded that the (i)~ Compared the actual revenues and cash
carrying value of the toll collection rights are good flows generated by the subsidiaries
and recoverable during the year as to the projections and
. estimates considered in the previous
year.
Due to the multitude of factors and assumptions
involved in  determining the forecasted | (iii) Evaluated the appropriateness of key
revenuesfcash flows and discount rate in the assumptions  considered, incinding
projection period, Significant judgments are discount raie, growth rate, etc.
required to estimate the recoverable values. Any considering the historical accuracy of
adverse changes to these assumptions could result the Company’s estimates in the. prior
into reduction in the fair value determined periods, consultations with internal
resulting in a -potential impairment to be specialists and comparison of the
recognised. - assumptions with public data wherever
available.
3 | Valuation of Investments in Units in Indinfravit | Our Audit Procedures includes the following:
Trust as on March 31, 2622
a) Evaluated the design and implementation of
The Company holds 3,75,61,677 units of face the relevant conirols and the operating
value of Rs. 100 each in Indinfravit Trust as on effectiveness of such internal conirols with
March 31, 2022 at a book value of Rs. 468.21 respect to fair valuation of investments.
Crore. _
b) We have reviewed the accounting policies
Ind AS 113 — Fair Value Measurement - requires followed by the company for accounting
the fair value to be considered as on the and disclosing the investments in
measurement date and prescribes methodologies accordance with the applicable financial
for determining the fair value, namely the Cost reporting framework.
Approach, the Income Approach or the Market
Approach, c) We have reviewed the management note
regarding accounting of investment in units

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
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S.No

Koy Audit Matters

Audifor’s respouse

Based on the information and explanations given
to us, the valuation of the units is expected to be
conducted by Indinfravit Trust by IJune 2022,
Since the historical cost of the units was at the
time of their acquisition, the last quoted market
value of the units has been considered for the
purpose of determining the fair value of the units
as at March 31, 2022.

The Units are listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE) and generally have a history of
limited frading during the past financial years. Ti he
last proximate traded price of these units has been
considered for this purpose.

of Indinfravit Trust.
d) We evaluated the company’s process
regarding the fair valuation of the
investments and verified the correctness of
inputs used in the fair valuation.

We have discussed with the management 10
obtain an understanding of the methodology
followed for fair valuation due to absence of
recent transactions.

e)

We have evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the Consolidated Ind
AS  Financial  Statements  regarding
investments at fair value,

4 [ Recalibration of Retained Earnings forming | Our Audit Procedures includes the following

part of Other Equity; - _
a) Evaluated the design and implementation of
During the year ended March 31, 201 8, PNG the rclevant controls and the operating
Toltway Limited, a subsidiary Company impaired effectiveness of such internal controls in
an amount of Rs. 65.00 Crore in its receivable. accounting of non-controlling interest.
Based on the information and jaxplanaﬁons given b) zgmgﬁz rzz:;zsgn;heO?aﬁ(a)ﬁiﬁzﬁoﬂg:;
to us and the facts and circumstances then interest
prevalent, the share of minority interest of 26% on ’
the abqve imparrment amounting to Rs 16.90 ¢) We have verified the methodology followed
Crore was accounted in the retained earnings of for accounting this transaction.
the Group.
d) We have evaluated the disclosure made in

In the current year, an amount Qf.RS‘ ]6‘99 Crore ) the consolidated financial  statement
has been appropriated ‘to tl.1e T fained carnings of regarding recalibration of retained earnings
the group from the minority interest in order to forming part of other equity
recalibrate the balance in minority interest in line )
with the share of minotity interest.

5 | Component Auditors have mentioned the following Key Audit Matters in their Audit Reports of
the Cemponents:

5.1 | In Conpection with Subsidiary Company - L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited (IRCL})

Accuracy of  recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosures of revenues and

| other related balances in terms of Ind AS 115

“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” —
Auditors of IRCL identified this as a Key Audit
Matter.

The application of the revenue accounting
standard TND As 115 involves certain key
judgements relating (o identification of distinct
performance  obligations, — determination of
transaction price of the identified performance
obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used
to measure revenue recognised over a period.
Additionally, the standard contains disclosures
which involves collation of information in respect

The Audit Response to this Key Audit Matter
has been mentioned by the auditors of IRCL as
follows:

a) Tested company's design and operating '
effectiveness of internal control and carried
ouf substantive festing in respect of
company's performance obligation in terms
of concession agreement.

b} Read, analysed, verified distinet
performance  obligation in Concession
Agreement,

¢) Considered terms of Concession Agreement

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
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SNeo - o Key-Audit Mattérs: e - . Auditor’s response
of dlsagglegatcd revenue and periods over whlch compute revenue.
the remaining performance obligations will be
satisfied subsequent to the balance sheet date. d) Analysed procedure for reasonableness of

revenue disclosed.
Amount of consideration receivable over
concession period treated as financial asset is | In respect of carrying value of amount
derived by estimating cash inflows and outflows. | receivable  unmder  Service  Concession
This results in high degree of subjectivity. Arrangements

The determination of transaction price of | @) Reviewed the basis on which financial

identified performance obligation as well as model prepared to work out the carrying
estimation of future cash inflows and outflows value of financial asset at amortised cost less
involves significant management judgement and impairment allowance in accordance with
lience considered as a key audit matter. Ind AS 109, Reviewed the working of cash

outflows on account of Operation &
Maintenance obligation along with budget
prepared by the management for the same.

b) Performed analytical procedures and test of
details in respeet of cost incurred and to be
incurred during the tenure of concession
agreement.

5.2 | In Connection with Subsidiary Com;aany Ahmedabad Maliya Tollway Limited (AMTL)

“Risk of Improper revenue recognition — The | The Audit Response to this Key Audit Matter
Auditors of AMTL has identified this as a Key | has been mentioned by the auditors of AMTL as
Audit Matter follows:

a) Understatement of toll revenue and
misappropriation of cash at tolls is checked
by obtained the ledger dump of toll
collection for the entire period and
reconciled the same -with the system
generated revenue reports of the toll
actually collected.

b) Identified variations in toll collections and -
obtained and analyzed reasons for the
variations.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Parent Company’s Annual Report, but does not
include the Consolidated Ind AS financial siatements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our apinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materiafly misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conelude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companijes Act, 2013 that
give & true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the ‘Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevani to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
comparnies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group and of its associate to continue as 2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of it’s assogiates are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Cousolidaied Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal conirol.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management in Consclidated Financial Statements.

dy Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenis or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates and to
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinien. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concerm.

¢) Bvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Comsolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the under lying transactions and events in a2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the eantities or
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financia! statements of such entities included in the Consclidated Ind AS financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision, performance and opinion in respect of
the audits carried out by them, We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We desoribe these matters in our-auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of 13 subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial statements
veflect total assets of Rs, 9,809.28 Crores as at Mareh 31, 2022, toral revenue from operations of Rs,
1,592.56 Crores and net cash outflows amounting to Rs 138.02 Crores for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
also include the Pavent company’s share of net profit of Rs. 75.97 crores for the year ended March 31,
2022, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These Ind AS
financial statements and certain other adjustments carried out in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in respect of these subsidiaries referred to in Note 10(ii) of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the’ consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates (o the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate and our report in terms of
subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

b) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of one subsidiary company, whose Ind AS financial
statements reflect total revenue of Rs. 55.18 Crores as of September 30, 2021. This company ceased to be
a subsidiary company after September 30, 2021. The financial statements of this subsidiary company have
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been audited by other auditor whose teport has been furpished to us by the management and our opinion
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 af the Act, in
so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

¢} The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also inciude the Group's share of net profit of Rs. 5.16
Crores for the year ended March 31, 2022, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
in respect of an associate, whose financial information have not been audited by us. This financial
information. is unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and owr opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
vespect of this associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, thig financial information
is not material to the Group.

d) The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021,
included in these Consolidated Financial Statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements vide their report dated May 05, 2021.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our repost on other legal and regulatory
legal requirements, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our refiance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our andit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on the financial statements of subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated 1nd AS financial staternents have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidaied Ind AS financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Seciion 133 of the Act.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors of subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in india, none of
the directors of the Parent, its subsidiaries included in the group and its associate companies
incorporated in India are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
its associates, incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to owr
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separate report in *“Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ report of the parent, subsidiary
companies, associate companies incorporated in lodia.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of ‘our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Group to their directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act read with schedule V to the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on ils
financial position of Group and its associates in its Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(i) Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses on long term confracts and
the group did not have any derivative contracts.

(iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group and asscciate companies.

(iv) (2) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiaries and associates which are
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Companies Act,
has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or
any of the subsidiaries and associates to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly ot indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such
subsidiaries and associates (““Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiaries and associates which are
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Companies Act,
has represented, that, to the best of iis knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries
and associates from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiaries and associates shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Béneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on béhalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and the auditors of the subsidiaries and assoctate which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
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nothing has come (6 our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material missfatement.

2. As vequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, according to
the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Parent
Company and reports of subsidiary companies and associate company issued by the respective auditors
and included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO i3
applicable, we report that there are following qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

8.
No |
N e et e e, VEnure, " adverse
1 L&T Chennai | U45309TN2008PLC066938 Subsidiary Company 3(ix)(a)
Tada Tollway
L Limited

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Fimyfl}g No. 0005118

Place: Chennai jff‘ R

Date: May 05, 2022 F T A

< gavi Sankar
Partner
Membership No. 025929
UDIN No. 22025929AJUBVP9313
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“Annexure - A” to the Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of
our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies, Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of L&T
Infrastructre Development Projects Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Pareni Company”) and its
subsidiary companies and ifs associate companies witich are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internai Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and eirors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required vnder the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Respensibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Parent, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the 1CAI and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by 1CAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate intermal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financiai
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
contrals over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of
the subsidiary companies and associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India in terins of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent, its subSidn—_uy
companies and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India. -

T:+91-044-2813 1128/38/48/58
E:mail@brahmayya.com | www.brahmayya.com
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is & process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately-and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions af the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
managemment and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or impropet management override of controls, material misstatements due o etror or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the reporis of the other audiors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the
Parent, its subsidiary companies and associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial conirols system over financial reporting and such. internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the
criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accounitants of India.

Other Matfers

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)() of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 13 subsidiary companies and one
associate company, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of
the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. In case of an associate, the audit reports are not available
and, accordingly, our reporting under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act does not cover such associate. However, the
size of this associate in the context of the Group is not material.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For BRAHMAYYA & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Fin{;jg?ig}h N0.000511S

Place: Chennai Yol -

Date: May 05, 2022 iz \““‘ AT

w”LJR@lY&Sﬁnhal

Partner

Membership No. 025929

UDIN No. 22025929AJUBVPO313
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L&T Infrasiructere Developutent Projects Lintited

Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022

) £ crore
. Note As ar As-at
Particulars No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
(1} Financial Assets
(2} Cashand cash equivalents 2 67.37 557.20
(b} Bank balances ather than (a) above 3 1,164.41 L048.45
(<) Receivables
(1) Trade receivables 4 1773 19691
(I1) Other receivables 5 2084.08 2,197.84
{d} Loans - -
{e) Invesiments 6 1,187.81 1,188.75
(f) Other financial assets 7 3.14 13591
(2} Non-firancial Assets .
{2} Current tax assets (Net) 3 4896 73.57
(b) Deferred tax assets (Nety - -
{c) Propenty, plant and equipment, 9 2006 23.79
¢d) Capital work-in-progress - 3.03
(&) Intangible assets under development 10 5123 38.47
{} Investment property 11 210 215
(e} Goodwill 12 2848 28.48
(h} Other intangible assets 10 6,169.32 771575
(i} Other non-financial assets 13 40.32 2847
18,885.010 13,118.18
Assets classified as held-for-sale - 0.09
TOTAL ASSETS 10,885.01 13,118.27
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 14
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 502 6.18
{ii} lota) outstanding dues of creditors other than niicro cnterprises and smatl 66.39 6873
- | .
enterprises
(b} Debt securities 15 L715.52 2.852.60
{c) Berrowings (ather than debt securities) 16 6,327.63 7.220.84
(d) Other financial liabilitics 18 436.10 521.08
{2} Non-financiat Linhilities
€a) Current tax liabilities (Net) - -
(b) Provisions 19 415.85 679.74
{c) Deferred tax linbilities (Net) 44 5.80. 1394
(d) Other non-financial liabilities 20 2594 19.88
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 21 629.53 628,53
{b) Other equity 22 1,109.48 967.11
Non-controlling interests 83.75 13864
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,885.01 13,118.27
Contingent Habilities 23
Commitments 24
Refer notes forming part of the consolidated Ind AS Tinancial statements 1toG8

Ags per our reéport attached
Fer Brakimayya & Co

Chagtered Accountants

Y

Partner
Membership No. 025929

Nace: Chennaj
Jate: May 05,2022

Jierr FA ~

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R.Shankar Raﬁ(

Chairman
{DIN:006815798)
Place : Mombaj

Pramod Sushila Kapoor
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chenna{

Date: May 05, 2022

Dip.i.Sen
Managing Director
(DIN:03554707)
Place | Mumbai

f

A
Pradeepta Kumar Prhan
Company Secretary
Place: Chennai
Date: May 05, 2022



L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Consoliduted Profit & loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

crore
. Nate Period ended Period ended
Particulars No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
IREVENUE FROM GPERATIONS
(a) Income from financing activity
Interest income 35 3112 27.28
Net gain/{loss) on fair value chanpes 117 0.22
Rentsf income 034 a.10
Sale of services 23.44 23.87
(b) Revenue from service concession arrangements {net) 26 1,633.80 1,481.95
(e} Other operating income 27 1732 14.41
Total revenue from eperatians 1,713.19 154783
Other income 28 75.37 80,44
Toial Incame 1,788.56 162827
Il EXPENSES
Finanee costs 29 893.52 842,38
Operating expenses
{a} Cost of materials consumed 0.03 0.14
(2} Sub-contracting charges 7.73 15,15
(b} Financing charges 1240 27.23
(<) Other canstruction and related operating expenses 30 24571 277.92
Employee bensfits expense 31 50.33 S6.47
Depreciation and amortization expense 8-12 58046 491.09
Other expenses .32 54.81 34.58
‘Total Expenses 1,844.99 1,764.96
HI  Loss before exceptional tems und fax . (56.43) {136.69)
IV Bxceptional items {net) 39 7539 10.06
VY Share of profit of associates 81.13 816
VI Profit{loss) before tax {111+ IV + V) 100.99 (118,47
VII Tax expense '
Current tax 44 3542 i6.16
Deferred tax 0.42 (1.25)
3584 34.81
VI Profitf(loss) after tax from continuing eperaticns (VI - VII) 64,25 (153.38)
XIN Profit/(loss) for the period (VI + X]) 64.25 (153.38}
Other comprebensive income
{i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit of loss
a) Remensurement of net defined benefit plans {net of tax) 0.28) 0.55
b) Fair value of investments through other comprehensive income 100.96 {138.28}
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 8.56 34.80
XII Otlier comprehensive income 109.24 (102.93)
XIV Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (XiI'+ X{II) 173.49 {256.31}
XV Profit/(loss} for the period attribotable to:
- Owners of the company 24.76 (130.07)
- Non-controlling interests 39.49 {23.31}
Qtlrer comprebensive income for {he period attributable to; _
= Owners of the company 109.24 (102.93)
- Non-controlling interasts - -
Total comprebiensive ncome for the period afiributable to:
- Qwners of the company 134.00 (23300
= Non-congrolling interests 39,49 (23.31)




L&T Infrastructore Bevelopment Projects Limited
Cansoligated Profit & foss for the year ended March 31, 2022

XVi Earnings per equity share (face value of ¥ 10 cach)

Continning yperations
(a) Equity shares
(1) Basic
{2y Difuted

(b) Special equity shares
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

43

039 £2.07)
039 (2.07)

Refer notes forming part of the conselidaied Tnd AS financial statements 1to68

As per our report attached
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Ch rzed Accountants

—— e

1. Ravi Sankar
Partner

Membership Ne. 025929

Piace: Chennai
Date; May 05, 2022

For and on behaff of the Board of Directors

QJWL-/«%?

R. Shankar Raman
Chairman

(DIN: 060§9798)
Place: Mumbal

Pramod Sushila Kapao
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: May 05, 2022

Dip.KKSen
Mannging Director
{DIN:03554707)
Place : Mumbai

A -
Pradeapta-Kumar Pohzao

Company Secretary

Place; Chennai
Date: May 05, 2022




I Infrasiracture Development Projects Limited

soliduted statement of cash flows for the year eaded March 31, 2022 ¢ crase
o Particulars Year ended Year ended
N 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flows frant operafing activities
Profit{ Loss) from consinuing operations 64.25 (153.38)
Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operalions - -
Adjustments for:
Tax expenses 3584 3497
Exceptional items {75.39) (10.06)
Share of associates {8113) (8.16}
Depteciation & amortisation expense 58046 491.09
Tmpairment of financial assets/ other non cash charges B -
Liabilities no longer required writien back (0.27) -
(Gain)loss on fair value measurement (2.87) (1.27}
{Gain)loss on sale of investments {13.69) (3.12)
[nterest tncome {37.58) {54.20)
(Gainyloss an disposal of property, plant and equipment 6.25 (0.40)
Provision for doubtful loans and advances - -
Finance costs 893.52 842.38
Operating profit/(loss) before adjnstments for aperating ssets / liabilities 1363.34 1,135.79
{Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables 179.18 (171.73}
{Increase)/decrease in Other receivables 113.76 266,30
(Incrense)/decréase in Other financial assets 1277 {0.72)
(Inctease)/decréase in Other non-financial assels (11.85) 35
Increase/(decreass) in Trade payables (3.50) (11.84)
Increase/{decrease) in Other financiat liabitities {23.63) {28.59)
Increase/{decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities 11,06 {23.36}
Inerease/(decrease) in provisions {263.89) (23.91)
Cash generated from/(used) in operations 137629 I.140.54
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) {19.37} (84.43)
Net Cash generated from/(nsed) in operating activities 1,356.92 1,856.1f
3 Cash flows from investing activities
Puirchase of property, plant and equipment and additions to intangible assets {incl. CWIP) (4.80) (12.22)
Proceeds from digposal of propetty,plant and equipments aud irfangible assets 1,0959.13 2714
Dividend received from associute - 0.49
Interest received 37.58 54.20
Sale/(putchase) of current investments {net) (436.51) 262.40
Proceeds on distribution of unit capital by Infrastnictare investment trust 9.20 8.20
Investment in infrastructure investment trust 564.22 -
Changes in other bank balances {236.23) (357.72)
Proceeds fram disposal of assets held for sale (net) - -
Settlement on account of crystallized claims {8.33)
Net cash generated from/(used) in investing activities 1,624.06 (17.51)
C [Cash flows frem financing activities
Proceeds from issue of capital - -
Buy back of preference shares including taxes {subordinated liabilities) - -
Proceeds from/(repayment of) borrowings (net) (2,215.56) {248.85)
Discharge of deferred payment liabilities (E1.53) 61.77)
Interest paid {643.73) (700.96)
Net Cash generated from/{uzsed) in financing activities {2,870.82) {{,011.58}
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {489.84) 27.02
Opening cash and cash equivalents 557.21 530.49
Closing ¢ash and cash eguivalents 67.37 557.21
fes:
1} Cash flow statemeiit has been prepared wnder the Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows as per Companies {Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules 2015,
2]  Alse refer notes forming part of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the-year ended 31 March 2022
As per our Teport attached For and ot behalf of the Board of Directors
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartozed Accountants
FR7. Q005118 h‘j Yosr N S
Ao R. Shaukar Raman DipK.SEn W e
( ! B Chairman Managing Direetor
{ . _‘;},.,_ —
. LI L (DIN: 00015798} (DIN:G3554707)
ﬂvi Saukar Plaee; Mumbai Place - Mumbsi
Fartner

Membership No. 025429

Place: Chennal
Date: May 05, 2022

Pramed Sushila Kapoor
Chief Finaneial Officer
Place: Chennai

Drate; May G5, 2022,

A%
Pradeepta Kumar Puban
Company Szcretary
Place: Chennai
Dute. May 035, 2022



frastructure Development Projects Limited
lated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

y share capital
As at 31 March 2022 As 4t 31 March 2021
Particulars Number of Number of
T crore Ferore
shares shares
4, subscribed and paid up equity share capital at the beginning of the year | 628,521,764 625.52 | 629521764 | 620.52
Shares tssued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
4, subseribed and paid up equity share capital at the end of the year (29,521,764 62952 | 629,521,764 | 62952
*equity
T crare
Reserves and sarplus
Other
Statutory [ Seenrities Capi!:fl DEbemEre General | Retained | comprehensive Total
Reserve Premium redemption ) Redemption reserve Earnings income
reserve Teserve
ice as on 01 April 2020 9833 007,45 1,137.00 37801 1521 (1.506.62) 80.73 1,200.1t
t for the year ended 31 March 2021 - - - - - {130.07) (130.0T
: comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (102,93} {102.93)
| Comprehensive Income for the year 98.33 997.45 1,137.60 378.01 15.21 (1,636.69) (2220 967.11
f comprehensive income - remeasurements of net defined ; _ B _ . 0.55 (0.55) _
it plans [Refer Note 22¢] i i
nce as on 31 March 2021 ) 98.33 997.45 1,137.08 - 15.21 {1,636.14) (22.75) 967.11
t for the year ended 31 March 2022 - - - - - 24.76 - 24.76
i comprehensive incomne for the year - - - - - - 109.24 103,24
| Comprehensive Income for the year 98,33 99745 1,137.00 - 15.21 {1,611.38)] 86.49 1,100,11
r comprehensive income - remeasurements of net defined . N _ ) . (0.28) 028 -
it plans [Refer Note 22¢] . - "
sfer-to/{from) debenturs redemption reserve - - - {135.60) 8.82 130,78 - .
sment an aceount of crystalflized claims ) - - - - - (8.53) - (8.53)
sfer of gain on sale of FVTOCI equily instrument “ - - | - - £.58 (8.58) -
srity interest in subsidiary company not apportioned earlier . _ R R . 16.90 R 1690
i note 53)
nce as on 31 March 2022 98.33 997.45 1,137.00 (13960 2403 (1,463.93) 78.19 1,109.48
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
er gur reporl attached R. Shankar Raman /
Brabmayya & Co., Chairman k
téred Accountants {DTN: 00019798) {DIN:03554707)
:,;'ﬁb Place: Mumbai Place ; Mumbai
H
-
- E \ ’ﬁ}'ﬁ .-..r-lﬁ&\ / ] /
u¥-Sankar st Pramod Sushila Kapooor Pradeepta Kumar Puhan
1er Chief Financial officer Company Secretary
tbership No. 025929 Place: Chennai Place: Chennei
‘Date: May 05, 2022 Date: May 05, 2022

3 Chennai
:May 05,2022



L&T Infeastructure Development Profects Limited
Nates forming part of the Consolidated lnd AS Financiad Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1 Siguificant Accounting Policies

This note provides a fist of the significant accounting poticies adopted in the preparation of these financial staterments. ‘These pelicies have hesh consistently
applied to all the years psesented, unless otherwise stated.

A Basis of preparation
(a) Conpiiance with Ind AS

The Group's financial statements comply in 2}l material respects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companics Act,
2013 {the Act) read with Compandes {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (aa amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Division 111 of Schedule IT1 of Companies Aci, 2013 vide Notification No. GSR. 1022(E)
dated October 11, 2018, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India for Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC).

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting ield on 5th May 2021
(5 Basks of mreasurentent

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial statements which are measured at (air value as explained in
the accountisig policies below. Historient cost is penerally besed on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability i an orderly transaction behween market participanis at the measurentent «ate.

fc} Use of estinutes and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the mamagement to make estimates and assumptions- considered in the
reparted amounts of assets, liabilities (including coatingent liabilities), mcome and expenses. The management befieves that the estimates used in preparation
of the financial statements are prudent and reascuzble. Actual results conid differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual resulis and the
estimates are recognised in the periods in which the reselts ars known / materialize. Estimates include the usefid lives of property plant and equipment and
intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future cbligations in respect of rotirement benefit plans, provisions for major mamienance
obligations, fair value measurement etc.

(e} Adeasnrement of fulr valives

A number of the accounting policies and digclosures require the measuresnent of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and Yabilities. Fair
value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the depree 1o which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

» Level 1 inputs ore quoted prices {unadjusted} in active matkets for identical assets or linbilities that entity can access at measurement date

+ Level 2 inputs ether than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for ke asset.or liability, either direcily {as prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices); and

~Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

B Presentstion of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format preseribed in Schedule 11t to
the Companies Act, 2413 (*the Act"). The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requirememnts of Ind AS 7 “Siatement of Cash
Flows". The disclosare requirements with respect to ftems in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in Schedule I ro the Ack, are
presented by way ofnotes forming parl of accounts along with the other nofes required to be discloged under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI
{Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

Currency of the primacy sconomic environment in which the Group operates is indisn Rupee (INR) in whick the Group primarily generates and expenses
cash. Accordingly, the Managemeat hus assessed ita funetional currency to be Indian Rupee (INR). Amounts in the financial statements are presented in

Indian Rupees Crores since the management is of the view that presenting the sanse will result in better quralitative presentation of the financial statements.




L&T Infrastractore Bevelopment Projeets Limited
Notes forralng part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financiat Statements for the year ended March 31, 2622

€ Basis of consolidation

(i) The consoliduted financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. For this purpose, an entity which is,
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Pareat Company is treated as subsidiary, The Parent Company together with its subsidiaries constitnte the Group.
Contro] exists-when the Parent Company; directly ar indirectly, lizs power over the investee, is exposed 1o variable retums Bom its invalvement with the
investee and has the ebility to use its power 1o affect its retums,

{ii) Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent
Company, directy or indirectly, lnses control of'the subsidiary. focome and expenses of « subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Pasent Company, directly or indirectly, gains control until the date when the Paremt Company,
directly or indirectly, ceases 10 contrdl the subsidiary.

() The consolidated financial statements of the Gronp combines Bnancial stitemenis of the Pareat Company and fts subsidiaries line-by-line by adding
fogether the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and unrealized profits/flosses on inta-
2romp Websactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmenized lo ensure the consistency with the policies
adopted by the Pareat Company. The coasclidated financial statemienis have been presented to the extent passible, in the same manner as. Parent Company’s
standalone financizl statements.
‘Profit or Joss and each component of ather contprehiensive income are altributed to the owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controlfing interests and
have been shown separately in the financial statements

(iv) Non-centrolling interest represents that part of the total comprebensive income and net assels of subsidiaries attributable to interests which are net owned,
direclly or indirectly, by the Parent Company.

{v} The gainsflosses in respect of part divestment/dilation of stake in subsidiary companies ot resulting in coding of contro), are recognised directly in other
equily attributable to the awners of the Parent Company,

(vi) The gainsflosses in respect of divestment of stake resulting in ceding of control in subsidiary companies are fecopnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
The itvestment representing the inferest retained in a former subsidiary, if any, is initially recogmised at its fair valne with the comesponding effect recopnised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss 25 on the date the control is-ceded. Such retained interest i3 subsequently accounted as an associate or & joint venture or
financinl asset.

(vii). Asthe intangible assets recognised under service copcession arranpenteats are acquired in exchange for infrastrucrure construction/

upgrading services, gains/(losses) on intra-group transactions are treated as realized and not eliminated on consolidation.

{viii) Lavestment in associate company has been accoumted for, using equity metliod as per Ind AS 28 - Investments iz Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statesnents, Accordingly, the share of pro§it! loss of the associate (the loss being restricted 10 the cost of investment) bas been added to / dedueted from the
cost of investment of the associate. The difference betwesn the cost ofinvestment in the associate and the share of net assets st the time of aceqmisition of
shares in the associate is identified in e consolidated francial statements as Goodwill or Capital reserve as the ¢osc may be,

(ix) Goodwill an consclidation represents the excess of cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the Mmvestment in the subsidizry oves the Group’s
share in the net warth of a subsidiary. For this parpose, the Group's share of net warth is determined on the basis of the Iatest financial statements, prior to the
acquisition, after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such financial statements and the date of respective acquisition. Capital
reserve on consalidation represents excess of the Group's share in the net worth ofa subsidiary over the cost of acquisition at each point oF time of making the
investment in the subsidiary.

Goodwill ou consalidation arising on acquisitions o or afier the date of transition represents the excess of{a) consideration paid for acquiring control and (b}
acquisition date fair value of previously held ownership inerest, if any, in a sabsidiary over the Group's share in the fair value of the et assels (including
identifiable intangibles) of the subsidiary 25 on the date of. acquisition of contrel,

Goodwill on consolidation is allocated to cash Bencrating units or group of cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synecgies of the
acquigition, )

Goodwill arising o consolidation 5 not smortised, however, it is tested for impairment anmyally, In the event of cessation of opérations of a subsidiary, the
unimpaired goodwill is written off fully,




L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limdted
Notes formfng part of the Consolidated Ind AS Finatcixl Statements for the year ended Marek 31, 2022

B Revenue recoguition

E

Revenue (5 measured at the fair volug of the consideration received or receivabile. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of duties ang taxes and net of
discourts, rebates and other similar allowances,

Thie Group recogmizes revenue when the arount of revenue can-be reliably measured, it is probable that the fiture economic benefits would Tlow o the entity
and specific critesia have been met for each of the activities deseribed helow.. The Group bases its estiruates on bistorical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, type of ransaction and specifics of fhe arrangemend,

2} Toll collections from the users of the infrastructure facility constrecied by the Group under the Service Concession Arrzngement are accounted for
based on actual coliection, nzf of revenue share payable under the Concession agreement wherever applieable. Revenue feom sale of swart cards is
aceounted on cash basis.

b} lnterest income from a finencial asset is recopmised when it is probable that the economic benefits wiil fow to the Group and the amount of income can
e measured reliably. Intercst is accrued on time proportion-basis, by reference 10 the principle outstanding at the effective inferest mte,

¢} License fees for way-side amenitics are accounted on accrual basis.

d} Contract revenue for fixed price contracts is recognised only to ihe extent of cost incurred that it is probable will be recoverable 1ill-such time the
autcome of the job canaol be aseertained reliably. When the outcome of the contract is ascertained reliably, contract revenue is recognised at cost of

work performed on 1he contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method. The Group recopnized revenue to the extent of
performance cblgations campleted.

For the: purposes of recognising revenue, contrgct revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract, the variations in contract
work, claims und ficentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and they are etpabls of being reliably measused.

For this purpose, acinal cost includes cost of land and developmental rights but excludes borrowing cosu Expected loss, if any, an the constucton
activity is fecognised a3 an expense in the period in which it is foreseen, icrespective of the stage of completios: of the contract.

When it is probable that total cantract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expecled loss is recopnised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the perlod in which such probability cccurs.

) Fair value gains on current investments carried at fair value are included in other income.

) Dividend income is recognised wheg the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date.
g Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to veccive arises.

Inventaries
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Net sealizable value represenits the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and casts necessary to make the sale. Project work-in-progress is carmied at cost net of incidental income.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances include cash and cash equivalents and other bank balaaces. Cash and cash eguivadents include cash on hand, balances with banks and
highly liquid fimancial instrurnents, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash tHat are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and
having eriginal matarity of three months or less from the date of purchase. Other bank balances inchudes fixed deposits with ariginal maturity of more than
three months from the date of purchase.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepared seprepating the cash flows from operating, investing.and financing sctivities. Cash How Gom operatiag activities is repocted
using indirect methed, Under the indirect method, the net profit{loss) is adjusted for the effects of

(2) transactions of a non-tash eature;
{b) any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments-and,
(c) all other items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows:

“The cash flows from aperating, investing and {inancing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available information. Cash and cash equivalents
(including bank batences) are reflected 4s such in the Cash flow statement. Those cash 2nd cash equivalents which are not available for generel nse as on e
date of balance sheet are also included under this eategary with a specific disclosure.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Domestic Companies

Freehold land is cacied as historical cast. All other itemss of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost loss nccumnizied depreciation and
cumplative impaimeent, Historical ¢ost includes eéxpenditure that is directly atributable to acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recogniscd as a separate asset, a3 appropriate, onty whert it is probable that the future economic
benefits associzted with the item will flow 1o the entity and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably. Properties in the-conrse for production, supply or
administrative purposes arg carried af ¢ost, less any recognised impainment loss. Cost inchides expenditure that is direcly ateributable and for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Gronp's accounting palicy. Such propertics are classified to the appropriate catenories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended usc. Depreciation of these assets, an the same basis as other property asséts, commences when the assets
arg ready for their intended use.
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Depreciation is recognised 5o a5 o write off the cost of assets {other than freehold l2nd and assets under constiction) less their residua) values over their

usefil lives using the straight-line method, The estimuted usefil lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each year, with the effect of any changes

{n estimate accounted for on & prospective basis.
The estimated useful livas of the assets as per management evaluation are as follows:

Category of Praperty, plant and equipment Estimated usefil life
{in vears)

Buildings including owoership flais 50
{Plant and equipment:

D@ Sets 12
Air-corditioning and refiiperation equipment 12
Split AC and Window AC 4
Furniture and fixtures jii]
Yehicles:

Motor cars {other than those under the Company owned car schieme) 7
Motor cycles, scoaters and other mopeds 10
Tracters and other vehicles 8

Category of Property, plaot and cquipnment Estimated usefinl life
(in years}

Gifice cquipment:

Multifanctional devices, printers, switches and projectors 4
Other office equipment 5
Computers:

Servers and systems [
Dlesktops, laptops, ete., 3
Electrical installations 10

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecogmized upon dispesal. Any gein or loss atising on the disposal of an item of prdperty plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the zsset and is recognised it the statement or profit

and loss.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in fature periods in sach a manner that the revised camying amount of the asset is allocated over its

remaining useful jife.
I Amortisation of intangible assets

Toll callection rights in respect of road projects are amogtized over the period of concession using the revenue based amortisation methad preseribed under
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Under the revenue based method, smostisation {5 provided based on proportion: of actual revenue earned Gil2 the end
of the year 1o the total projected revenue from the intangible asset expected to be earmed over the concession pericd. Total projected revenue is reviewed af the
end of each financial year and is edjusted 10 reflect the changes in carlier estimate vis-a-vis the actual revenue camed till the end of the year so that the whole

of the cost of the intangible asset i3 amortised over the concession period,

For wansition to Ind AS, the Group has availed the option 1o continue with the revenue based amortisation method prescribed under Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013 for ol collection rights recognised under service concession arrangements recognised for the period ending immediately before the

beginning of the first ind AS reporting period as per the previous Indian GAAP.
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J  Intangible assets
a) Rights under Service Concession Arrangements

latangible assets are recoguised when it & probable iat future economie benefits that are attdbulable to the asset will flow 1o the enterprise and the cost of the
ass¢t can be measured reliably. Inmngible assets.are stated at original cost net of law/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumuiative
impairment,

Tol Projects (Right io charge usets)

Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, represent the right to collect tolf revenue during the: concession period in
respect of Public-Private-Parmership ("PPP"} project undertakex by the Group. Toll callection rights are capitalized as intangible assels upon completion of the
project at the cumulntive construction costs plus the present value of obligation towards negative grants and additional concession fee payable to National
Highways Authority of India ("NHAI")State antkorities, if any. Till the completion of the project, the same -is recognised under intangible nssets under
development The revenue from fofi collection/other income during the construction period is reduced from the cartying amount of intangible assets under
devefopment.

The cost incurred for wotk beyond the originat seape per concession agreement (nomally referred as "change of scope”} s capitalized as intangible asset
under development as and when incurted. Refinburserent in respect of such amounts from NHALState authoritics are reduced frem the carying emount
intangible assats to the extent of actual receipts.

Extension of coneession period by the authority in compensation of claims made are capitalised as parv of toll collection rights af 1lie time of admission of the
claim ar when there is 8 eoutrachual right fo extension at the estimated amount of claims sdimiticd or computed based on average collections whichever is more
evident.

Any vibility gap funding (VGE) in the form of equity support in coanection with Project construction is accounted as a receivalile and is adjasted to the extent
of actual receipts.

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expeases that are directly sutributable to the development or acquisition of
imtangible assets are allocated and capitalized as part of cost of the intangible assets.
Intangible assets {at not ready for 1he intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are diselosed as “Intangible assets under devefopment®.
b) Other intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty eredits availed, if eny, less accumulated amortization and camulative impairment, Intangible assels

are cecognized when it is probable dhat the fitture economic benefits thar are attributable to the psset will Bow to the enterprise and the cost of the nsset cag be
measured reliably,

Intangible assets are derecognized whea no fufuse economic benefits are expected from use or dispusal.
K Exceptional items

On certaint oceasions, the size, type or incidence of an ftem of income or expense is such that its disclosure impraves an understonding of the performance of
the Graup. Such income or expense is classified a5 an exceptional ftem and accordingly disclosed in the financial statements,

L Forelgn currency transactions and franslations
8} The functional currency of the Grovp in Indisn Rupes

b} Financial statements of oversees non-integral operations are translated as under ;
iy Assets and lisbilities at rate prevalling at the end of the year. Depreciation and amortisation is acoounted ¢ the same rate at which assels are
converted
i} Revenues and expenses at yeatly average rates prevailing duriag the year

¢) Tansactians i foreign currencies entered Ita by the Group are sccounsed at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaciior or at rates that
clesely approximate the rate at the daie of the yansaction.

d) Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or o teporting of sonetary items at cach balance sheet date at the closing rate are
recogmised as income or expense in the period in which thoy arise except
(i) exchange differences on foreign carrency borrowings selating 10 assets under constritction for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment fo interest costs in z foreign cuwrrency not transtated.

{if) exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks: and

(i} exchange differences on monstary items receivable from ar payable 10 a forcign operation for whicl sctlement 75 neither planmed nor likely to
oceur (therefore forming part of the net investment in foreign operation), which are recogmised initially in other comprefiensive income and
reclassified fram equity fo profit or loss on tepayment of tha mometary items.
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¢}  Exchange differcaces arising ve settlement / restatement of short-term forcign currency monstary assets and labilisies of the Group are recognised as
income or expense in the Statensent of Profit and Luss.

L) Financial statements of foreign operations are translated inlo Indian Rupees 28 follows:
(i} assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are transtated at the closing rate at the date af that balance sheet:
(if) income and expenscs for each income staterment zre translated at average exchange raes; and
{iv) all resulting exchange differences are Fecognised in ofher comprehensive income and accumulated in &quity as foreign curency translation reserve
(FCTR) and the same is subsequently reclassified 10 profit or loss an disposal of a foreign operation.

g)  Exchange difference on lasig-term foreign currency monetary items: The exchonge differences arising on setlement / restaterment of lang-tesm foreign
curency monetary iterns are capitalized as part of the depreciable fixed assets to which the maonetary ifent relates and depreciated over the remaining
usefil life of such assets,

B)  Premium / discount on forward exchange coniracts, which are not miended for treding or specwlation purposes, are amartized over the period of the
contracts if such contracts relate 1o monetary items 2s at the Balance Sheet date, Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward
exchange contract is recognised as income or os expense in the period in which such cancellation or renewal i made.

M Government grants

Government grants are recognised whea there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditiens attached to them and the granis will be
received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or oﬁlenvise_ acquire capital assets are presented by
deducting tiem from the canying valne of the assets, Governmest grants in ihe naawe of prometers’ contribution like vestment subsidy, where no
tépayment s ordinarily expecred in respect thereof, are treated as capital reserve;

Employee benefiis

Emploves benefits include provident fund, superannuation fand, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensated absences, lonp service awards
and post-employinent medical benefits,

(@) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefiis Gllivig due wholly within twelve months of reedesing the service are classified s short tetn emplayee benefits, The benefits like
salaries, wages, shiort tenn.compensated absences etz and the expected cost of honus, ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the emploves
readers the related service,

The undiscounted amount of shortterm employee benefits expected to be paid n exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised
during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to
occur within twetve montths after the end of the period in which the employes renders the ralaged service. .

The cost of short-term compensated absences is aceounted 25 under ; ’

() in case of accumulated cowpepsated absences, when employees render the strvices that increase their entitlement of fature compensated absences;
and

(b} in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences oceur.

{ii) Post employment benefits
{a) Defined contribution plans:

‘The Group's State governed provident fund linked with emplayee pension scheme are defined contribution plans, The contribution paid! payable imder
the scheme is reconised during the period in which the employee renders the related service,

() Defined benefit plans:

The employees' gratuity fund scheme and e provident fund scheme managed by dtic trust of the holding company are the Group's defined benefit
plans. The present value of the abligatica voder such defined benefit pians is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Proiected wnit credit
methed, which recognizes cack period of yervice as giving rise fo additiona! pnit of employee bencfit entitfement and measures each unit sepaately to
build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured ot the present value of the estimated fisture cash Rows. The discount rate used for determining the present vatue of the
obligation vnder defined banefit plans, is based on the market yicld on govemment securities of a maturity period squivalent to the weighted average
pratuzity profile of the refated obligations at the balance sheet date,

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan assets (excluding net interest) and any change in the effect of ssget ceiling (if
applicable) are recogmised in other comprebensive inconte and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified o profit or boss.

The interest element in the actgarial valuation of defined benefit plas, which comprises the implicit interest cost and the impact of changes in-discount
rate, is ¢lassitied as eraplovee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss,

i case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan agsets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognize the ebligation
on @ aet basis.

Gaitts or Josses on the curtailment or setifement of any defined benefit plan zre recognised when fhe custailment or seffement occurs. Past service cost
is recognised as expense at the sarlier of the plan amendment of curtaiinent and when the Conipany recognizes relased resfructuring costs op
termination benefits,

(iliy Other long term employee benefits:
The present value of the obligstion under loag tems employes benefit phans such as compensated absences and Ydbility under retention pay scheme is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected unit credit method. .
The abligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the present value of the
cbligetion under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yiel on govemment securitics of 2 maturidy bered equivalent @ the weighted average
maturity profile of tha related obligations at the Bakance Sheet date.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the retarm on Plen assets (excluding uet interest ) and any change in the effect of asset ceiling
{whercver gasfimmie) ure recognized immedintely in profit or loss.
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Gains or losses on the cuntailmeat or settlement of any long-term employee benefit plan are recopnized when the certailment or setlement ocours. Past

service, cost is recognized as expense 2t the earlier of the plan amendment of curtailment and when the Group recognizes related restructuring costs or
ternsination benefts,

€iv} Termination benefits
Termittation benefits such as compensation under voluntary scticement cum pension scbeme (if any) are recogaised a3 expense and & liability s
recoguised at the earlier of when the Group can no longes withdraw the offer of the. termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related
restructuring costs.

O Borrowing costs

Brerowing cosis include interest ealenlated using the effective interest method, amorisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchenge differences arising from
foregn currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded 25 an adjustment to the interest coit, Borrowing costs, aliocated to and urilized for acquisition,
capstruction or greduction of qualifying assets, pertnining fo Yo peried from commencement of activities relating 1o ‘construction / development of the
qualifying asset up to the date of capitalization of such asset dre added to the cost of the assets A qualifying asset fs an asset that necessarily require a
substantial period of time to fet ready for s intended use for sale. All oiber borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they are
incurred,

P Scgment reporting

Operating segments are those components of the business whose aperating results are yegularly reviewed by the chief operaling decision making hedy in the
Campany 1 make decisions for performence assessment and resource allocation

The reporting of segmeat information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resouree allocation to the
segments

Segment accounting policies-are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. Segmeat revenue, segment expenses, sepment assets and sepment lisbilities
liave heen identified (o segments on the basis of their. relationship to the operating activities of the segment. The identification of operating segments and
reparting of amounts is consistent with performance assessment and resource allocation by the management.

Inies-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which ore primarily detertiuined based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group a5 & whole and are not alfocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under
‘ungllocated revenue £ expenses f assets / Habilities.

} Leases

The Company assesses whether a confrack contains & lease, &1 iuception of 4 conlract A contract is, of contains, 2 Jease if the contract conveys the right 1o
control the use of an identified asset fora period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the uss of an
identitied asset, the Company assesses wheiher(§) the comract involves the use of an identified ssset(ii} the Company hias substentially dll of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct the use of thic asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset(*ROU™) and u corresponding lease liabitity for all kease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for fcases with 2 term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and Jow value feases. For these short temn and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the leass payments as an operating expense on a straight-fine basis over the term of the lease.

Certain [ease arrangements includes e options 1o extend or terminate the lease hefore the end of the Tease term. ROU assets md lease liabiliies includes these
options when it is teasenably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of use assets are initially recogtiized at cost, wltich comprises the initial atount of ihe lease liability adjusted for any Iease payments made atar prier
to the commencement date of the Iease plus any initial direct costs less any fease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the fease term and usefil lifs of he nndoriving
asser. Riglt of use assets are evaluated for recoversbility whenever events or changes in circumsiances indicate that their camrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpase of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e.the higher of the fair value less cost to seli and the value-in-use) ¢ detenmined
oz an individoal asset basis unless the asses does not geperate cashBlows that are largely independent of those from other-assets I sueh cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU) Lo which the asset belongs,

The tease liability #s initially measured at amortized cost ak dhe present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the inlerest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing Tates in the country of domicile of these feases, Lease liabilities are
remessured with a corresponding adfustment to the related right of use asset if ke Contpany changes its asszssment if whether it will exercise an extension or
a tersnination option. Lease liability and ROU agset have been sepasately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been clossified as financing
cash flows,

R Earnings per shave

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividiag the profit / (loss} for the yese by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted eamings per shase is computed by dividing shie profic £ (boss) for the year 2s adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or incéme
{net of any attributable faxes) refating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average munber of equily shares considered for deriving basic
eamings per share and the weighted averape number of equity shares which could have been fssued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Potential equity shares are deemed to be diludve only if their conversion to equity shares would. decreass the net profit per sharo fram continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shaves are deemed to be converted as af the begining of e period, unless thoy have been issued at a fater date. ‘The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds reecivable kud the shares been actually issued -at fair value (i.c. averape market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are detetrined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutive equity shares are adjusted fos share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as apprepriate.




L&T Iufrastructure Development Projects Limited
Notes forming part of the Conselidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2002
S Income taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable ¢n ¢urrent year's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes
in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax logses, The current income tax charge is celculzted on the basis of
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management pericdically evaluates, positions taken in tax retums with nspeet 10

sitations in which applicable tax regulation is subject lo interpretation and provisions are established where appropriate on the basis of amonms expetted to
be paid to the tax autborities.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax faws, which gives fature economic benefits in the form of adfustment to future ipeome lax
liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entity will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised 25 an asset when
it is highly probable that futtre economic benefit associated with it will flow to the entity,

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax beses of assels and labilides and their carrying amousts in the
-fnancial statements. However deferred incomie tax is not accounted if it arises from the initia recognition of an asset or Lability that at the time of the
transaction affects neither (he accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using {ax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected fo apply when the relued deferred income tox, asseliability is realised or settfed.

Deferred tax sssets. are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that futere taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temperary differences and losses.

Deferred fax assets and deferred tax Linbilities are offset, when the enfity kas a legally enforceable right to offset corrent tax assets and lisbilities and when the
deferred tax balances related to the same authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except 1o die extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprebensive income or directly in
equity wherein the refated tax is atso recognised in other eompreliensive income or dicectly in equity,

T Impafrment of assets

The carrying vales of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet dats are reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment exists. The
followmg intangible assets are testad for impairment each financial year even if thers is o indication that the asset 15 impaired:
(2) an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and (p) an intangible asset that is amortized with indefinite usefisl hife,

If the camying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount. The impaiment loss is
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unfess the agset is camied at revalued amdunt, in which case eny impainoent loss of the revalued
essel is eated a5 4 revaluation decrease to e extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset..

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flotys are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
thse nsset for which the estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted,

When there is indication that an impainment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may
have decreased, such reversal of impainment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass, o the exfent the amount was previously charged to the
Statemeny of Profit and Loss: In case of revalued assets sach reversal is not recognised.

i Provisisns, contingent Kabilitles and contingent asscts

A provision is recognised when the Group has @ present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to setife-the oblization in respect of which a reliable estimate can be nrade.

The amount recegnised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into-account the risks and uncertaindes surrounding the oblipation. When a provision is measured using the cash fows estimated to setile the preseat
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of mongy is malerial)

When some ot all of the econormic henefils required to settle 2 provision are éxpected to be recovered from a third prarty, a receivable is recognised as ap ssset
if itis virtually certain that the reimbursement wilt be received and the asmommt of the recsivable can be measured rehiably. :

Contingent lishilitles are disclesed in netes & case of a present obligation arising fom past events, when i is it probabie frai an ouifiow of resources wiil be
required to seitle the obligation or a present obligation arising from past evemts, when no reliable estimate.is possible . Contingent assets are disclosed in the
fnancia) stalements whese an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

¥ Financial [nstruments

‘Financial assets and financial lizhilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments, Financial assels and ;
financiz] Yabilities are ivitially measured at fairvalue. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable 1o the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial ‘
labilities {other than fimuncial assets and nancial liabilitics at fuir value through profit or loss) are added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the Snancial :
assets or financial fiabilities, as appropriate, ou initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets. or financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or foss,

a}  Finoncial Assefs

Al recagnised financial asscts are subsequently meagured in their entirely at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets.

i. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances also includs fixed deposits, margin money deposits, eannarked balances with banks aod other bank balances which have
restrictious on repamristien. Short ferm highly Equid investrents being ot free: from mare than insignificant risk of change are not included as
part of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafls which are part of theé cash manapement process is included as part of cash and cash
equivalents.

i Financial assets af amortized cost

Finnneial assets are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest method if these financial assets are held withia a
business whose objective is to hold these assels in.order to Gollect contracteal cash flows and the contractyz! 1erms of the financial assel pive rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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ik

iv.

v

Finagcial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income (FYOCT)

Financisl agsets re measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assefs are hetd within a business whose
ebjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flews that ara solety payments of principal and interest an the priccipal amount ouistanding, ‘The Group, en an
instrument-wise basis, opts o consider cevtain Investment in equity mstruments as rueasired at fair value through other comprehensive income.
*These nvestments are disclosed separately in the finaacial statements,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVEPL)

Financial assets are Measared at fair value through profit or foss unless it is measured at amortised cost or ab fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recoguition. E.g. Investments in musual fands,

Impairment of financial assets

‘The Group applies the expected credit foss nodel for recogmising jmpairment Inss on finencial astets measured ot amortized cost, debt
instrunents at FVTOCT, lease receivables, trade receivables and other conbactual rights to receive cash or othier financial asset and fnancial
pguarantess not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses ase thre weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default accurring as the weights. Credif loss is the
difference between all coatractua! cash flows that are due to e Group in aceordance with the contract/agreement and all the cash flows that the
Group expects o receive {i.c.. all cash shontfalls), discounted gt the wriginal effective interest rate. The Group estimates cash flows by considering
a1l contractual terms oF the financial instrument, through the expected life of the financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for & financial instrament 4 an amount equal to the fife-tinte expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increase significantly since initial recognition. 1€ the credit risk bas not increased significantly, the Group measures
the Joss allowance at an ameunt equal to ) 2-month expected credit losses. i2-menth expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected
credit losses and represent the life-fime cash shorifalls that will result if the default ocours within 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are
not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.
When making the assessment of whether there has been 2 significant increase in credit risk since initial recogmition, the Group uses the changs in
the risk of a defult occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instend of 2 change in the amount of the expected credit Joss. To
achieve that, the Group compares the risk of 8 default cocurring.on the financial mstrument as at the reporting dato with the risk of a default
cecurring on initial recognition and cousiders reasonabls and suppertable informatien, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit sisk since inftial recognition.
Derecognition of financiat asset
A financial asset is primarily derécognized when;

. the rights to receive cash flows from the-asset have expired, or

. the Group has fransfisred it rights to receive cash flows from the asset of has assumed an obligation to pay the teceived cash flows in
Full withotst material delay to a third party under 1 pass-hrough amangement; and with ajthe Group has transferred substantially all the
visks and rewerds of the asset, or b) the Group has nefther transferred nor tretained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transfured control of fhe asset.

b}  Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at fair value through profit ot loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial lisbility is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. A financial lability
is ciasgified as lreld For rading if:

v Jthas been incumed principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

- Oninitial tecognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group mzpages togetier and has 3 recent actual
pattern of sort-term profit-taking; or

o It is a derivalive that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial lability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition, if:
. Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or Tecognition: incansistency that would otherwise arise;

¢ The financial kability forms par of a group of financisl assets or financial abilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluation on a fuir value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and informention
about the grouping provided intemally on that basis; or

» It foxms past of 3 contract containing one or more embedded decivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL in accordance with [nd AS'109

Financial liabilities at FYTPL are stated at fair value, with afy pains or losses arisinig on Remeasurement recopnized in profit ar foss.
Finauclz liabilitfes at amortized cost |

Financial liahilities that are nat held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amentized cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods, The camyitig amounts of financial liabitities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the
effective inferest method.

Financial liabitities ot amortized cost
Financial lisbility is derecogrized when the obligation under the Lisbility is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Jasurance claims

Insuraree claims are-accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and 1o the extent that the amount recoverable ean bic mieasured
relinbly and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Goods and Service tax input credit

Goods and Service tax input credit s sceounted for in e books in the period in which the underlying service received is necounted and when there is
reasonabie certainty in availing / utilizing the credits,

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activitics of the Group end the normal time between acquisition of assets and their reatization in cash of cash equivalents, the
Group has determined its operating eycle as 12 manths for the purpose of classification of its assels and labilities as curent agd non-current,

Claims

Claims against the Groap not acknowledged as debts are disclosed uniter contingent lisbilities. Claims made by the Group are recogoised as and when the
samie is approved by the respective authoritics with whotn the claim is fodged.

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractuat expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed as follows:
{i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
(i} Uncallod liability on shares and other investments partly paid
(ii)y Fundingrelated commitment to subsidiary, nssociate and joint venture companies and
{iv}) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of monagemeat,

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details.




rture Development Projects Limited
art'of the Consclidaled Ind AS Fimancial Statemensss for the yeat ended March 31, 2422

o phant and eguipment ¥ crere
Cost Depreciation Boek Value
: Disposaly Disgpoaats!
Particulars Asat®l Asar3lL Asat o1 " ) Asat31 Asalst As =t 31
Additiens | Deledlons [Retlassified s . Forthe year | Deductions [ Reclassifiad as
April 2021 field for sple Mareh 2022 | April 2021 beld for sake March 2022) March 2022 | March 2021
Land 4.52 - - 4.52 - - - - - 4.52 452
- Owned 558 . - - 558 043 0,44 - - 1.27 431 4.75
Eguipoent A6z o8 4.27 - 3729 1573 0.8 1% - 3247 4.62 4.39
and Fixtures £33 L] 0.28 - 4.1t z4l 0,35 0.25 - Z5] L6g 192
726 033 158 . 6.0% 544 0.37 .20 B 5.61 .40 LR
uipment 595 013 028 - 58! 2m .57 019 - 331 251 3.0
5 .63 033 045 = 541 4.37 0.34 {1.40 - . 431 210 226
7450 1.69 £36 - 69,73 §1.71 2395 498 - 49,68 2006 15.19
pital wotk in progress i) 3.03
0.06 2621
tangible assety Torore
Cost Depreciation Impai as Book Value
Particufars As At 01 . Asat31 As 01 Asat3t Mareh| at3iMarch | Asqr3t | Asadl
Apr1 2021 Additions | Deletians Mareh 2022 | Aprfl 2021 Forthe year | Deductions 2022 2012 Mareh 2022 | March 2021
wdion rights 83549 0.06] 284230 805319 2.895.61 574,16 1,691.42 £.784,65 104.57 6.16397 7.701.30
2d Software pXeH] 0.70 - 9.70 1.05 AN - 435 - 3.35 1.95
1086447 0] 28003 8,061.90 Z,896.68 57746 1,691.42 1,750,800 10357 | 6,069.32 7,716.75
wpibie 2ssels under 5133 12,47
et
6,I21.55 775422

stection rights include amoevnts zecrued lowards negative grant payable sud edditional concession fee payable it respect of cenain projects, the details of which are given in Note |6 - Borowings; and discounted

sramt reeeived fom Crisss werks depatiment amounting 103 433.38 crore. fprevious yeor : & 433.38 crore )

3roup hes inade an adjisiment aggrepaling to ¥ 117.70 crote fprevious year . T 190,46 crore ) 1o the camying value of Toll collection rights ae ot 3} March 2022 in order to ensen: alignment in the method of

ion followed by all endties in the Group, These ameunts have been accounted for in the lidated financial based on a certificale pronvided by  Chartered Accountant.

igible assets wndar developmant fuchide € Nil crore (previous yeer 2 Nif crore) and Intangible assefs inctude " Nil crore {previous year ™ Nil crom}, being bonsawing cost capitalised during the veer in accordance

ounting Stendard {ind AS) 23 * Borrowing Cosls™

tGzent to the termination of the ion ag s of one of the subsidiary LET Cheneal Tada Toltway Limited (LTCTTLY. the toll caliection rights and the intangible assets under development have been de<tecognized
reswsation recelvable on zccotmt of termination in terms of the concession agreements is acomunied o8 1eceivable and included in Note 5.
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stment Property

Terore
Cast Bepreciation Book Yalue
Farticaiars Asatol Asat3L Asatil : As at31 Atat31 Asatal
Aprilzozy | Adéitions | Deletons | Disposats |\ G | o0 ogp | Fortheyear | Deductions | Dispasals Morect 2022| March 2022 | March 2021
Idings
eased out 233 - - - 233 .18 .05 - - .25 219 215
Total 2133 = - - 233 0,13: [1Xi] - - 0,13 250 2.18
e i
‘0at of leased out bujiding inelied hip of ah dation ol Mahumushiera of 0,13 <rore {acowm, deprecistion of T 0.64 crore) by holding 5 shares of Face value ™ 56 each in a co-operagive society.
devif] on eonsalidaden Torore
st Accumalated Amorfization Book Yahe
Disposnls!
FParticulars Asat0l . . Arat 3t Asat iy Asat it Asat3f Asnt 3t
Aprilzozy | Additlens | Deleionr | fmpafrment |y b ooy | apctizozy | Fortheyear [ Deductions ‘;:;’;f‘;,:‘ March 3022 | Afarch 2022 | March 221
dwifl on consclidation 11263 - - F2.63 B4.i6 - - B16 28.48 28.48
it 11163 - - - 112,63 4416 - - w B4.16 2348 18,43
retiztion, amortisation and impairntent ehxyged to the siatement of| profit anid loss:
Particulars Depreclation| Amonti Oyt Impairatent Total
wer Nate 9,10,11 and 12 3.00 37746 - - 320.46
rged to the stalssasent of prafit and loss 3.00 37146 - - 380.46
sified under - Dy jasin isation smd Imp 300 57746 - - -380.46
sified under - Exceptional items - - - - -

CHERNAI

INDIA
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prming part of the Consolidated Ind-AS Financial Statemants for the year ended March 3%, 20022

Financial assets - Cash and cash squivalents

Tarticulars

Asat 31 March 2022
¥ crore

As at 3f March 2021
% crore

Cash on hand
Balance with banks
n carmect accounts
in Trust retentios and escrow accounts

Fixed deposits incladed tntevest thereon {maturity less than 3 months)

.60

4.46
553
55.78
67.37

207

2923
1246
5344
557,20

Hote The Tnst Retention and Escrow ("TRA™) accounts carry # first charge to the extent of amounts payable as per the walarfafl
mechanism a5 defined in fhe Concession:agresment / Common foan agreement.

Financial assets » Other bank balances

Asat 3 March 2622

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars € crore T crore
Fixed (!cposlts including interest accrued thereen 432,10 95532
[roaturity mors than 3 manths]
Cashand bank balances not available for immediate use 226.29 33.58
Margin money deposits including interest accrued thereon 0.02 39.58
__LIsad1 TN

Fioancial assets - Trade receivables

PBarticuiars

As at 31 March 2022
T crore

Asat 31 March 2021
T crore

Receivables considered good - Unsecurad
Lass - Allawance for expected credit loss

19.51
{1.78)

17.73

198.69
{178}

196.91

Financial azseis - Qthor receivables.

Particuiars

Asat 3] March 2022

As af 31 March 2023

¥ crore T crore

Financial assets measured al amortized cost

Lense receivable 1,614.22 1,654.72
Other receivables (Refer Note 5{(a) below) 453.85 502.53
NHAI/GSRDE Claim receivable 7127 95.85
Sub-Tofal {A} 2,139.34 2,153.10
Less ; Allowance for impairment (1) 5526 5526
Total {C=A+ B} 2,084.08 2,197.8¢
Note S(a) :

Other receivable includes an amount of ¥ 352.55 crore {previous year ;¥ 389.90 crore) being the nel compensation receivable from
MNational Highways Authority of India (NHAI) on account of termination of the concession agreeneats of one of subsidiary L&T
Chennai Tada Tolfway Limited respectively, The ameounts due to lenders in respect of the subsidiary. is disclosed in Note 16 -

Bogowings.
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&5 formiing part of the Congolidated lnd AS Financial Stetements for the year eaded March 31, 2032

& Financial assefs - Investments

As at 31 March 2022

Ag at 31 March 2021

Particulars T erore T crore
5} Measured at fair value through profit or oss
Mutuat Funds 602.12 21127
b) Measured at cost {urguoted investents)
Equity instruments
Associates
Fully paid equity shares of associate company 43.65 4365
Addf(deduct} :
Accumulated share in profit/(loss) at the beginning of the year (21.60} (28.72)
22405 1493
Add/(deduct):
Share in profitf{loss) dering the year 8113 8.16
Dividend received - 103.18 (0.49} 22.60
Others
SICAL Irom ore Terminals Limited [Refer Note 18{a}] 14.3¢ 14.30
Indian Highway Management Company Limited - 0.56 0.56
L&T Halol Shamlaji Tellway Limited - Equity Shares 389.52 -
L&T Ralol Shamlaji Tollway Limited - Preference Shares 130.50 -
c) Measured at fair valoe throagh GCI
Infrastructure Investient Trust (InviT) 468.21 94003
Sub Total (A} 1,708.39 1,188.76
Investments in India 1,708.39 1,188.76
Investments cutside India - -
Sub Total (B) 1,708.39 1,188.76
Less : Allowsnee for immpaitment {C) (520.58) -
Tatal (D=A-C) 1,187.81 13188.76

T Financizl assets - Others

Particalars

As ar 31 March 2022
¥ ¢crare

As at 31 March 2021
¥ crore

Security depasits
Advance to Others
Contractual retention money

2.65
04¢

314

270

119
e

15.91

8 Non financial assets - Carrent tax assels

Particulass

As at 31 March 2022
3 crore

As at 31 March 2021
¥ crore

Advance Tax ( Net of provisions)

4896

48.96

7357

1

13 Other non-financlal assets

Particulars

As at 31 Macch 2022
¥ crore

As at 31 March 2021
2 crore

Advances given
Suppliers
Employees
Statutory Dues
GST receivable
Bales Tax recoverable
VAT recoverable
Sales tax deposit
Prepaid expenses
Others

7.70
0.11]

187

4.37
0.02
13.13
11,52
40.32

0.13
a.1g

6.24
045
416
002
16.83
046
28.47
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15

Trade Payables
. Asat 31 Mareh 2022 Asat 31 March 202)
Parficulars
¥ crore T crare
Due to relzted parties ©
Drue to Holding company 320 328
Dueo fellow subsidiasies .33 1.68
Due to others 62.86 6377
Dae to Micro and small enterprises 5.02 6,18
71.41 74.91
Debt Securities
i Asat 31 March 2022 Asat 31 March 2021
Particulars F
Terore 2 crore
Measured at amortised cost
Secured - redesmable non-convertible fixed rate debentures 1,775.52 2,597.32
Unsegured - Redeemable non-convertible Bxed rate debentures - 25528
1,775.52 2,852,600
Diebt securities inside India 1,775.52 2,852.60
Debt securities outside India = =
1,715.52 2,852,60
Notes ; Details of Redeemable non-couvertible dehbentures
Asat M As at 31
Particulars March 2022 | March 2021 Terms of repayment
T crore ¥ crore
Secured Debentures
L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited - 60.14 -
Redeemeble in 21 unequal
Kudgi Transmission Limited 1491.26 1,528.78 {annual instalments from 25 April
2619 to 25 April 2040.
Vadodara Bharuch Tellway Limited - £660.96 -
Redeemable at each in 18
e ' unequal instaltment from April
L&T Interstzte Road Corridor Limiled 100.18 157.27 2015 to October 2003 at
speaified amounts.
Abmedabad Maliya Tollway Limited 184.07 184.17 | Repayable on 28th August 2030
Total 1,775.52 2,39732
Uansecured Debentures
L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited - 255.28 -
Tofnl debt securifics 1,775.52 2,852.60

*The {nterest ratz for (he above debentures vary from £.60 % p.a.

to 10.56% p.a.
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16 Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

. Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 Marel 2021 :
Parcticulars : :
T erpre ¥ crore . T crore T croye :
Measurad at amortised cost
Secured loans
Term loans
From banks 3,352,62 434224 :
From financial institutions 335.44 496.01
Unsecured loans
Deferred payment lisbilities (Refer Note 37) 263817 2,338.62 H
Luozns from related parties
Loans from others 1.40 43.97
Total (A) 6,327.63 7,220.84
Borrowings in Indiz 6,327.63 7,220.84
Borrowings outside India - -
6,327.63 1,220.84
Notes :

17(i) Details of term loans from baaks and Fnancial iostitutions:

Aszt 3t As at 3
Particulars March 2022 | March 2621 Terms of repayment
T crore Terore
: - ) Repayable in 168 unequal monthly instalments
L&T Decean Tollways Limited 998.50 1,622 90 from Agpeil 2019 to 31 March 2031
. L. . Repayable in 120 unequal monthly
L&T Sambalpur Roarkela Tollway Limited 797.54 212.15 instalments from April 2019 to 30 April 2029.
. . Repayable in 132 monthly unequal instalments -
Ahmedabad-Maliya Tollway Limited 1500 245.01 from April 2019 to March 2030 at specified
. . . Repayable in 60 wnequal monthly instalments
L&T Rajkot Vadinar Tollway Limited 438.64 384,13 from Agril 2019 to August 2024 2t specified
T . o s Repayable in 78 unequat monthly instalments
L&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tofiway Limited 341.87 461.35 from April 2019 1o July 2025.
- | Repayable in 84 monthly instalments from Apqil
L&T Haloi-Shamlaji Tollway Limited - 676.89 [2019 to March 2026 at specified amounts in
Master Restructuring Agreement,
L&T Cheonai Tada Toliway Limited* 295.42 335,82 | Refer Note 17(iii)
Total 3,688.06 4,838,25

ii) Security #, interest rate cte.:

&} Indian mupee teini loak fo banks and financial instiiutions and redeemable non-convertibie debentures are secured by a pari passu charge
inter s¢ tenders over;

(i) all immovable properties wherever applicable both present and fisture, incleding all real estate rights;

(ii) all tangible movable assets, including movable plant and machinery, equipment, machinery spares, 1ools and accessories, current assels and
all other movable assets(except project assets), both present and future;

(ii) all riphts, title, interest, benefits; claims and demands{excluding project assets), whatspever of the borrower in any project documerts,
contracts and licenses to and all assets of the project;

(iv} all rights, title, interest, bencfits, claims aed demands in respect of the accounts, that may be opened and all guarantees/performance bonds
given, in terms of the project documents; and,

(v} alf amounts owing to, received and receivable by the Group;

b} The interest rate for the above loans from banks and financia! institutions vaory from 8.50% pa. to 13.30% p.a.

¢) Term loans are repayable over monthly/quarterly instalments over the reémaining period,

#Other than projects agsets which are not assigned as security :
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Stuements for the year ended March 3 1,2022

iif} As a1 31 March 2021, the Group had defaulted in the repayment of term loans and interest w.rt following subsidiaries oy given below:
As ai 31 March 2021
Name of Subsidiary Principal Interest Total
I crore ¥ crare Terore
L.&T Halol Shamlaji Tollway Limited 8.40 30.97 39.17
Total 8.40 30.77 3917

* The lenders of both L&T Chennnai Tada Teltway Limited and PNG Toliway.Limited have recalled the loans subsequent to the {ermination of the
respective concassion agreements.

{iv) Unsecured loass from others represent :
{2) Mezzanine debt of Ashoks Concessions Limited amounting to INil crore {previous year :T 43.97 crore) by ane of the subsidiaries PNG

Tollway Limited. The Mezzanine Debt carvies interest equal to the rate applied by banks on term loans plus a spread of 5 basis points. During the
cuerent year, Rs, 43,97 unsecured foan has been writlen aff

18 Other financial liabilities
. Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
T crove T erore
GSRDC revenne share payable 231.59 ’ 295.90
Liability for capital goods 18,60 79.95
Arbitration award received [Refer Note 56) 92.36 93.02
Retention money payable 2718 i4.71
Advance received against sale of shates [Refer Note | 8(a)] 14.30 14.30
Security deposits received 0.55 0.53
Others 5129 2267
‘Others ( Arbitration) - Nofe to be providid 0.23 -
436.10 521.08
Note 18(a) ¢
Advance reccived aguinst sale of shares represents advance of ¥ 14.30 crare received from Sical Logistics Limited (SLL) apainst sale of
1.43,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Sical fron Ore Terminals Limited (SIOTLY) at cost to SLL vide Agresment for Share Sale and Purchase
dated 17 December 2008, The sale is subject to the condition that it can be completed only after three years from the date of commencement of
commercial operation by SIQTL us per clause 18.2.2' (i} {d} of the License agreement dated 23 Septernber 2006 between SIOTL and Banore Part
Limited (EPL). SIOTL has not been able to commence commercial operation as an 3] March 2022 due- to the ban of export of iron ore from the
State of Karnataka. SIOTL has songht necessary approvals from EPL and Government of India for handling altemate commodities. The Company
has requested SIOTL to approach BPL for approval of the transfer. As per NCLT order dated 13t March 2022, SIOTL has been admitted under
IBC (insolvency and bankrupicy code) proceedings,
19 Provisions
. As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2621
Particolars
Terore { erare
Provision for employee benefits [Refer note 35] 4.26 10:53
Provision for major maintenance reserve [Refer note 45] 3322 580,97
Provision for expenses 73.37 B8.24
415,85 678.74
20 Ofher non fluancial Habilities
. As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
T erore ¥ crore
Statitory lizbifities 7.24 5.33
Cthers 2270 14.55

29.94 19.88
e ———————1




L&T Infrastructure Development Projeets Limited
‘Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Staterents for the year ended March 31, 2022

21 Equity share capital
(I} Authorised, issued, subseribed and paid up

(D(a) Authorised:
Particulars Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Na. of shares { crore No. ¢f shares ¥ crore
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 800,000,000 800.00 800,000,000 800.00
Special equity shares of ¥ 10 each 10,000 0.01 10,000 .01
866,010,000 800.01 860,010,008 800.61
{1)(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares ¥ crore No. of shares T crore
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 629,511,764 625.52 629,511,764 629.52
Special equity shares of ¥ 10 each 10,000 .01 10,000 .01
629,521,764 629.53 629,521,764 629.53

{II) Reconciliation of the shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares T crore No. of shares T erore

Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up ,
At the beginning of the year 629,511,764 629,52 629,511,764 629.52

Issued during the year as fully paid up - - - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 629,511,764 629.52 629,511,764 629.52

Special equity sharres of T 10 caeh fully paid up

At the beginning of the year 10,000 0.01 10,000 0.01
Issued during the year as fully paid up - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 10,000 0.01 10,000 0.01

(1]} Terms / rights / restrictions attached to equity shares:

Equity Shares of T 10 each

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of
sharas/disinvestment,

Each holder is entitled to one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. Dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, except in the case of

interim dividend. The shares issued carry equal rights to dividend declared by the Company and no restrictions are attached
to any specific sharcholder.

Special Equity shares of T 10 each

1. The Special Equity Shares carry specific incremental rights ("Director Voting Rights") with respect to the election,
appointment and/or removal of directors of the.Company. These Director Voting Rights are triggered only under specific
conditions.

Crigning Y&
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2. The Special Equity Shares carry no right to receive any dividend or other distributions of the Company, or otherwise
carry any economic rights, However, upon the occurrence ofthe voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissclution or

winding up of the Company, the holder of Special Equity Shares is entitled to receive a maximum of X 10 per Special
Equity Share.

3. The Special Equity Shares have no right to receive bonus shares or offers for rights shares.

(1V) Shares held by holding company/ ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates:

i Asat 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares Yo No. of shares %
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding
Company (including shares held along with its 321,049,196 51.00 321,049,196 51.00
nominees)
Special equity shares of ¥ 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding 10,060 100.00 10,000.00 100.00

Company

(V) Details of shareholders hiolding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Particulars Asat 31 March 2022 As at’ 31 March 2021
No. of shares Yo No. of shares Yo
Equity shares of T 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding
Company {including shares held along with its 321,049,196 51.00 321,049,196 51.00
nominees)
CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc 308,462,568 49.00 308,462,568 49.00
Special equity shares of ¥ 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Holding 10,000 100.00 10,000.00 106.00

Company

(VD) Shareholding of Promoters:

As at March 3%, 2022
o .
Shares held by Promoters at the end of Year % Change during
the year

Promoter Name Type No of Shares % of Total Shares
Larsen & Toubro Limited Equity Shares 321,049,096 51.00 -
Larsen & Toubro Limited i i

Special Equity 10,000 100.00 .

Shares
As at March 31, 2021

Shares held by Promoters at the end of Year

Promater Name Type No of Shares % of Total Shares
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Larsen & Toubro Limited Equity Shares 321,049,096 51.00 -
Larsen & Toubro Limited i i
Special Equity 10,000 100.00 ;
Shares

(VID) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issyed for cousideration ofher than cash and shares bought back
during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date; NIL

(a) For the year ended March 3 1, 2020, the Company has bought back 217 fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares Series | (CCPS) 0f T 1,00,00,000 each of nominal vahie ata premium of ¥55,42,345 per CCPS for an
aggregate value of ¥ 337.27 crores, Capital redemption reserve to the extent of the nominal valye of preference shares was
created during the vear,

{b) For the year ended March 3 1, 2019, the Company has bought back 920 fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shar

(c) For the year ended March 31,2020, the balance CCPS of 863.00 crores was converted to equity shares of the
Company.

{VIII) Calls unpaid: NIL; Forfeited shares: NIL.
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22 Other Equity

As at 31 March 2022 As.at 31 March 2021
T crore ¥ crore ¥ erore T crore

Particulars

Capital redemption reserve
As per last halance sheet 1,137.060 1,137.00
Additions/(deletions) during the year - -
1,137.00 1,137.00
Securities premium accouni
As per last balance sheet 99745 99745
Additions/{deletions) duting the year - -

997.45 907.45
Debenture Redemption reserve
As per [ast balance sheet 378.01 378.61
Less: Transfer to General reserve {139.60) -
23841 378.01

Reserve w/s 45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934
As per last balance sheet 9833 98.33
Add : Transferred from retained earnings - -

98.33 08.33
General reserve
Ag per last balance shieet 15.21 1521
Add : Transferred from Debenture redemption reserve §.82
24.03 1521
Surplus/{Deficit) in the statement of profitfloss.
As per last balance sheet (1,636.14) (1,506.62)
Add/(Less) :
Realised gains on sale of equity instrument carried through
FvOoCl 8.58
Transfer from/(to) debenture redemption reserve 130.78 -
Settlernent on account of crystallized claims (8.53)
Minarity interest in subsidiary company not apportioned
carlier (Refer note 54) 16.90
Profit/(1.oss) for the year 24.48 (129.52)
(1.463.93) ' (1,636.14)
Other comprehensive income
As per last balance sheet {22.75) 80.73
Addi{Less) for the year 109.52 (103.48}
Less: Realised gains on sale of equity instrument carried
through FYQCI (8.58)
78.19 (22.75)
1,189.48 967.11
Note :

&) Debenture redemplion rescrve amounting to ¥ 139.60 Crore {previous year : T Nil Crore ) has been transferred to retained earnings to the
extent of debentures redeemed during the current year.

b) For the finaucial year 31 March 2022 considering loss after tax of the parent company, no amotmt required to be transferred to the
stafatory reserve as required under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India(RBI) Act, 1934, Fer the year ended 31 March 2021,
vonsidering loss after tecx of the parent compnay, the group has not transferred any amount to the reserve

¢} In accordance with Notification G.5R. 404(E), dated April 6, 2016, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognized as part of
retained eamings.
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23 Coutinpent ligbilities

As at Asar
Particulars JI March 2022 31 March 2021
L crore Z crore

{a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt [Refer Notes below] 189.23 12547
(b) Income tax liabitity (including penalty) that may arise in respect of which the Group is in

appeal. 29.73 21.70
() Service tax liability (including penalty) that may arise in resprect of which the Group is in ’

appeal, 244 244
(d) Guarantees given wir.t associate campany 75.87 75.87
(¢) Group's share in contingent liabilities of associate company 10159 13527

Notes :

(1} The Group expects reimbursements of T 27.09 crote (previous year¥ 27.09 crore) in respect of the above contingent liabilities,
{if) Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are daterminable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forumsfanthorities,

24 Commitments

€i) Commitments quantifiable

{a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances} and not provided for as at 31 March 2022 15 ¥ 30.67 crore
{previous year : ¥ 21,82 crorc).

{ii} Commitments ot quantifiable

(i) The group has given, inter alia, the Tollowing cormmitments in respect of ils investments:

(8) To the term Tenders of L&T Deccan Tollways Limited (LTDTL) to meet shortfall in major maintenance and Debt Service Reserve (DS R} Account and to
maintain minimum year to year Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.2 fimes in a manner satisfactory to Senior Debt Tranchic A Lenders (Facility amounting to Rs.
1,080.92 crore) in line with base case revemne projections. Tie Company has also given an underlaking to Senfor Debt Tranche B Lenders {Facility amounting
1o Rs. 154.42 crore) for servicing the obiigation in the event of failure of repayment by LTDTL.

{b) The Company has given an underialking to the debenture trustee of L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited (LTIRCL) to make payment of the Termination
Shortfall amount due to Concessionaire event of default in the event that LTIRCL fails to make payment of the same within 5 business days from the due date of
dsposit of the Termination Payments by NHAT into the Escrow Aceotint and also to make payientof the Operation & Maintenance{Q&M) cxpenses shortfall
amounis ceused due to {ncrease in O&M Expenses beyond the limits set out in Base Case O&M Expenses Schedule and resulting in shortfall in amounts
available for debt servicing and/or BSR Amount andfor the Major Maintenance Reserve, without utilizing the sitplus amounts within a period of 30 {thirty)
Business days from the date of demand therefore issued by the Debenture Trustee,

(c) ’ic Cotipany has given a commitment 1o the debenturc trustees of Abmedabad Maliya Tollway Limited {AMTL) vide a Sponscr Support Agrecment dated

Angust 28, 2017 wherein the Compiny has undertaken that in the event of shortage of funds for coupon payment and repayment of the debentures to the
debenture trustees, the Company shall fund such shortfall, Also the Company hes undertaken to fund the rail over bridge expenses of AMTL.,

(i} The Company, on sele of the subsidiarics to the Indinfravit Trust have in the purchase agreements listed certain claim which are raised against the company and
certain claims which are raised by the Company against the respective authorities. The amount of claim has not been disclosed since they are not determinable as
at March 31, 2022,

(ili) Management's assessment

The amounts shown under contingent liabilities and commitments represent the best possible estimate arvived at on the basis of the available information.
Further, various government authorities/other stakeholders raise issues/clarifications in the nommal course of business and the Management has provided its
responses in Yespest of the same and no formal demands/claims have been raised in respect of the same other than those disclossd above. The obligations and
possible reimbursements in respect of the above ore dependent on. the outcome of the various discussions/proceedings that are ongoing and, therefore, cannot be
predicted accurately except those disclosed above. The Group does not expect any financial exposure in respect of these as at 31 March 2022,
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25

24

27

18

Income from financing activity - Interest income

Period ended Period ¢nded
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 20621
¥ erore ¥ crore
Interest income
On finageial assets measured at fair value through OCI
Investient in Tndinfravit Toust 2284 1189
On financial assets classified at fair value through profiter loss
Inter carporate deposits
Other loans and advances - -
Bank depoaits 14.28 15.39
Net pain/ (foss) on financiat instruments at fair valze through profit or foss
On trading portfolio
Investments in nystual fuad 117 022
38.29 27.50
Revenue {rom service corcession agreentents
Period ended Period ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
¥ erore T crore
Tall gollection and relaied activity fet of revenue share payable of
T10133 {previcus year - ¥ 90.33)] 137158 125447
Coastruction mmd project related activity 1116 349
Annuity Income 351.06 22399
1,633,80 1,481.95
Other operating income
Particul Period ended Period ended
Fhicutars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
¥ crore T crare
License fee from wayside amenities and others 162 144
Claims for compensation/ conecession extension with NHAT [Refer Note 27a] 7.03 11.98
Miscellaneous income 8.67 0.99
732 14.41

Note 27(a) :

Claims for compensation/concession extension with NFAI represents, compensation receivable for loss of revenue under the cancession
agreements entered into with National Highways Authovity of Tndia (NHAI) by the Group, by way of extension of the concession ngreement by
ceqtain number of days based oa the actral loss incurred due to non-colfection/partial collection of 1011 revenue during the previous period of

force majeure, accaunted for in accordance with the accounting policy of the Growp.

Other income

Period ended

" Poriod ended
Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
€ crore ¥ crore
Interest Income:
From Banks 35.18 49.19
From others 2.40 501
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instémnents at faic value dirough profit or loss 1.70 1.05
Gain/(loss) on sale of investments 13.69 312
(ainf([oss) on sale of fixed assets {0,25) 0.40
Liabilities/provisicns ne longer required written back 027 -
Misceltareous income 2238 19.67
53T 8044




L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ing AS Finaneia! Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

29 Finance Costs

Parficulars Period ended Period ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
T orore ¥ crore
Qn financial lizbilities measured at amertised cost
Interest on borrowings 374.22 468.20
Inierest on debt securities 158.40 21032
Cther berrowing costs 36090 16336
393,52 §42.38
30 Other construction and related aperating expenses
R Period ended Period ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
¥ crore ¥ crore
Power and fuel 13.05 13.83
Engineering, professional, technical end consultancy fees £.85 11.17
Provision for major maintenance reserve 82,99 117,19
General repairs and maintenance 121.26 105.83
Repairs to plant and machinery 7.89 8.68
Repairs to buttdings 0.83 .81
Vehicle running and maintenance 5.76 508
Rant, rates and taxes 0617 0.15
Miscellaneous expenses 62 1518
245.7L 277.92
31 Employee benefifs expense
Particnlars Period ended Period ended
31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021
¥ crore T crare
Salaries and wages 4307 47.55
Contribution to and provision for:
Provideat fund and pension scheme [Refer Note 35] 177 1.79
Gratuity [Refer Note 35] 0.92 1.74
Staff welfare expenses 4.57 539
50,33 5647
32 Other expenses
l Period ended Period ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
X crore % crore
Reat, Taxes and energy costs 343 4.00
Repairs aod maintenance 1201 1547
Communication Costs 192 232
Printing and Stationery 0.55 0.53
Advertisenent and publicity 0.47 .49
Diseetor's fees, allowances and expenses 0.25 0.14
Statutory Anditoss’ fees and expenses .56 0.48
Other Auditors' fees and cxpenses 0.06 1.09
Lzzal and Professional charges 11.62 12.90
‘Traveiling aad Conveyance 528 4.39
Bank charges 474 328
Corporate social responsibitity expense 250 342
Other expenses 342 4.23
54.81 54,58
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33 Cerporate Information

L&T Infrastructura Development Projects Limited ("L&T LDPL"} &5 2 publiic company domiciled in India.
terms of ths Certifieate of Registration {"CaR") veccived from Rescrve Bank of India "REI"}, LAT EDPE s alsa invalved in

e b

LAT IDPL is o Systemically Importans Non-Deposit taking
tness of devel T

and

Core Investment Company (°C1

C-ND-8[%), in

2yi11) pmjccu

ke the Public Privair Partrership ("PPF} route through Ysidiarics. The subsidiaries gt into with National E{lﬂn;-xy; Anthotity of Tndia ("NHAI'} 7 State authorilies for the
derelop perali i of i projects under Design-Fuild-Finmnce-Opsrate-Transler(DBFOTVBuilé-Operale-Transiet {BOTYBuild-Operete-Own-Maintain. (BOOM) mode with
concession periods rangmg from 15 to 35 wears, Ak the end of the mad rontezsion perind, the enlire fezilities arc forred to the d g unhoritics.
34 Additional inf parsumnt to Schedute B to the Compantes Art, 2013
N';;;:‘::’;':l"];ﬁl’i:i:& Shave fn profit er Joss Share in other comprebensive | Shareia Tu.hﬂ somprebensive
Cenntry ol AsYe oi! o AR Yaof =
ik Name of the entity eerpraon | Asthol |y | AR eomadaed | comslted |
net asszts T erors profit or loss 1 erore comprekzasive Terure :umpmkmi&: T erore
income income
Parent
L&T Infrasinuciute Dcvelgfmm]’loiem Limited Indis 131.18% 3,150.65 -173.96% (43.02) 100.17% 1G9.43 49.56% 6641
Indisn Subsidiaries
! L&T ngzgwioﬂ Infrastructior Limited Iandia 2443% 42488 116.68% 2889 0.08% .01 215T% 23.50
2 L&T Inmecsintz Road Contidoy Limited fadia 2.1% 47.13 1.94% 043 0.02% 0.02 03 0350
3 Panipat Elevated Corridos Limited India -1975% (34340  -164.78% {40309 £.01% £0.01}; -3l.46% (40.81))
4 Vedodura Bhaoueh Tollwey Limited India 9.51% 16536 444.54% 110,17 ~0.02% (8,02)) 5220% 1i0.15
3 Ahmadabad Maliys Toltway Limited India 338U 38.71 “T02T% (7400 0.03% 10.03) -13.01% (17,43}
5 | L&T Halol Shamlaji TaMomy Limited® India 0.60% - -10LREY, (25.23) TR . R8I (23,29
7 187 Semakhali Gendhidham Tollway Lieited ndia 21 64% (480 73Y  <513.06% {i21.50) B05% ({1.06) D5 22% (127591
] L&T Rajkot Vadmar Tollway Limited India -3.42% (39.54Y _-447.90% 11050 2.05% {0.06) LI 110,34
9 L&T Decean Tollways Limited India -1291% (398401 -560.54% {138, 7% H.02% {0.02) ~103.59% {138.8 1)
1 L& Chemnat Tads Tolloay Eimited [ndia 206% 3578 «125% {031} 1.00% - 0.25% {@.a1))
1 PNG Tollwuy Limited Indis 0G5 0.28% 675.30% ‘16724 0.00% - 124.78% 167.21
12 | L&V Sambalpur-Rourkels Tollway Limited ndia 5.90% 10266 99.76% 0] Hi% oMy -1844% 2471)
3 ¢ Tronsmission Limiled india I2.3% 56922 3R3.93% 95.08 206% - T0.94% 95.06
1] Watrak [nfrastruchure Private Limited Tndia 9.03% .55 .03% {G:a1) 0.0 - Do1% {0.08)
fmdau Ceripanies
1 Intsrmativanl Seaports hatdia (Privato} Limited India 1.04% 18,09 20.84% 3106 L.00% - 3.25% 5,16
2 LTIDPL INDVIT Sevvices Limited Indin 6.81% 188.50 I06.83% 73,57 L% {0.54)) 56.66% 7353
Minority interest in i subsidissies 4.52% 8375 -139.4%% 39.4¢ LOR% - 29475 1394
CFS Adgustenient and liminaticrid _L0002%  (L73543) -4s1.55% {11 Lﬁ% 003% 03 -B1.4F% (111.77)
TOTAL 100.00% 1,739.01 100.09% 24.76 JO0.K°5A 105.24 100.00% 134,00

*HETL nol included {Rofer noto 48)
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35 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 19 “Employee Benefits”
(i) Defined contribution plan:

a

.

b)
&)

The Group's provident fund aze the defined contribution plans. The Group is required o contribute 2 specified percentage of payroll costs io the
recognised provident fund and Life Insorance Corporation of Indiz respectively to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these plans is to make the specified contributions.

An amount of € 1.77 crore {previousyear: % 1,74 erore) being contribution made to yecopnised provident fund is recognised.as expense and included
under Employee bepefit cxpense [Note 31] in the Statement of Profit and loss,

Features of its defined benefit plans:

Gratuity:

The Group operates gratuity plan through LiC's Group Gratuify scheme where every emplayee is entitled to the benefit equivalent 1o fifieen days salary
last drawn for each completed year of service, The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is eatlier. The benefit vests afier
five years of continuous service.

Trust managed provident fund plan: )

The Corpany-manages provident fund plan through the holding Company's provident fund. trust for its employess which is pennitied wmder the
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The plan envisages contribution by employer and omployess and guarantess inpterest at the rate
notified by the provident fund authority. The contribution by employer and employes together with interest are payable at the time of separation from
service or relirement whichever is earfier. The benefit under this plan vests immediately on rendering of service,

The benefit iz govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The key featurcs are o¢ under:

Features of the defined benefit plan Remarls
-Benefit offered 15/ 26 » Salary x Duration of Service
Salary definition Basic Salary ineluding Dearness Allowance (if any)
Benefit ceiling Benefit ceiling of Rs. 20,00 000 was not applied
Vesting conditions 3 years of continuous service { Not applicable in case of death f disability )
Beaefit eligibility. Upon Death: or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement
Refirement age 58 years

The Group is responsible for governance of the plan.
Risle 1o the Plan

Following are the risk to which the plan cxposes the entity :
Actuarial Risk:
It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons;
Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an inerease in obligation at a rate
that is higher than expected. |
Variability in mortality rates: ¥ actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mostatity rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier
than expected. Since there is ao condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will fead to an-actuarial Joss or gain depending
on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate,
Variability in withdrawal rates: If aetual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid
earlier than expected. The inpact of this will depend or whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date,
Investment Risk:
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the valoe of assets certified by the Insurer may not be the fair value of instruments
backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fuctuations i the
net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.
Liguidity Riske
Empioyees with high sataries and fong durations or those higher in hierarchy, acenmulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign
£ retize from the company there can be strain on the cash flows,
Market Risk:
Matkez risk is a collective term. for xisks that are related to the changes and fuctuations of the financint markets. One aghuarial assumptiod that has a
material effect is the discount rate, The discount rate reflects the time valye of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit

Obligation of the plen benefits & vics versa, This assuraption depends on the yields on the corporate / govemment boads mid herce the valuation of
liability is exposed to Suctuations in the yields as at the valuation dite,

‘Legislative Risk:

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in tse legislation / repulation. The povernment
may amend the Payment of Grataity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher beacfits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value
of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same wil have to be recognized immediately in the year when any szch amendment is effactive.
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d)

&)

B

by

The amounts tecognised ir Balance Sheet are as follows:
Particulars Gratuity Plau Trust Mauaged provident feud plan
As at As at As at Asal
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Present valoe of defined benefit obligation
- Wholly funded 618 635 26,63 2203
- Wholly uofunded 033 029 - -
657 6.84 26.63 2213
Less : Fair value of plan assets 5.66 535 28.66 24.23
Amourt to be recognised as liability or (asset) 091 1.4% (2.02) {2.10)
Amaunts reflected in the Balance Sheet
Lisbifities 0.91 1.49 {2.02) (2.10)
Astels - - - -
Net Liabilify / {asset) 091 149 (2.02) (2,16}
The amounts recopnised in the Statement of Profit znd loss are as follows:
Gratuity Plan .
Particufars Trust Munaged provident fund plan
Asat Asat As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Current service cost 0.70 0.98 0.94 1.05
Tnterest on Defined begefit obligation 0.25 0,28 1.65 1.57
Expected return on plan assets {0.18) {021} (l.65} (1.57)
Actuarial Losses/{Gains) 0.09 0.12 (0.79) 0.97)
Actuarial Losses/(Gains} not recogaised - - 0.79 097
Total ' 0.86 117 0.94 1.05
T Amourt included in "Employes Benefit expenses” 0.86 1L.17 .94 1065
Total 4.86 1.17 0.94 1.0%
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income
Parficubirs Gratuity Plan Trus.t Managed provident fund plan
2G21-22 2028-21 202 i—-_2_2 202021
Components of actuarial gain/losses on oblipations
Due to change in financial assumplions 0.16) 021 - -
Due to chanpe in demographic assemption 0.28 - - -
Dae to experience adjustments (0,86} - -
Retun on plan assets excluding amounts inciuded in interest ingome 0.02 0.0 ) .
0.14 {0.62) - -

The changes in the present vajue of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows:

Gratuity Plan

Particalars Trust Managed provident fund plan
2021.22 2020-21 Z021-22 2020-21

Opening defined benefit olligation 6.1 7.20 2213 20.68
Current service cost 0.70 098 096 0.94
Interest cost 040 0.45 1.86 1.65
Actuarial losses/(pains) 0.52 (0.65) - - F
Contsibution by plan participants - - 1.82 1.76
Benefits paid (1.13) (1.15) (0.72) (L70)
Lisbilities assumed on tranafer of employees - - .59 (120)
Adjustment for earlier years B . .
Closing batance of the present vatue of defined benefit obligation 6.20 6.83 26.63 2213

The changes in the fair valug of plais assets representing reconciliation of apening and closing balances thereof are as follows:

. Gratuity Plan Trust Managed provident fund plan
Farticatars 207122 202021 2021-22 202021

Opening balance of fair value of plan asscts 513 579 2421 21.99
Expected return on plan assets .16 .19 1.86 1.65
Actuarial Losses . - (0.12) 0.79
Interest Income 0.15 0.17 0.96 -
Coniribution by employer 116 0.35 - 0.94
Contribution by plan participants - - 1.88 1.76
Benofits paid (120} {1.15) {0.72) {170}
Transfer in/{out} - - 0.59 {1.20}%
Closing balance of fair value of plan assets £.00 5.35 18.66 2423
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i) The majer components of plan assats as a percentage of total plan assets are ays follows:

. Gratuity Plan Trust Managed provident fond plan
Farticalars 202122 202021 202122 202021
Govémment of India securities - . 17.4%% 24.00%
State Government securities - - 27.81% 23.64%
Special deposit schemes B - 3.29% 5.18%
Public Sector unit bonds - - 18.38% 22.00%
Corporate bonds . - ) - 30.50% 20.91%
surer managed funds 100.06% 15000 927% 3.60%
Others - - 1.28% 1.21%
Total 100.06% 100,00% 100.00% 108.00%
i Principal actuarial essumptions at the Balance Sheet date:
. Gratuity Plan
Particulars IS 303021
Disconnt rate ) 6.90% 6.50%
Expected return on plan asset 6.50% 6.50%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 600%
Atirition rate 3% 15% 3%-15%
Mortality rates Tndian Assured Lives Indian Assared Lives
- Mortality (2006-08) Table Mortality (2006-08) Table
k} Aquantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2022
Particulars Asat 31 March 2(?22 _ Asat 31 March 1(!21 _
Change Obligation Change Obligztion
i e +0,5% 6.37 +1.5% &.61
) Discount Rate 0.5% 677 -05% 7.08
v +(.5% 677 +0.5% 7.08
(i) Salary Growth Rate -0.5% 637  05% 661
Compensated Absences
The significant assumptions considered by the independent actuary in carrying out the actuzrial valuation of long ferm compensated abisences are given
below:
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Assumptions
Discount Rate 6.70% 6.70%
Future Salary Increase 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Age Band
25 ung below 15.00% I[5.00%
‘26135 12.00% 12.00%
045 9.00% 9.00%
4610 55 6.00% 6.00%
56 and above 3.00% 3.00%
Retention Pay
The significant assumptions considered by the independent actuary in carrying out the actnarial valuation of retention pay 2re given balow:
Particaiars : 202]-22 2020-21
Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15%
Muortality rates Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Meortality (2006-08) Table Morfality (2006:08) Table

36 -Disclosure pursaant to Ind AS 23 "Borrewing Costs"
Borroiving cost capitalised dusing the year T Nil trore under Intangible assets under development,

37 Deferred payment liability of T 2638.17 crore {previvus year: ¥ 2338.62 crore} represents;

ay  Negative grant of ¥ 1278.54 crore {previous year: € 1131.99 crore) payable to National Highways Authority of india (NHAL), in terms of the Concessian
agreemsat entered into with NHAIL [Also Refer Nate 47]

b} Additional concession fee of T 1359.63 crare {previous year: ¥ 1206.63 crore) payable to National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), in terms of the
Concessica agreement entered into with NHAT [Also Refer Note 471,




L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limifed

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Finzncial Staterenss for the year ended March 31,230622

38 “The Company hed received = notice dated Apnil 20, 2015 from Maharashira Airpor, Development Com
instructed to hand over the possession of 50,85 acresof vacani land taken
Lios not commenced camnmercial activifies by June 24,2013, Accordingly,
crote as al March 31, 20213 was shown as recoverabie. The Compazy had
total exit from its aflotted land by claiming refind. Enring the previous ye

was provided for during that financial year.

35 Exceplional items disclosed in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss represents the following .

pany Limited (MADIC), as per which MADC had
on minety nine years lease at Nappur, within a period of 15 days, as the Company
the book value of premium paid to MADC as at March 31, 2022 of T Nil (7 Ml
approached MADC for either transfer of tand 1o aay interested party or (o make o
ar, the company received 2 13,73 crores from MADC and balance of 2 0.47 crores

Particulars 2021-22 2070-21
Provision for diminution in value of oiher investments (60.67) B
Wrile-back of provision made earlier for amount receivable from terminated subsidiary - 506
Write-back of provision made earlier for amount receivable from NHAI with respect to a terminated subsidiary - 540
Reversal of Mujor maintenanee provision of certain operating subsidiarics 136.06 -
Total 75.39 10.06

40 Diselosare parsuant to Ind AS 115 “Revenne from Contracts with Customers”

The disclosure provided below pertains o the construction contracts related to Chan

expenses have been uetted off and disclosed in Note 27 - Other operating revenue,

Movement of contract batances during the year

ge of scops works i two subsidiaries of the grotep. The income and

Particulnrs 202522 202021
{ erove £ crote
Opening contract value 56.68 65.20
AddA{Less). Revenue recopnised duting the year (11.16) {8.52)
Add/(Less) Advance received during the year {net of adjusiments)
Add/(Less) - Impeivment of contract asset .
{a} Foresecable loss on contract assefs [net of reversals] -
(1) ECL on contract assets [net of reversals] -
Closing contract value 45.52 56.68
. N Likely conversian in revenne
Remaming perforwance obligations Total Tvenr 12 yeurs 2% yoars >3 years
Trans:af:non Plice a!locatedilo t!te 4552 45.62 _ . _
remaining performance obligation
4} Disclomtres pursuant to IndAS 48 "Favestarent Froperty™
Particulars 2021-22 2020.21
¥ erore T crore
Rental income derived from investment progerty 0.08 G.08
Direct operating expenses arising from fvestment propesty that generzied rental jncome " 0.01

Fair value of investment property: ¥ $.27 crore as at 31 March 20632
have been detennined with the help of independent vafuers and man

market trends as considered appropriate

(¥ 4.46 crore as at 31 March 2021) ., The fair values of alf the investment properties
agement’s assessetent. Valuation is based on government rates; market research and




nfrastructure Development Projects Limited
orming part of the Consofidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

isclasure of related parties / related party transactions pursuant to tad AS 24 "Related Party Bisclospres™
ame of Related Parties and Natare of Relationships

Nature of Relationship Year Ended 31 March 2022 Year Ended 31 March 2021
) - . Larsen & Toubro Limited Larsen & Toubroe Limited
:ﬁ{fﬁ‘;ﬁﬁ;ﬁf‘m CPP Investment Board Singaparcas Holdings 1 P, Limited CPP Invesiuent Board Singaporean Holdings 1 Pre. Limited
CPPIR India Private Holdings Inc. CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc.
Mlow subsidiartes Latsen & Tonbro Infotech Limited Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited
L&T Hydrocarbon Engincering Limited L&T Hydrocarbon Engincering Limited
L&T Shipbuilding Linited L&T Shipbuilding Limited
L&T Infrastructure Engineering Limited L&T Infrastrecture Engineering Limited
L&T Finance Limited L&T Finance Limited
ssociates Infernational Seaports Haldia (Private}Limited International Seaports Haldia (Private)Limited
LTIDPL INDVIT Services Limitad [Refer Mote 50} LTIDPL INDVIT Services Limited [Refer Note 50]
sy Managerial Persoane! Mr. R Shankar Raman, Chairman and Non-execulive dircotor Mr. R Shankar Rinan, Chairman and Noo-exeeutive director
Mr. Shaflesh K, Pathak - Chief Executive and Managing Director {Upto
April 27, 2021}
Mr, T.5. Venkatesan, Whole-time Director (upte April 87, 2020)
Mr, Sudhakar Rao, Independent Direcior M. Sudhaker Rao, Independent Director:
Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iyer, Independant Director Ms, Vijayalakshmi Rejaram Jyer, fndependent Director
Mr. Dr.A Veer Raghavan, Independent Director El‘a‘inayak Laxman Patankar, Independent Director {upto February 21,
Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni, Non-executive Director Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni, Non-executive Director
Mr, DipX..Sen, Non-executive Director Mr. Dip K Sent, Non-execntive Director (w.e.f July 13, 2020}
Mr., Dip K Sen, Managing Director {w.c.f May 05, 2021} Mr. Tnip.K.Sen, Manaping Director & Chief Bxecutiva Officer {w.e.f
May 05, 2021)
Post employment beaefit plan  {Larsen & Toubro Officers & Supervisory Staff Provident Fiad Larsen & Toubro Officers & Supervisory Staff Provident Fund

ctails ef transactions with related parties: (including taxes wherever applicable}

ature of Relationship/Name/Nature of transaction

2021-22

2620-21

Hotding Company
Larsen & Toubro Limited

Purchase of goods and services
Sale of goads and services
Reimbursemeut of expenses from
Reimbursentent of expenses to

Rent paid

Advance received for sale of windmill
Return of advance received for sale of windmiil
Consideration received for sale of windmill

-Fellow Subsidiaries

Tassen &Toulwo Infotech Limited
Purchase of assets and intangible assets under

development
Awvailment of services

L&T Infrastructure Engineering Limited
Parchase of goods and services

i. Larsen & Toubra Officers and Supervisory Staff

rovident Fund

Towards employer coniribution

r. Key nranagement personnel
Executive Director
e, T.S. Venkatesan

sdependent/Non-executive ditectors

. Associate Company

LTIDPL Indv[T Sesvices Limited
Sale of poods and services
Internationsl Seaports Haldia (Private) Limited

Dividend received

730
017

50.06
511

095

26.11
021
5.06

2500
2638

258
0.04
0.93

0.02
0,14

249




istructure Development Projects Limited
ting part of the Consolidated Ind AS Finaneia) Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2622

mt due 16 aud due from related parties {net) :

. As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
Due to BDuc fram Due to Due from
ding cempany
Larsén & Toubro Limited 249 69,76 497 185.71
[ow subsidiaries
arsen- & Toubto Infotech
Liited 033 " 1.68 -
Larsen & Toubrs Officers &
Supervisory Staff Provident .23 - a2 -
Fund

'o amounts have been written offf written back during the current yzar and previous year in respect of related parties.

ssure pursuant to Ind AS 33 "Earningg per share®

jaity Shares

Particalars 2122 2028-21
puing Operations
sic eavnings per equity share
‘Loss) Frofit after tax as per accounts (T crore} A 2476 (136.07)
Weighted averags number of equity shares outstangding 629,511,764 629,511,764
sic EPS (T) A/B 039 {2.07)
afed ezrnings por equity share
Loss)/ Profit afler tax as per accounts (% crore) A 2476 {13047
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 629,511,764 629,511,764
Add : Weighted avernge sumber of potential equity c _ 3
shares on account of CCPS _
Weighted average nuniber of shares outstanding for D=B+C 629,511,764 629,511,764
filuted EPS )
uted EPS (%) AD .39 2.87T
te value per share (D) 10.00 10.00

= Company has 10,000 Special Equity Shares of % 13 each cutstanding which do not have any right to receive dividend or other distributions of the Company or otherwise carry any
mie rights. Consequently, samings per share is not applicable to such Special Equity Shares,

sic and diluted EPS for the Special Equity Sharcs of T10 each does not arise as the shares do not have any right to receive dividend or other distributions of the Group or otherwise carry
zonomic.rights, except to the extent of ¥ 10 per share in the event of liquidation or dissolution of the Group.

-the year ended March 31, 2022, the Basic and Difuted Earaiups per Share is the same as it is anti-dilutive in nature,




L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

44 Disclosure pursuaut to Ind AS £2- "Incon‘ie taxes”

3y The major components of incorme tax expenses for period ended :

Particatars 2020-21 2019-20
% crore £ crore
Current Incomse tax
Current Income tax charge 3542 616
Deferred Tax
Relatiny to origination and reversal of temporary difference 042 {1.25)]
Ipcome tax repurted in the statement of profit and loss 35.84 34.91
) Recenciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's damestic tax rate for 31 March 202] and 31 March 2020 :
Particalars 2020-21 2019-20
3 croe ¥ crore
Accounting profit before tax fom continuing operations 100.09 {11847)
At India’s statutory income tax rate 3464 (41.08)
Other deductible, exempt and non deductible expenses 120 7591
Income tax charge for previous periods - -
Tax as per Siatement of Profit zad Loss 35.84 34.91
Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss 35.84 3491
<) Major components of Deferred tax iabilities and assets ]
Recognized in
. Asat Recognized in other Asat
Particulars 01 April W21 | profitandloss | comprehensive |  CPPerS 31 March 2022
income
Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assats (922) - - 0.32 (8.90)
Financial Assets ai FVTOCL (857 - 856 - (0.01)
Other deferred tax items 3.85 (1.20} - 046 311
Net Deferred Tax Asvets/ ( Liakilities) (13.54) (L.20) 855 0.78 (5.80)
Recognized in
. Asat Recognized in other Asat
Particalars OLApril 2020 | profit and loss | comprehensive Otlrers 31 March 2021
income
Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assels® (1082 208 - (0.48) ©.22)
MAT oredit eatitfement 632 - - (0.32} -
Fimancial Assets at FVTOC! (4337) - 34.80 {8.57)
Other deferred tax ftems 388 {0.83) - (.80 3.85
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ { Linhilities) {49.9%) 1.35 34.80 (0.00) (13.34)
Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation in the case of some of the subsidiaries are recognised only to the extent of deferred tax
liabilities,

The Group has availed te hioliday /s 80-1A of the Income-lax Act, 196! for some of its sabsidiaries. Deferred tax asselsAiabilities in such cases are not
recopnised to the extent they reverse within the tax holiday period.

d) Ttems for which no defered tax asset is recogiised in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2027
Unused tax logses on which no deferred taxes are recopnised in balance sheet

As at Asat
Particolar 3§ March 2422 | 31 Marvch 2021
T crore % crore
3} Tax [osses (Long term Capiial Joss on which no deferred tax asset is created)
AY 2017-18 60524 63861
AY 201819 54.76 34.76
AY 2019-20 6749 6749
AY 2020-21 14.32 1432
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS Firancial Statements for the year ended March 31 22022

Unrecognised deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet

As at As at
Particulary 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Terore Tergre
a) Temporary differences between tangible and intangible nssets -
b} Unabsocbed depreciation losses -
¢} Towards provision for diminution in value of investments 540.58 1,300.51
45 Disclosures as per [nd AS 37« "Pravisions, Contingent Lizhilities and Cantingent assets "
2) Movement in provision :
Batance as at rut;?;:t;:::in us:;lw.si: od Unwinding of Balance as at
Particalurs o1 Aprilzoz1 |P & usedirey interest 31 March 2022
the yesr during the year
Zerore % crore T crore % crore T crore
Provision for periodic major maintenance 580,97 10724 {387.53) 37.54 338.22
Balance as at m‘:id(ii;:?nrli usf‘;z:mn Unwirding of Balance as at
Particulars 01 April 2029 | Provision during | usedireversed interest 31 March 2021
the year duriang fhe year
3 crore % grore T erore T crore % crore
Provision for periodic major maintenance 46933 117.19 (50.44) 44,89 580.97

b) Periodic major maintenance Fepresents provision made for resusfacing obligations in accordance

NHAVGSRDC/OWD and is expeeted to be senfediutitised aver a period of one to seven yeurs.

with the ferns of concession agreement with



T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited

e forming part of the Consolidated Ind AS3 Financial Staternents for the year ended March 31 L2022
Bisclosure pursuant to Tnd AS 112 "Disclosare of interest in other entities”

(a) Change io Group's control in a subsidia
On account of transfer on entity to Infrastructuse Investment Trust :

LTIDPL Indvit Services Limtted {formerly known as WITL) is a 100% subsidi
appointed as the luvestment Manager of the InvIT wust, The Management of the Compan

adjustments have been made in "Other equity™.

{b) Chamnge in Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
On account of dilution ;
L&T Halol-Sharmlaji Tollway Limited (“HSTL"

hold 51% of the Company's issued shares.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the National Company Law Tribunai (NCLT}) has aliowed the ihsotvem:y
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under section 7 of the

shtity hag been suspended and Insolvency Professional has been appointed.
The Company filed appeal to stay the proceedings of above insolvency arder befors the Hono
1as been vacated on 21st Octaber 2021 and decision making authority vestes with Resolution
-&T IDPL over HSTL, HSTL ceases to be the subsidiary from 1st Octaber 2021, The finan

1y {withont clapges in ownership interests)

) is a subsidiary of L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited
had entered into a Stratepic Debt Restructuring Scheme (“SDR Schermie™) with its lenders by which the lenders subscr

Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016

inind AS 28 -

ary of the Company. Pursuant to InviT pracess, ETIDPL IndvIT Sérvices Limited has been
y has assessed the aspects of control as provided in Ind AS 116 and concluded

("IDPL"). During the financial year 2016-] 7. HSTL
ibed to the equity shares of the Company and tn'tarn

application filed by a Financial Creditor for initiation of
against HSTL. Consequently, the Board of the aforesaid

urable Supreme Court of India. During the current year, the Supreme Court
prafessional and the Committee of Creditors. Due to cessation of power of
cials of L&T IDPL consolidates the financial position of HSTL upto 30tk

September 2021
disclosure of subsidisries havisg material non-controlling interest:
Interests of Nen-controlling interests
L&T Halol Shamgji L&T Transportation
{ame of the subsidiary Tollway Limited (Tilt 30th | Infrastucture Tollway PNG Toflway Limited
Sep-21) Limited
'rincipal place of business India India India
‘raportion of ownership held by non controlling interest 51.00% 26.24% 26.00%
rofit/{Loss) allocated to non-controlling interests during the year Nil 758 43.37
«eumnulated non controlling interesis at the and of the year Nil 9475 (75.75)
Hvidends paid by subsidiary 1o the non-cantreliing interests Nit Mil Nil
umiarized Stafement of Profit and Lass
L&T Halol Shamlaji L&T Transportation PNG Tollway Limited
Partical Tollway Limited Infrastructure Tellway
articalars Limited .

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
evenue from operations - 94.16 46,55 4464 - -
ofit/(Lass} for the Year - {54.02) 28.89 26.26 167.21 (5:04)
ther Comprehensive Income - {0.01) 0.01 0.01 - -
tal Comprehensive Income - {54.03) 28.90 2627 167.21 {5.04}
ofit(Loss) allocated to non-controlling Interest - (27.55) 7.58 6.8% 4347 {1.31}
ividend to Non Controlling Interest - - -
tinitacized baijance sheet

. L&T Transportation
L‘?‘r:‘]fv‘:hﬁ""ﬂm' Infrastructurs Tollway | PNG Toliway Limited
Particulars ¥ Limited Limited _
Asat3} Az at3] Asat3l Asat31 Asat31 Asat3l
March 2022  March 2021 | March 2022 | March 2021 March 2022 | Marck 2021
irrent assets (a) - 124.30 286.09 235,19 0.7%9 0.39
trrent Liabilities (b) - 371.84 8.60 27.94 0.00 167.32
4 Current assets (cy=(a{b) - {247.54) 27749 20725 0.7¢ {166.43)
m-Current assets {d) - 1.094.56 195.71 [98.80 0.09 409
m-Current Liabilities {g) - 533.94 48.33 10.07 - -
t Non Current asseis (f) = (d)-(e) - 560,62 147.38 188,73 0.09 0.09
tassets (g)=(c}H{f) - 313.08 424.87 395,98 0.8% (16634}
curnulated Non Controlling Interest - 86.46 94.75 H4.28 {75.75) (26.35)
mmarized ¢ash flow statement
L&T Halol Shamlaji L&T Trapspoertation PNG Tollway Limited
Particutars Tollway Limited Infrastructure Tollway
2021-22 2020-21 202122 2020-21 282122 2020-21
sh flow from Operating activities - 47.30 49.13 2297 (0.12) 6.03
i flow from Investing activities 206 (45.82) (21.48) .66 0.73
ih flow from Financing activilies 8.05 (2.05) (1.80) - (5,83)
:'lncrease.f( deerease) In cash and cash _ 5791 126 (0.31) (0.06) ©.07)
ivalents

Investment in associates and
f control, Accordingly, the Necessany




astructure Development Projects Limnited
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lesure pursuant to md AS 107" Finaneial snstruments: Disclosure”

ent, capital jncludos issued aquity capital and alt other equity Teserves atributable 1o the equity holders of the

to maximize the shareholder value.

ilal Managemeut
{he purpese of the Group’s capital managem
apt. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is

\ancial Risk nManagentent
1y of financial risks 7 market risk, cxedit risk and liquidity risk, The Group's facus is 1o Toresee the. unpredictability of
cformance. Fhe Bouard of Directors of the parent company has overatl

¢ Groug's activities gxpose it 10 varie
ancial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financia} pe
work, The Board of Directors of the parent company have established
riate risk limits and controls, and to nonitor Tisks and adherence to

sponsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Groug's risk management frame

4k management policy to identify and analyze the 1isks faced by the Graup, to 5ct AppIop

nits, Risk management sysiems. are reviewed pariudically 10 reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Board of Directors oversee
ynpliance with the Group’s risk management palicies and procedores, and reviews the risk management framewnrk.

farket Tisk
fAows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate Decause of changes it market prices. Market risk

he market fisk i8 {he rigk that.the Fair value ot fure cash
.omprises three sypes of sisk: Toreigh currency risk, interest rate risk; and other price risk.

Foreign Currendy Risk
of changes in forgign exchange rate. The

Foreign currency risk is the
Group is not exposed to foreipn CUAIENCY risk ag it

risk that fair value of future cash flows of 2 financial instrurnent will fisctuate becauss
has 1o borrowing of 1O material payebles in foraign cugrency.

Tnterest rate risk
Intcrest rate sisk is the 1isk {hat faiz valueOr fature cash flows of a financial instrument wiil fluctuate becalse of changes i market interest Faies. The interest
{oans from banks, financial Habilities and deferred payment Jiabilities with yariable rates. The Gronp measwres risk

risk arises to the Group mainly from term
through sensitivity analysis. Currently, lending i from debentures for which the interest rates are fixed.

he Group's eXposure to interest Tate risk due to varisble interest rate borrowings 15 45 follows:
h2022 31 March 2021

T
31 Mare
3 688.06 483825

Semior debt from banks and financial ingtifutions

Qensitivity analysis based on averdge outstanding secured borowings
Jmpact 00 profit/ 1oss after tax
2020-21

2021-22

Tncrease or decrease i nfergst raie bY 75 basis points (L85 12.10
Nofe: Profitwill increase in case of decrease in interest rate and vice versd
Price risk

Prige risk s the rigk that the fal

from interest rate risk or currency risk).
The Group is exposed to pricz risk due to investments i mutual funds and the same are fair valued tarough profit oF loss.

The Group MEAFUIES risk through sensitivity analysis.
The Group's risk management policy is0 mitigate the risk by investments iny diversified mutua! funds.

gsure to price risic due fo Investments in mutual fund and units of TavIT is 28 follows:

The Company's ¢xp
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 20Z1
602.12 21127

ir value or fubwe cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate becauss of changes in market prices {other than those arising

Tavestments in Mutual Funds .
Tnvestment i ndinfravit Trust 468%.21 940,03

Sensidivil Analysis
Tiupact o0 Ernﬁti [oss after tax

particulars 2021-22 202021

Thorease or decrease T NAY by 1% 602 2.1t
Wi veill reduce and vice versa.

Note - In case of ecrease.in NAY pra
Impact o1 other

comprehensive jneqme before
fax
2021-22 202021 __

M
Incrense ar deCreass AV by 1% 4.68 940
Nole - In case of decreuse in NAV profis OCI reduce and vice verse.

Credit cisk
Credit risk &8 the risk that one party 16 2 financial ingtrument
company of the roup 18 primasily an jnvestment company and retums is by wey of return oft investment.

opefation and maintenance services fo the road projects where the Group has invested at @ utaaliy agresd
wransaction, The Group has receiv hich are ither wnder @ dispute of is pending seftiement.

abiles from few govemmentﬁ% apencics Wi
Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk ig the zisk that the company will encoanter diffic

py failing to discharge an obligation. The parent
The Group through its gubsidiaries provides ol
fee. The Group sees 1o credit risk in that

will cause & finaneiat loss for the other party

uliy in meeting gbligations assouiated with financial iiabilities that are settled by dolivering cash
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Non-Derivative flnaneis] linbility

Debt Secuzitiey 17500 112563 1L,775.52
Term Jaans 734.35 476.89 983.37 149345 3,688.06
Deferred Payment liabilities 120 I37.09 530.35 1,859.44 2,638.17
Unsectred toan from others 1.40 - - - 1.40
Trade Payables 7141 - - - 71.4}

GSRDC Revenue shape ‘Payable Ii5.09 26,58

- 231.59

Asat 31 March 2021 Upte 1 yeay
Noo-Derivaiive financia] liability
Deby Securities 805,53 12534 155.63 1766.10 2852.60
Term Loans 92328 519.74 1445 53 1949 70 483825
Deferred Paytnent liabilitiey 47.86 3313 146,97 2116.66 233862
Unsecured foan from athers 43,97 - - - 43.97
Trade Payzgbles. 74.40

- - - 74.91
GSRDE Revenive share payable 99.74 1224 11.07 172,85 29590

I
H
i
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Notes forming past of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Syatements for the yer cnded Mareh 31, 2022

48 Disclosure pursuant 1o Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement'

a} Category-wise classification of appiicabie Financial strnments

As et 31 March 2021 As at 31 Maich 2021
Particulars FVIPL FVTOCE Amortized FVIPL PYTOCL Amortized
. ¢ost. eost
Financial Asscls
[nvesiment in mutual funds 602,12 - - 21127 - -
Investmems in infrastructure tusts - 46821 - - 340,03 “
Tnvestmenis in other cotpanies 14.86" - - 14.26 - -
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances - - 1,231.78 - - 1.605.65
Trade receivables - - 17,73 - - 196.91
Other receivables - - 2 087.22 - - 221375
616,98 468,21 333673 226.13 940.03 4,016.31
Financial liability )
Debt Securities - - 1,775.52 - - 2.852.60
Ten?l Ljuan from banks and Financial ) ) 362806 . ) 453835
Tnstitutions
Deferred paymem liabilities - - 2,638.17 - - 2338.62
Term loans from. athers - - 140 - - 43.97
Trade payahles - - 1.4l - - 74.91
Other payables - - 436.10 - - 521.08
- - 8,610.66 - - 10,669.43

Default and breaches - Refer Note 12 and 16

b) Falrvaioe of Financial asset and lahilities at amortized cost

et e

————
Asat 31 March 2022 As st 31 March 2021

Particulars CarfIfg  gair Value Cartyis  gyir Value
amount amount

Financial Assets

¢ ash and cash equivaients and bank balances 123178 1,231.78 1,605.65 1,605.65

Trade receivables 1173 1173 196.91 19691

Other receivables 2,087.22 208722 221375 221375
3.336.73 3,336.73 4,016.31 4,016.31

Financial liability

Debt Secusities 1,775.52 177552 2,852.60 285260

Term loen from banks and financial 368806 268806 433825 483825

instifutions

Deferred payment Yiabilities 363817 2,638.17 2,338.62 233862

Term loans from othets 1.40 1.40 4397 4397

Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares - - - -

Trade payahles 7141 7141 7491 TA91

Other payables 436,10 436,10 521.08 52108

8,610.66 561066 10 66043 10,669.43

.\ O SRy

The camying vaiue of loan to related parties 2ppo imate fair value os the instruments are at prevailing market rate.
The carrying value of lefm foans and debentues approximate fair valug 2s the instruments are at prevailing market rate.

c) Fair value hierarchty of financial asset and financial liabitities

As st 31 March 2022

Tinancial asset easured 5t FVIPL: Naote Levell Tevel 2 Leveld Total
Tnvestments it Mutual Funds 6 602,12 - - 602.12
e e ————
Financial assels measured at BYEOCL Note Level 1 Leyvel 2 Level 3 Total

 Reveld | LS
[avestment in units of infrastructure mist 6§ 468,21 - - 468.21
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the Consolidateq Ind A Financial Statemengs Tor the year ended March 3 1, 2022

2021

! Market Approach

vestments in Infastruciuee truste Market ‘Approgch
Financigy Liahilities

Debt Securi 25 income Approach

Term Joans from banks Income Approach

Other financia] linbilities

€} Asgpts Pledged ag

Financia| Asser

Bank balanceq
Trade Ieceivable

Investmems )
Other Finaneip assels

Perty, plant ang equipment
Investment Pro;
Othier non-finane

Income Approach

$eCurity

Cash and cagh equivalents

5

2

3

4

Other Ieceivables 5
G

7

9

ial assers

Net asser Yalue
Net asser. Value

Effective rata of bmrowing
Effective rare of bom)wing
ffective rate of bon‘owfng

67.37
164,41
17.73
208408
602.12
3.14
20.06
.00

£;.



wructure Development Préjects Limbted
ng part of the Comsolidated Ind AS Financial &

o of Teade Payables as at March 31, 2022

for the year exded March 31, 2022

Zerore
Particnlars Unbilled Bues | Not Yet-Due Less than 1-2Y¥zars | Z—3 Years More thag Tosal
1 Year 3 Years
IE. - 4328 0.74 - - - 5.02
15 - I 16.49 3.21 1.35 3.14 £3.24
Related pastios - .06 .70 - = 239 a.15
yied Dues - MSME - - - - - - -
uted Dues « Otherx - - - - - - -
wtexd Dues - Related parties - - - - - - -
Total - 43.38 17.93 321 135 5.53 NAi
og of Trade Payables as st March 31, 2021 T crore
fealprs Unbilled Dues [NotVetDue | “S2D9% 15 yyen |aosvears | Morethan Total
1 ¥Year 3 Yearz
B - 2.99 327 0.0L - - 618
13 . 4024 10,96 3.45 560 1.92 Gl 1a
uted Dues - MSME - . - - - - -
uted Dues - Others - - - - - - -
vied Dhuec - Related pargies - . - - - - -
Total - 4315 16.10 3.5 141 4.65 491
ng of Trade Reccivables 33 a1 3151 March 22 T crong
. Less than 6 Months —~ Miore than
Partieulars Unbilled Dues | Not Yet Due 6 Months 1 Year 1—2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Vears Total
sputed Trads Receivables— Considered Goods - 115 10.1% 0.3% - - - 1173
sputed Trade Receivables — Which have significant & in eredit risk - - - - - - - -
sputed Trads Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - w - - -
uted Tradg Reeeivablis —Comsidered Goods ~ - - - - - - -
uted Trade Receivables — Qthich bave significant increase in arodit dsk - - “ - - - - -
uted Trzde Receivahles — Credit Impaired - - - - - - w -
Teial - T.16 10,18 .39 - - - £7.7%
ng of Trade Receivables a3 at 3184 March 21 3 croce
Particutars Unbilled Dues | Not Yet Duie 1'?: ﬂu‘m & Months— 1--1 Years 2=-3 Yeary Mo fhan Total
[ 1 Year 3 Years
sputed Trade Receivahles — Considered Goods - 6.57 150,34 - - - - 196.91
sputsd Trade Receivables ~ Which have sipnificant tntrease in oredit risk - . - - - - - -
sputed Trade Recsivables — Credit impaired B - - - B “ - -
uted Trade Receivables —~ Considered Goods - - - - - - - -
uted Trade Receivables —Which have significant increase in ceedit risk -« - - - - - - -
uted Trade Receivables —Credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total = 6.57 190,34 - - - - 196.91




L&T Infrastructure Development Profects Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidazed fnd A8 Firameist Staterments for e year ended March 31, Jo22

50 The Group is carrving toll eollection datns {net of ration/enpak ) agg g €.3,505.59 Crores in four Operating subsidiaries of the Company, ¢agaged in infastractare prejects whose net worth

£

54

55

is fully rodediunderguing testruetaning dng 10 cantinucas Jasses, for a pesiod of more thn § y%ars, as at 31 Mareh 2022, The Gramp the meoverability of such fnfr onan
anaual basis, considering the probable beneficil esulty sising from varims mifizdives being undertaken with regard 1o tefimanciug of loans taken, Submissier of claims or Purseing with appropriate
authorities on tlevant pending claiins, so that the finaneial visbility of he projects e be impraved. The Group has 1evisiied the rctions made i the prevs year by contidering the osulis of fuch
itiatives daring the year as well 33 the statns of diseussions with televant authosties e dutermiss: the expecied cash flow for the r2maining concession period af thess projects,

For t purpase of d ining the bls value o its investm ,!!:cCampanyhzcmidcrLdsiglﬁﬁmmirmgnnd" whith itteralia includes the di d cash fows o d
based oa the trafBo projections, prebiabl recovery of arbitration claims, ipact doe $o e rafiere events and discount rmiss cafeutmad based on 1he eust of equity for the applicabite imvestment. adjostad for
ths proposed ing/refinanting: Al of these st and fudg have Inheront undertaintics and aﬂualrmksmayés’ﬁwﬁ'om!i:dcsﬁn:awdnsa!ﬂmdmeuﬂheﬂahmsbm.

Congidering the gestation period required for break even for suck infisstructure & s Fests Jaz/refinuncy carzicd ewtproposed and expested impraved cash flows in s fiture
business projeetions, no additi 'mwaﬁmmmﬂxmwmu&'ﬂzﬂdmﬂ llection vights is considered v by the It asat3| Marghy 2022,

During tho year caded 31 March 2023 + Vadoadara Bharuch Tollways Limited, 2 subsisdiary, has eotred infts a settloment agreesnent with NHAL As perhe'terms of scitlement agreement, compeny has
been granted with 50 dass extension periad against Covid claii and 3,14 dass agaimt Fores Mjoure - Nabionawide Transporters Strike 201X, This exiended Deriod is nohed off apaind #ompazy's Iiability

i effect of the above mentioned settfeent sgreement is taken in the books of accounts as at 315t March 2022 by reversing the Opening provisi of Major Mai wrd CurTent year provision for
Mzisr Maivtenae,

In FY 20#7-18, impai ed in one of the subsid iuvmachup,PNGTDIk\'a}sI.imited_mwarﬂlmemn'_vingﬂhenfnelmivablewasmmibuwdmﬂmnﬁmﬁtyshmhefdmhﬂm}w
inpmpu:ﬁmtaﬁmirhvldhlg.'mmamiawzl-zz.Zs%oflbcsmammm&ngmi%s. lﬁ.%Cmr::sm-ibutablchﬂmnximﬁty trareholder kas bepn adj dimy icn to their equity holdings, (Reser
nete 22) .

One of the wubsidizriey, L&T T spartstion infr imitd, which hod beest swarded 5 Build-OperateTransfer (BOT) pmj:ctﬁ:rmsmcﬁmaf:.b)mss ol ro2d and 3 bridge over the River
Noyyal in Coimbatore fistrict of Timil Nada State, uder the Concession Agreament dated 03 Cctober 1997. had received a fenmination botice franr the Ministry of Road “Transport and Highways
{MaRIHJ,Gw:mmoﬂndia.m;:mde_l" ination was G of India’s subsequent fnneni 10 po for fous-laning of the existing bwo 120¢ rpad, The subsidiary had ebtaimed iggunction from
ﬂscDclMHs'ghCourﬂg&nslﬂsesaidi:nni:mimnodt:nfﬂ!:Gomnuncmandisaswniinglymnﬁm&:gmcoﬂcn:mﬁ.ﬂmtq!ﬂngﬁghtsot'h bidiary are p | under the afresaid
agrcement,

Tiee subsidiary had alsa filed an applcati opting for trbitration for resolusi ofdisputnsmdanArhih’aITn‘hmwhdhccn fted g dod in the i . “The Arbis) Tribunal had
pronounced the award on lZDmmberZDHinEnw:ofﬂ:cCumpmy,mTﬁkm]hadaho dod, intzralia, comy C knbcpaidmrhuEompmyﬁrlossafmmuenmlhupshmﬁﬁdgcmd

suitable extention ofthe cencessioy period,

MoRTH had ehaflenged the swand og 12 March 2015 seeking sty of the aforesaid tftunal award before the Hort'blo Del¥ High Cowmt The case was Sreasforred to Commaszcial Appeiiase Conrt of the Defhi
Bigh Court during the provioas year, Dusing the previons financial years, the Ministry of Road Trazmsport and Highways bad taken nitintives to mvive the Infrastructane sector though NETT Aaysg, The
propesals appraved ineluded tranefer alarbiemtion cons existing ander the old ack, 1 the amended actand else to provide relief to e concesslonzires in the forg efimerin payment af 75% of the Arbiirl
awaudhcasen\hmdmz:fwmﬂmﬁgmmdlhmmwhichnm halienged by tse impk i i nemmrwaslamﬁsiedm&bmmyﬂz 2019 aod the sams had been adjoured o Agril

ing 3pp|
reeeived Fam MORTH on Novanber 06,2017, The balanee award amoynt of ¥ 5448 crores i shown as receivable fror;MORTH.} b) MoRTHhadapp:wcd 1he foe revidion on Jaomary UE, 2018 and the
same had bern kmplemerted ﬁ'nmfmw__y 22, 2018, The Company kad collected T 23,26 crores o serount of toll revision il Getober 1, 2007 and was okl in & sepamte £LCMOW Seeount and not
contidered a¢ income. However, based on the abowe Honourable High Court Dedhi onder the caid amount wyas considercd s income during the year ended Marh 31, 2020,

The Company ks Fted the ienee bundle oo § b M.'mzlamm:mmlist:dmstpwmbu-ﬁ?,:!m]wusmhkennpﬁ:ﬂwaingmﬂmﬂay,demoﬂh:]isﬁ.ngoe‘lhsmhasm

Honever, MoRTH has challenged the Asvant cfore e Diivision Bénch of the High Count of Dl First Bearing in the roattor wes held o Marsh, U3, 2020 ud MoRTH was dircetod by the High Comt of
Delhi fo deposic Bhe batares 25% oF the award amount before the Repisre of the Delis High Court within 4 weeks zrd has zio directed ta vomplete e pleadi s with Tegpect I domtion of delay and

I the moansliile, the Cempany fiked an rpplication o release the amount deposited by MoRTH i 2 32,69.00,000, The Honorahls High Court of Delhi vida its orfer dated April 15, 2028 dirgcted chat e
amount deposited by MoRTH shall be releascd to the Campany egainst fumishing of an waconditonal bank EusrAice from 2 mationalised bank for the entire atownt. The Corpany has sobmircd the bank
pEanatee and received the antonm 0 Rs.39,09 00,000 from the Honorable ¥Ggh Cowt of Delhi on Augusr 13, 2021, The Company Ias filed the comvenience bundle on September 03, 2021 204 the nimter
list=a on September 07, 2021 was ot taken up for hewing on that day. Next date of th listian of the matier has nef beon ghon Upoa Lsiliiy of the maner before tha Reyistrar of the Delhi High Court, 1
matter would be taken o beforg g segulit Beoach for fusther proceedings.

An xnount of € 47.69 ¢rore {As 81 51 March 2021: 2 52.75 cmmh&ngmmkrmimrzdsubsiﬁaﬁm),iswﬁudum TIGL Amoct ble tovards beominati P fon by ot subsidi ry of
the Group, engaged in infistructare project, which has eemiialed oo ag entered into with the Nasions] Highway Authorities of India {NHAL. Fhe natuse of deSudll ind tarmination emosnt
claimed has nos been aceepted by NEAL znd arbitration proceedings bave bogn mitited in fezpect of the disputes relaing to the tonmination paymentslclaing,

Consequétt to Termination of L&T Chennai Tads Toll limited, 2 subsidiary, dos ta Axthor v Evont of Défuult, the Compatty bad defaxlted in ropayinent of interest and principel due I the lenders
since Seprembior 2015, The fendars of the Company bzd ssued recall wetices to the Compagy for 13 trement of the oulstardding dves, Buting the F.Y, 2013-19, the lmbank!m[ﬁledarccawry_
petition before the Bebt Retovery Tribural, Chenmy for rezavary of their dues, The Arguments in the maner was eorploicd on Mareh (8, 2005, On Aprit 15, 3019, the Debt Recovesy Tribural, Chesmas
vide iis order po. O.A. No. 37072007 bad sflowed the leag bank 1o Tecover the debt due shong with 2 simple fnterest (& Fapa zhs:cadofcumpnundingramnt‘l?x.so% po.. the interest rate as charged bythe
banks effective Fobnuay 27, 2017, being the rocavery petition fled dat:. The Debt Due neads ta be P2 by NHAL 25 per the arbiteation onder.

Pruring the year, the lenders have filed an-application before the I-fonur'abie DRT-II secking direction to issue Tecovety centificate sgainst the Company for the purpose of
recovering the debt due as on the dats of filing the original application. The Tribsmal hos passed-an arder to ixsue recovery tertifieate in favor of the londers vige its arder dated
April 15, 2019, and accordingly the Debit recovery centificate wos igsued on July 14, 2025 md a demand notice dated July 31, 2021 wag issyed by the recovery officer to deposit
the sum-of € 354,03,80,501 within 13 days of recedpt of the notice, The szid demand notice was yeceived by the Company on Augisst 09,2021, The Company had filed an
application before the DT and equested-to extend the time granied i the demand nolice by a period of 180 days. The IDB] badk (leed bank} filed their counter and the
Company filed the rejoinder to the same. As the order was 0t passed on the first application filed by the Company, the Company filod sue more application for amerding e

prayer in the first application seeking extension of time by 365 days instead of §80 days. The anguments on the spplication was coneluded on March 31, 2022 &nd the same hag
been reserved for orders.

Dueding the vear, the Comgany has given sfizct of the DRT order i the hooks wfaceounts fiom Febnpry 27, 2017 i, being the DRT apphication dats, witheut conside i s the baltrce confitmatinn peeeived
from the respactive lenders. Howrer, the Compeny Is also in Possessicn of e emsil dined June 24, 2006 from the kead bank confirmisg their agreesnet for sottlement as per the DRT Oder, Settleront of
the sbave loans ta lenders is linked 1o deposis of eroney by RHAT 2gainst arbitration ordiras per NITT Aayoy policy which is expacted o happen during Ananeis) year 2022+23, once the appeals are admvined
iz the High Coutt of Dictt




LA&T Infrastruciure Development Projects Limited .
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During the yeay ended 35 Masch 20619, on2 of the subsidiasies, L&T Symakhiak Gasdtidham Toliway Limited won 2 ubitration award ugeinst the Natiuoa] Highway Authority of india ("NHAT) in to
matter rofared to ton of cenain additional woiks w.rt ! obligation vader i 1oz ag) . The said woshs were beyoad U defined scope of work and hende qualificd for change of
seops compansation by NHAL which was disputod by NHALTh: sobsidiary weat cn arbitestion and succeeded # teir chaim on the 5aid manzy, The valuation of ip i ing te ¥ 11520 crore
pavable including a infercst compensation of around € 25,00 erro for the pesiod delay insettlameat has beeu wwarded by he honarable astbitraiion tibunal,

During the previous financial vears, the Ministey of Read Trwisport and Highways Lad taken irifatives to revive the Infrastrucnus seetor though NITF Aayos. The proposals approved include (ransfor of
arbilration cases existing coder the old act, t the aimcoded 3ct and also to provide eefief fo the concertivnaires i the fours of interim payment of 73% of the Arbicral swand ia cases whens the tribunal hed
granked the awvand, which were challengad by the impl ion agencics. Therefore, the subsidiary ks <figible for an interim compensiion of 75% of mbitration award against bank guarantes, The same
was approved by NHAL in the leaer dated (4 April 219 for a sum of 2 $2.37 crore including # imatst compensation of 2 5.97 crore for perind delay in setifement Astival Tefunzl wae comsiitated oa
241182016 & Arbitral Tribunad bas prncuneed A unaminous Award on 11.11.2018 in favoer of L&T §GT)., whemin ihe NHAL has been dirccted to pay anamount of T 115.20 Croms to L&T SGTL within
80 days from 11.11.2018. b ease (s WHAT £adls 1o make the payment of 2 1320 crores 10 LET SGTL within 60 days NHAE has been directed 1 pay the futher interest (18% per annum on T L1320
etores Foos 11102018 6ifl the dane of f therecf Subscquently MHAE has challinged the Award under Seetion 34 of the Atbitrstion and Conciligion Agt, §9%§ befare the High Coun of
Dethi However, in terms of the Niti Aayog policy NHAJ has releasod an amount of ¥92.36 crones on 2708 2019 apainst BG piven for an amount of €92 .37 Cr

Matter is licted For argumenty on Adotission. The maiter was listed en 14.03 2022 whereins SGTL submitted thot thete 888 coriain preliminary submicsions that noed to be rads dealt with before hearing the
matier. Matter is adjoumed to 10052022 for ag of prelininary sobmissi fSGTL.

During the year coded, 3§ March 2022. ons of the ssbsidiarics, L&T Buecean Foliways Limited, a settiemont agreciuent was nlarod betwees i Company arxd NHA{ on March 26. 202, the Company has
tregived T 108.28 crore {net of e} on Aprdl 19, 2021 fmen NHAL The details of the amount reezived is given belgny

i Destription Antount in Crare
Scttlm!eut amounl from Ijﬂ-lAI 1442
inchuling COTVD 19 chim pf Rs. 10.34 croro)

Ereduetion yupainsd Nopative Changs of Seepe (4.49)
Nat recoivable 102.93]
Dedutliss of TRS {1.65}
Amecumt reczived from NHAL 103.28

Out of the obove serilement amount from NHAL, the Company bias acoounted T 16,34,25,0000- towards COVID clikn teceivahls fram NHAS chuing tha FY 20200-2§, Further, during the current Buaneial
year, the Company has obuined the approval fom sharebhalders and setlled an ammmt of T 30,06,80,000/ to EPC contractor (1&F) towards settlemaent including Maretial Adverse Effeer claims, The
balsnce amount of 2 55,68.44,6285 has boon reduced Brom "Intangible 2532ts — User Toll Collcetion sights” a5 the settdement amourt froz NHAL is prdsiting lo construstion peried pre-aperative coss.
Acoiodingly, the Company hos sooounied ® 9,06,46,33 5 amder other meemms whish is towasds wversal of amortisation on the decapitilisation amount.

Fuve of the subsidiaris entered ino B with GSRDC have applied for reveoue share deforment and have recefved approval for the same. Accordingly, the deferred revezue shero will be
pawible along itk interest ot RBY benk rats plus 2% in werms of the supplementsry agreement ignad by the respactive subsidiaties with GSRBC,

Foree Majsure {FM) Events during the year in Group Companies:

Farmers' Unrest -

Drusing the Previous year, due o Fanmens' unrest thare was dissuption of talling from 25th Decemmber 2020;the sanwe has becn considered 28 FIM syetit since the local authoritics/administration coudd not

piwvide support far enabling toll operations at Plaza. We have notificd MHAS vide letter dated 30th BMarch 3021 shout the same 35 everd of M wnder povisions of CA. The FM cvent continued 1 12t

i/ et 2021 and company bas stareed collecting tell fiom 13t Deccraber 202 1. Company has filed interim claims to NHAT vide various leters

Interim clsim of Rs.6.73 Cr for the M period fill May 21 is recommended by HE Vide lesier daged 26th July 2021 and the same is approved by NHALzad payment it also recoived. Compasny hias atso Todged

dhie clairny for the remaining FM pericd through veriots letters and final lotter 5 sent on 25t Ecb 2022,

16 hus recommended 350 devs of cxiension vite letter date 26th Febnury 2022, MHAL approval is i process and extension will be accounted afier thay,

One of the subsidiarics of e Company b f 2 contrart for-construction of Rajkot-Jammegar-Vadinar Riosd 1o emake 2 Pour Lage Divided Caniagewny Facility under Visbility Gap Funding Scheme of

Gavernment of [ndia op Buitd, Operate and Truusfar (BOT) Basis (Project Highwavj. Subsequently, 2 C jon A (CA way epered into between RVEL and Gujsrt State Ruad Development

Corporation Lenited (GSRDC) an 17.09.2008 for the sams,

Also it was reeognized by the GO that 1o enable the #mplemertation of the Pioject Higlwvay ineluding 1o facibiate ity financing, operation and mai on BoT basis in aecondance with the CA, the

suppatof tie GOG was Ty ry. Therefore, atri-part agr U viz. State Soppert Agrecmeat {S3A} was entered ou. 11,9.2009 between e GO, GSRDC azd the Company

H during the ial ions GOG &id apt AL #s obligation as agreed and undertaken wider the SSA_ and quenlly, the Company i dsuffered revenue lasses and other losses.

GOG failed to pake: appropriale meanares o pr the $5A 10 ensure baw and order at the tofl plaza whish. resulted in Yass of rovetiue s sdditions! cst o the € pany, Therefore, the Company vide letters

dated 13092017 2nd 24.11 2017 sotificd is disputes 5 tomms of Clause 9.2 of the S54.

Since the Dispute could not be setiked, tie Company vide lotier dated 4.1 2019 req d GOG for amicabl X i s of Article 9.3 of SSA. Accwdi]_:giy, GO vide ketter dated 21.02.2019 fived

the conciliation mezting oa §,03.2019, However, the disputs remained unresolvest i the said moeting, ‘Therefore, the Company issucd Arbilaion notice dited 74 042018 to GOG along with the duscription

of claims sad nomimated their cominee arbi . The same was oljseted by GOG as 1he dispute was not arbitealile as they 2ns not party 1o the chin,

Hence, RVTL has filed the application under sectica 11{2} of Asbitration and Concllistion At for eppuintment of Arbitrator before the Guijaras High Court,

T addition ta the-sbove, the Company has fmvoked arbiiration for resolution of its lung pesding elaims related Dispute with GSRDC for an sreunt of & 27.56 crore inctuding intersst before the Arbitral

tribunal & sybsequently GSRIDC Bas submitted counter clvim for an amount of T37.10 erare

Then: was changs in GSRDC"s Senior Maragesmeent and because of which the consolidated semlement of GSRDC and GOG claims was delsyzd, However, on §5,£22021 Partics mel in the presence of

Competent Autbority (Claimman) of GSRBC and Chicf Principal Secretary 10 the Chisf Ministar of Gujarat to finafise the settlepent betwrsa the Partics, n ihe 52 megting it weos docided in this receting

that the Partics ghall itute 2 Conerfiation Comumites of Indcpender Expons (CCEL cousisting of three members (1) Retired Figh Court Judge, (2) Financlal Expert, and {3} Expericnced Technical

Expert. Subsequently, the CCIE wos comstitiried, and fe proceeding wre ongoing

One of the gubsidiarics of the Company Ims secured 2 contrac Rt i of Additiona) Two Lase for Ahmedabad-Viremgam-Maliya Road to maka it Four Lane Divided Cargiageway Facdity onder

Viability Gap Funding Seheme of Govemment of fiviia on Hniil, Opersic and Transfor (BOT) Basis (Project Highway) Suhsequently, a Concesston Agrooment {CA) was entered ino butween Company

and Gjarat State Road Davelopment Cotparation Linied (GSRDC) on [7.09.2008 far the sane. GOG 2ad GERDC regogmized that impleteettation of Projoct High and its iued operatica and
nce pader and i i u:-i:ﬁeﬁhmmmﬁmﬁm&fwtﬁ:d&vel@m:n&ﬂﬁﬂkafﬁujamand. develop: of infrs for the ic dovelop and geovth of the Stats.

IE.is also recognized by the GOG that fo eaahle the Implementation of the Project Highicay including to Fuilitate iis financlng, operagon and mainterance on BoT basis in accerdance with the CA, the

support of the GOG was catemely pecessary. Therefore, o wri-parte agreement viz. Swase Sepport Agteement {SSA) wag entered on 11.9.2009 betwéea the GOG, GSRBC and Conmpany,

"Fhercaficr, Company 15 pleted the fon of the Project Fighway, cbtadned provisioral COD in the year 2012 ad started opemation and maiatonance in dance to CA.

Hi o dunng the ial eperations GUG did not RilE] its obligation as ngreed and wadertaken under the SSA, and Ly, Companyi dfsuffered revermse fosses and other losses, GOG

failed 10 take appropiiate measeres a3 per the S84 (o enswee law and onder a1 che toll plars which resufted in foss of roveaue and addifaal cost on Company. Therefore, Company vide Jester dated

13.69.2017 and 28.11:2017 notified its disputes in teems of Clause 9.2 of the S8A.

Sints the Dispute could oot be scitled, Company vide lotter dated 4.1 7839 requested GO for umicable settlernent én terms of Article 93 ofS5A. Accardingly, GOG vide letiet dated 2802 3619 fGxed the

coneilistion mecting on 1.03,2019. However, the dispast remained unresolved in the said mecsing. Frerefors, Company issued Arbitration nolice dated 24.04.2019 w Gi0G 2long will the 2 clain =mount of

T 45,65 exorc and nominated their nomi i and the sanwe was objected by GOG as e dispate was not abitrable as they are not necossary partv:o the clain,

Her, Company bad filed e application umler section 11(2) of Asbiraion ard Ceociliation Act read with 1146){a) for sppaintment of Aritrator before the Gujarst High Count, Presemly, in the matier the

EHon'ble Cour has tssued vetice te the Rospondents aad now it is pending for their reply, However, an the last dass of| hearing i.¢. §7.04.2020 ihe mastor was edjonrned pursuant 1o the cireuldr of the Han'ble

Coutt fat only urgeot matiers am o be takengs ynsl Rurther orders, due 10 the prgest chaumstaces of pandemic. Thereafier, matier is pot taken on board and the next date is swaited fom cawrt.

L&T Decean Talhweays Uimited aperites in 1he infrastructure buskness sector shich involves hege capital . The Company’s h has fally emded prinsarily due to high depreefation, high
interest on term foan and Buesest on deferred preminm lability. However, the management expeet that te Company's nevenus for the subsequent financial years will be-sufficient to meet the expendiun:
and recoujs the lastes incurned theveby strengthering the Brancia! position of the Company. Acsordingly, the f iat have been p d vn poing concern basis.
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Panipat Elevabed Costidor Limited opemies ia the infrastnuctuse business sector which invalves buge capital investments The company’s net warth has betss eroded, Howerer, we expects that e Company's
revenus. for 1he subsiquent firancial years wil be sufficiént to mect the expenditure and recoup the losses incunred thereby strengihening the financial pasition of the Compary. Fusther, thers is a continuing

suppost from the halding compay and company will be able 1o discharge all its obligations in & hle futre. Acvordizgly, the financial bave brex prepared ox going concern basis.

L&T Rajkot Vaditar Tellway Limited fated losses have ded its Paid-up capital as on balance shees daw by 2.59.54 Crore, the company bas incttered net profif of T 110.70 Crore during the year
ended March 51, 2022 ol 25 on fhat daie the company™s current Fabilities exceeded its earment asssts by € 39329 Croza. The af e £otmpany rog thar the company b net defantted in
its repavinent obligations of loans as well as iterest 10 benders so fir and have funded by its group compacy o sustaiy the operativus of the - The 5 has becn Taising the claims for loss

of seveous for fores majeute cvents and ficed violations for the past period regularly en 2 monkly basis and presently rafsed the same undes arbiitration as per the provisioms of thy gr

with GSRDC and have sought campeasation for shorefali in 1ol revenue. it kas alvo propared plan for avalling re-finasice of its existing joan facifities s0 s 10 reduce Basnce cost and avail kenger repayieas
period. Having regard 1o this the margement belitves that al proseat there is no threat to golng conesm and b prepared financial statements o2 the basis tiat the company is a golsy coneern,

L&T Sanakbiail Gandhidham Tollway Lissited operates in the infias business sector, 'is required tn maks imge capital mvestmests. The Company”s net yworth bizs been ereded primaily due to high
depreciation, high interest on teom loans aad foterest an deforred promiom Yability, Howeter, the masigemient expests et the Company™s tesetve St the subsoquent finonciad yearg will by sufffcient to raest
the expenditire and recoup the Tasses vcurred thereby thening the Gransial posttion of the Company. Further, there iv 2 ¢cootinuing suppant from the Holding Company and the Company will be able
1o discharge i its obligations in famsecable future, Accordingly, the finmneial si tave ben prspared cn golag conctm basis.

Going concarm privn is ot apprepiate for PNG Tollway Limited and L&T Chenmai Tollways Limited. honce the financial of thoss companics bave been draws up accorfingly:.

The Board of Pirestors of the Compatty kas reviewed the realizibls valse of all the finarcial assels and bas confirned that i vitue of such 2sscts In the ordimary course of business witl not be toss than the
valud 2t which these are recognized in the lidated fnd AS Aosncial fru addition, tie Boand has also confirrmed the canying vadve of the on financial aseets i the ronsolidted Ind AS fnancial
statempis. The Boand, duly taking into accoun! all the refevant disclosures made, bas, approved these lidated fnd AS Bnatieeat i its meeting beld on May 05, 2022,

Previaus year's fgorcs Bave boen regroupedfreclassified, wherever necessary, to cosfins with the current year's classifieation.

As pet our réport stiached For and on behalf of the Beard of Dintclors

gred A ccountants
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Chalraan Managing Dieector
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4 Plaen: Minnbai Placs : Mumbai
Dater My 05,2022
Pramed Sushilz Kapoor Pradi Kumar Pohar
Chief Financial Officer Company Szcretary
Placs: Cheanal Piace: Chennai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of L& T Iufrastructure Development Projects Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standatone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone lnd AS financial stafements of L&T Infeastructure
Development Projects Limited (“tie Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and
the statement of Profit-and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), statement of changes in Equily and
statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS Financial Stalemeunts,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opirion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aloresaid
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the slate of affairs of the Company as al March 31, 2022, and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income. changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our-audit in accordance with the Slandards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2613. Our responsibilities uader those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibifities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant fo our audit of the standalone [nd
AS financial stalements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, anud we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Emphasis of Matier

a) We draw attention to Note 45 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the
management’s assessment of the carrying value of investments/loans as at March 3 [, 2022, aggregating
Rs. 53.91 Crores {As at March 31, 2021 Rs. 53.78 Crores) relating to a subsidiary of the Company. net of
impairment provision of Rs. 5.50 Crore (As at March 31, 2021 Rs. 5.50 Crores}), engaged in inlrastructure
project, which has terminated the concession agreement entered into with National Highways Authoritics
of India (NHAT).

The nature of default and the termination amount claimed under the concession agreement has not been
accepted by NHAT and arbitration proceedings have been initiated in respect of the disputes relating to the
termination payments/claims.

The Company has carried out an assessment of its exposure in this project duly considering the expected
outcome of the arbitration procecdings, confractual stipulations/ interpretation of the. relevant clauscs in
the aforesaid concession agreement, the expected termination payment fo be received by the subsidiary
campany, the passible obligations to lenders, legal advice, etc. and believes that the amount of investments
andl veceivables carried in the books in respect of the subsidiary company is good and recoverable and no
additional provision/adjustiment to the carrying value of the said investmentsireceivables is consideved/
required as at March 31, 2022

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

¥
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b} We draw aftention to Nole 6k of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the company
assessment of the net carrying valive of itg investments aggregating as on March 31, 2022 of Rs. 74047
croves (As on March 31, 2021: Rs. 768.28 crores) and net loans and advances aggregating as on March 31,
2022 of Rs. 29341 crores {As on March 31, 2021: Rs. 119.84 crores) relating to four operaling
subsidiaries of the Company engaged in infrastructure projects whose net worth is eroded/undergoing
restructuring due o continuouys losses, for a period more than five years, as per the audited financial
statements of those subsidiaries as at March 31,2022,

The Management has, given the uncertainties involved in these estimates and considering the pestation
period required for break even for such infrastructure investments and restiuctiring/refinancing
arrangements carried out/proposed to be carried out, expected improved cash flows in its fufure business
projections, concludes that no additional provision/adjustment to ihe canying value of the Sai
investments/loans and advances is required as at March 31, 2022,

Ouwr Opinion is tot modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional Jjudgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone Tnd AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in (le
context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Staterents as whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment  evaluation carried out by
Management towards investmients/ advances in
subsidiary engaged in infrastructure. project | =
which has terminated its coneession agreement
entered into with National Highways Authorities
of lndia (NHAI) :

| Auditer’s Response N
Our Audit Procedures includes the following:

Evaluated the design and implementation of the
relevant controls and the operating elfecliveness
of such internal controls over the assessment of
claims relating 1o subsidiary company which has
terminated its concession agresment.

The Company has net investment and receivables,
aggregating Rs. 53.91 crores (As at March 31, 2021: | =
Rs. 53.78 crores), from a subsidiary who has.
terminated its. concessian agreement with NHAI,
staling default by NHAI and submitted claime 1o
recover dues from NHAL The nature of default and i

We obtained the related documents supporting
such  claims and any counter claims and
performed the following procedures:

examined the documents/rationale used hy

the termination amount claimed by the subsidiary
under the concession agreements has noet been
accepted by NHAI and accordingly  arbitration
proceedings have been initiated.

The Management has carried  out  detailed
evaluations considering its legal position based on
the contractual stipulations/interpretations and the
outcome of the arbitration proceeding, on the
carying value of the investments and receivables,

-as at March 31, 2022 in the subsidiary.

ifi.

the claims & contracts department/legal
department with regard to the ongoing
arbitrations and verified that the claim js a
contractually valid elaim.

We

We obtained iegal note from

cartied
managerment
arbitration process to understand the statys of'
the claims and examined the minutes of the
meetings, as available.

out inquiries’ with
persomnel  overseeing

key
the

the legal

The recoverability of the compensation claim department of the Company with regard 1o
involves complex legal issues as well as various the  termination compensation  as  in
assumptions, requiring significant judgment in arbitration award to understand the basis
i Tivi ¥ H . 3 oy P
 determining the comipensation recoverable, An . supporting. . e
A
3 / L

8, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
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___Key AuditMalter

_Auditor’s Response

adverse change to these assumptions could result
inte  reduction in  the compensation claim
determined resulting in recoverable value of the
investments/advances becoming lower than' the
carrying amount.

We examined the Management’s assessment
ol the probability of recoverability of its
termination claims and the counter claims to
verify if the assessment was consistent with
the inquiries made and confirmation of legal
position received from Management.

impairment  evaluation carried out by
Management for investments or loans or
advances made to certain operating subsidiaries
of the Company engaged in infrastructure
projects whose net worth is either fully eroded
fundergoing vestructuring due (o continuous
 losses for a period more than 5 years.

The Company has investments aggregating to Rs.
740.47 crores (net of provisions Rs. 498.46 crores)
and loans & advances aggregating Rs. 293.41 crores
(net of previsions of Rs. 32.67 crores) with regard
10 certain operating subsidiaries of the Company
engaged in infrastructure projects whose net worth
is fully eroded/undergoing restructuring  due to
continuous losses for a period more than § vears.

The Management has carried out detailed evaluation
considering various factors, on the carrying value of
the investments, loans and advances as at March 31,
2022.

Due to the multitude of factors and assumptions
involved  in  defermining  the  forecasted
revenues/cash flows and discount rate in the
projection period, significant judgments are required
to estimate the recoverable values. Any adverse
changes to these assumptions could result in a
reduction in such recoverable valie becoming lower
than the carrying amount.

Our Audit procedures includes the following:

Evaluated and tested the appropriateness of key
assumptions
including discount rate, growth rate, efc. considering
the historical accuracy of the Company’s estimates in
the prior
specialists and comparison of the assumptions with
public data, wherever available.

Evaluated the design and implementation of the
relevant controls and the operating effectiveness
of such internal controls which inter-alia includes
the completeness and accuracy of the input data
considered, reasonableness  of assumptions
considered in determining the fttuce projections
and the assumptions considered in preparing the
impairment calculations.

Obtained the investment valuations (prepared by
Management or as carried out by Management's
external valuation specialist) pertaining to such

subsidiaries and  performed  the Tollowing
procediires:
Conducted  discussions  with Company

personnel to identify factors, it any, thal
should be taken into account in the analysis,

Compared the actual revenues and cash Hows
generated by the subsidiarics during the year
as to the projections and estimates considered
in the previous year.

considered by the Management,

periods, consultations with internal

Valuation of Investments in Units in Indinfravit
Trust as on March 31, 2022

The Company holds 3,75,61,677 units of face value
af Rs. 100 each in Indinfravit Trust as on March 3 I,
2022 at a book value of Rs. 468.21 Crore.

nd A5 13 - Fair Value Measurement - requires
he fair value to Dbe considered as on the
neasurement date and prescribes methodologies for
letermining _the fair__value, namely the Cost

Our Audit Procedures includes the following:

Evaluated the design and implementation of the
relevant controls and the operating effectiveness
of such internal controls with respect o {air
valuation of investments.

We have reviewed the accounting  policies
followed by the company for accounting and
disclosing the investments in accordance with (he

applicable financial reporting framework.

ani Road, Balaji Nagar,
<hennai - 600 614. India.
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 Key Audit Matler Auditor’s Response o

MA[)[)]'()aCh, the Inconmie Approach or the Market . = We have teviewed the management note

Approach. regarding accounting of investment in units of
Indinfravit Trust.

Based on the information and explanations given to
us. the valuation of the umits is expected to bej® We evaluated the company’s process regarding

conducted by Indinfravit Trust by June 2022. Since the fair valuation of the investments and verified
the historical cost of the units was at the time of the correctness of inputs used in the fair
their acquisition. the last quoted market value of the valuation.

units has been considered for the purpose of
determining the fair value of the units as at March | ®*  We have discussed with the managemeni Lo

31,2022, obtain an understanding ol the methodology
followed for fair valuation due to absence of
The Units are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange recent fransactions/quotations.

(BSE) and generally have a history of limited
trading during the past financial years. The fast | # We have evaluated the adequacy ol the
proximate traded price of these unils as per BSE has disclosures made in the Standalone Financial
heen considered for this purpose. Statements regarding investiments al [air value.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the stancatone Ind
AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express arty form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is 1o read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Siandalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o he
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

cspousibility of Management for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matlers stated in section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Standatone Ind AS Financial Statements that
pive a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance including other: comprehensive
income, changes in equily and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section [33 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgmenis and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operaling effectively for enswing ihe accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records. refevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from materia! misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going c}gm:’ém

(x
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and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
OF fo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for averseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 1he Standalone Ind AS Financial Siatements
as a whole are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasouable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee {hat an
audit conducted in accordance ‘with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material it, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone [nd AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and oblain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is. higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal
control,

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures tha
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whetlier the comparny has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude
that a-material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 1o the related
disclosures in the financial siatements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as-a going concern.

e} Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial stalements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statemients represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned seope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during owr aodit,

We also provide those charped with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to comimunicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear ot our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standafone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are

e
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therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mafters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulalion
preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matier should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Otlier Matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, included in these standalone
financial staiements have been audited by predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opiion on those
statements on May 05, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Ovder, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of subssection (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” to this report a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Prolfit and Loss including the statement of Other Comprelicnsive
lncome, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statéement dealt with by this Report are in
apreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
20135, as amended.

&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Acl.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financiat controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In olir opinion and o' the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no
remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors except sitting fees to Independent Directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with schedulc V to the
Companies Act, 2013. T

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, T:491-044-28131128/38/48/58
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) With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

() The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standatone Ind AS financial statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts and the company did not have any
derivative contracts.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred fo the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

{iv) (a)

(b}

(c)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds {which
are material either individually orin the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invesied
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources oy kind of funds) by the
Company o or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with
the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Inlermediary shall,
whether, directly or indivectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiartes;

The Management has represented, that, to the best of iy knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are rnaterial either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parlies™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonuble and appropriate i the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations as provided under (a) and (b) zbove, cantain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear.

Place: Chermai

Date: May 05, 2022

18, Masitamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
yapettah, Chennai - 800 014.India,

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chaglered Accountants
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“Anncxure - A” to the Independent Auditor’s Repoit

Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Lega

even date

(i)

a) The Company has main

and situation of Property plant and equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing

b) The Property Plant and Equipment were p
accotdance with an annual plan of verifica
the size of the Company and the nature of the
information and explanation given to us, o materi

Chartered Accounaf\ts

| and Regulatory Requirements of our report of

tained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

full particulars of intangible assc1s.

hysically verified by the management during the year, in
tion, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to
Property Plant and Equipment. According to the
al discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The Title deeds of all the immovable properties owned by the company are held in the name of the

Company except the following.

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
Royapettah, Chennai - 608 014. india.

Description of Property | Gross Held in | Whether ' Peried held — | Reason for not heing
Block | the Pramoter, indicate held in the pame of the
as  at | name of | Director or their | range, where | company
March velative or | appropriste
31, employee
2022
Freehald Land and Rs, L&T No The litle deeds are in the
Building located al Plot 0.40 Gast~ name of
Nov. 26 and 22, Survey Cr. West L&T East-West Tollway
No. 36A of Mouje Pali of Tollway Limited
Sudhagad Taluke, Limited {EWTL) & 1.&T Greul
District (EWTL) Easlern
Raigad, measuring 242 & L&T Highway 1imiled
sq mis and 1663 sq mis, Great (GLITL). erstwhile
respectively Rastcrn subsidiaries which got
Highway merged
Limiled with the Company unider
{(GHTL) Scclion
391 1o 394 of the
Companies Act,
1936 in terms ol the
approval of
the Fonourable High
Couri(s) of
judicature tn the year
2014-2115,
Building at Mumbai, Rs. L&T No The purchase deed s in
NQ.303, 3vd FLOOR, 0.13 Heldings the name
WING "B, Mumbai Cr. Limited ol L&T Holdings
Limited. the
erstwhile name of the
Company,
which was changed o
L&T
hnlrasteucture
Pevalopment
L Projects Limited in 2004, |
8
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Chartered Accountants

(i) @)

{iy - a)

b)

c)

d)

The Company has uot revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March
31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The Company. does not have any inventory, accordingly reporting under clause 3(ii){a) of the Order
does not arise.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in
aggregate from banks or financial instituttons at any point of time during the year on the basis of
security of current assets, accordingly reporting under clause 3(i1)(b) of the Order does not arise.

‘The Company has been registered as a Systemically Important Non-deposit taking Core Investmient
Company (CIC-ND-SI) under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 and accordingly
reporting under Clause 3(iii)(a) of the order does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation to us, the investment
made and the terms and conditions ol the grant of all loans are not prejudicial o the company’s
interest.

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated for the loans
granted and the repaymenl/receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans granted by the Cormnpany, which are overdue for more than 90 days.
The Company has been registered a Systemically Important Non-deposit taking Core Investment
Company (CIC-ND-St) under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, [934 and accordingly

reporting under Clause 3(iii)(e) of the order does not arise.

The Company has not granted any leans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loan to its directors, covered under Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013. Seclion 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company for the year.

{v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the relevant rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (v) ol the Order does not
arise.

(vi} The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order does not arise.

{vil) a)

18, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
syapettah, Chennai - 600 014, india.

The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax,
provident fund, employees’ stale insurance, income tax, and other statutory dues applicable (o it
during the year with appropriate authorities, According to the information and explanations given to
us, there were no undispuled amourits payable in respect of these statutory dues outstanding as at
March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the dale they became payable.

F
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5
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b}

(viii)

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposiled as on
March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Mame of the [ Nature of | Amount | Period to | Forum  where  the | Remark

Statute Dues (Rs, in | which the | dispute is pending s, ifany
crore) amount relates

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax | 171 AY 2015-16 Commissioner of -

1961 Income Tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax | 4.75 AY 2016-17 Commissioner ol -

1961 Income Tax (Appeals)

Finance Act, | Service Tax | 1.33 FY 2008-09 to | CESTAT -

1994 2012-13

MVAT Act, | VAT 0.42 FY 2013-14 Joint  Commissioner -

2002 {Appeals)

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not swrrendered or disclosed

any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961, as income during the year. Accordingly, reporling under clause 3(viii) of the order does
not arise.

(ix) a)

b)

c)

d)

{x) a)

b)

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
Royapettah, Chennai- 600 014, India.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year, Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ix}(a) of the ardet does not arise,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of the order does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to.us, the Company has not
taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order does
not arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statemnents of the company, the Company did not raise any funds during the
year. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(ix){d) of the order does not arise.

According 1o the information and explanations given fo us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate companies.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the order does not arise.

According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us, the company has nol raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
neither raised during the year any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement ol shares/ fully or partly or optionally

g
/i
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{xi)

{xii}

{(xiit)

{xiv)

{(xv)

{xvi)

(xvii)

{xviii)

t8, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,
wapettah, Chennal - 600 014.India.

converlible debentures during the year. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3{x}(b} of the order does
nol arjse.

a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and accarding to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported daring the
course of our audil.

by During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government,

¢) We have taken itito consideration the whistle blower complaints received during the year.and shared
with us for reporting under this clause.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporiing under clause
3(xiiXa).(b),(c) of the Order does not arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed the Ind AS
financial statements as vequired by the applicable accounting standards.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature ol its business.

b} We have considered the internal audit reports of the company for the period April 01, 2021 to

December 31, 2021, issued till date.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on owr examination of the records of
the Company during the year, the Company has not entered inta non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xv) of the order does not arise.

a) According, to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is required to be registercd
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and has oblained the registration.

by The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activifies without a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
india Act, 1934,

¢) The Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India and has obtained the registration and it continues to fulfil the criteria ol a CIC.

d} Based on the information and explanation given to us and the representation received by us, the
Group has two Core investment Companies (including this company), as pait of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current year covered by owr audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. The change ol
Statutory Auditors in the current year is based on Regulatory requirements. Accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xviii} of the order does not arise. L :
-

I
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Place; Chemnai

;o RN
fwfs?f AT
Date: May 05, 2022 s x e

Chartered Accontants;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios. ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial siatements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of thie evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date ol balance sheet as and when they
£l due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this iy not an
assurance as to the future viabifity of the company. We fusther state that our reporting is bascd on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nov any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheel date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

a) The company has not transferred the CSR amount remaining unspent in respect of other than
ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil 1o the Companies Act, 2013 till the date of our
report. However. the time period for such transfer i.e. six months ol the expiry of the financial year
as permitted under the second proviso ta sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed tili
the date of our reporl.

by There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that ate required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.

For Bralhimayya & Co.,

Chaﬁelyd Accountants
Firm Re 1’h(_No. 0005118
;/},f; 3

7 Rivi Sankar
Partner
Membership No. 025929
UDIN No. 22025920A JUBUY 6532
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Chariered Accountants

“Annexure - B? to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report
of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section [43 of the
Companies Acl, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of L&T Infrastructure Development
Projects Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standatone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibitity for Internal Finarcial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining imernal financial conirols based
an the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (\1CAL™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the sifeguarding of ils assets, the. prevention and detection of frauds and
ereors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation ol reliablc
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issucd by 1CAL
and the Standards on Auditing issved by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143( [0} of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audil lo obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our-audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
conirols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal fimancial contrels over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meuning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide reasonabie
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary lo permit
preparation of financial stalements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and.that

¥
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Chartered Accontants

receipts and expendifures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, of disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

luberent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repeorting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 1o error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls aver
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk thal the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
cwternal [inancial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on
the internal financial control over {inancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
. No. 0005118
Place: Chennai Vo

L

A
Date: May 05,2022 N L
~ l‘%i"{ﬁnkar
Partner
Membership No. 025929
LIDIN No. 22025929AJUBUY 6532
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L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PRGJECTS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 20272

As at 31032023

As af 31-03-2021

Particulars Note no, .
¥ crore T crove
ASSETS
Financial Assets
{3} Cashand cash equivalents 2 1.22 19.31
{b} Bank balances other than (ay above 3 387.78 217.16
{c) Recejvahles
(i} Trade recejvables 4 7.20 192.29
{d} Loans 5 317.33 148.82
{e) Investments 6 2.384.68 2,833.53
{f} Financial assets - Others 7 61.60 2345
A 3,165.81 342556
Noag- financial Assets
{a) Current tax assets {Net) 3 3594 60,55
{b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9 3.56 -
(b) Investment Praperty 10 1.74 1.79
{c} Property, Flant and Equipment il 3.83 413
(d) intangible assets under development 12 1.75 0.83
{¢) Intangible assets 13 534 6.53
{f) Other non-financial assets 14 705 838
B 59.21 B2.21
TOTAL ASSETS A+B 3,225.02 3,507.77
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Finaocial Liabilities
(a} Payables
(1) Trade Payables
(i} total nutste_mdmg dues of micro enlerprises and 0.02 2.5
smalf enterprises 15
{i1) total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro
. 2011 29.54
and small enterprises
{b) Debt Securities 16 - 31542
{¢} Firancial liabilities - Others 17 2307 25,57
C 43.20 373.06
Non-Financiz! Liabilitics
{a) Provisions _ 18 23,29 35.04
fc) Deferred tax Habilities {Net) 9 - 379
(b). Cther non-financiat liabilities 19 2.89 312
D 31.18 41,95
EQUITY
(2) Equity share capital 20 629.52 629.52
(b} Other equity 21 2,521.12 2A63 24
E 3.150.64 3,092.76
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES C+D+E 3,225.02 3,507.77

As per our report attached
For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartgfed Accountanis

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

F zfo’”fq"glw . \‘}\Q&/‘ v [
gy - R. Shaakar Raman i Dip Kishoge Swry
5N NENTIRD e Chairman Managing Thrector

L. Ravi Saukar
Partrier
Membership No. 025929

{DIN: 00019798)
{DIN; 03554707)

Place: Musmnbai Place: Mumbai

Fradeepta Kumar Puhan
Company Secretary
{Membership no - 5138)
Place: Chennai

Dale : May (5, 2022

Pramod Sushiiz Kapaor
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chenpai
Date ; May 05, 2022

Piace: Chennai
Date - May 05, 2022



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE BEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of Prefit and Less for the year ended Mar 31, 2022

-
Particalars Note no. 2021-22 2020-21
¥ crore T crore Terore 2 crore
Revenue from aperations:
Interest income 22 61.81 48.56
Dividend income 2.07 -
Rental incoine 0.05 0.10
Net gain on fair value changes 23 6.34 1.12
Sale of services 24 51.42 50.94
Others 25 ) 0.34 -
Total revenue from operations 122.03 100.72
Other income 26 6.24 . 721
Total income 128.27 793
Expenscs:
Finance costs 27 12.78 27.34
Employee benefits expense, 28 27.61 32,55
Depreciation and amortisation expense 0,11 & 13 317 2.68
Constrisction and related operating expenses 29 - 2.66
Administration and other expenses 30 25.94 27.51
Total expenses 69.50 92.74
Profit before exceptiona) iteras and tax 5877 15.19
Exceptional ifems 31 {160.58) (64.20)
Profit/(Loss) before tax (41.81) (45.01)
Tax expenge:
Current tax - 2.74
Deferred tax 1.21 1.35
121 4.09
Profit/{Loss) for the year (43.02) (53.19)
Other comprehensive income 32
frems that witl not be reclassified to profit or loss
~ Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.0%) 0.27
~Fair value B‘f In(vulmcnts through other 160.96 {138.28)
comprehensive income
Inconte tax relating to items that wilt not be _
reclassified to-profit or loss 856 34.80
Total other comprebensive income 10943 {103.21)
Total comprehensive income for the year 66,41 (156.31)
Basic earnings per equity share (%) 40 (0.68) (0.84)
Diluted eamings per equity share { T ) 40 {0.68) (0.34)

‘Refor notes forming part of the standalone

Tnd AS financial siatemonts 14051

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors

Date : May 05, 2022 {ate : May 05, 2022 Date - May 05, 2022

As per our report attached
For Brahmayya & Co., 1.
Chartergl Accountants E . \]W",-DJ . %
o | a p—
R, Shankar Raman Dip Kisfiore §
Chairman Managing Director
{DIN: 0D0I9798)
. {(DIN: 83554707}
L. Ravi Sankar Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Partner
Membership No. 025929 :
< -4
Pramod Sushila Kapoar ¥Yradeepta Kumar Puhan :
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary !
(Membership ne - 5138) :
Piace: Chennal Place: Chennai Place: Chennai




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of CashHows for the year ended March 31, 2622

8. No. FParticalary 2021-22 2020-21
T erore ¥ crore
A [Cashffow from Operating uctivities
Net profit/ (loss) after tax (43.02) {33. 1)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and ameortisation expense 317 268
income wot 1o be considered (10.67) -
Exceptional items 160.58 64.20
Fair value changes in investments {1.17) (0.22)
{Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment {06.06) (0.11%
Finance costs 12,78 27.34
Tax expense 1.21 4,09
Operating profit before werking capifal chunges 42,81 44.88
Changes in working capital;
(Increase} / Decrease in trade receivables 185.09 (182.42)
{Increase} / Decrease in oiher financial sssets {40.60) 105.26
{Increase} / Decrease in other non financial assets 1.13 B.7a
Incrense / (Decrease) in trade-payables (11.94) (14.54}
Inceease / (Deerease) in other financial libilitites (2.50) £22.61)
Inerease / (Decresse) in other non financial liabititites {023 {0.14)
Increase / {Decrease) in provisions {6.84) (80.61)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 18713 {141.43)
Direct taxes paid {net of refinds) 21.05 (18.42)
Net Cash{used in}lgencra'uted from Operating.Aletivities 208.18 {159.85)
B |Cash flow from Investing activities
(Purchase) sale of current investments (net) 403,44 30.44
Proceeds on distribution of unit capital by Infrastructure investment frust 9.20 820
Settlement on account of erystallized claims {8.53) -
(Increase) / decrease tn loans to subsidiaries {168.51) 6.65
Repayment of debt securities given to subsidiaries 3778 2585
Changes in other bank balances {170.62) 99.01
-Purchass of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 2.9% {5.43)
FProcesds fram sale of property, plant and epapmant’ 0,48 26.91
Net cash generated from investing sciivities 110,93 184,62
€ |Cosh flow fram Financing activities
| Repayment of debt securities {315.42) {25.00)
Interest paid on debentures {1278} {29.54)
Net eash {used in) finzncing activities (328.20) (54.54)
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents A+BH0) {9.09) 22.77)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the begianing of the year 10.31 33.08
Cash and cash equivaients as at the end of the year 1.22 10.31
=
lotes:

- Cagh flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 - Siatement of cash flows as specified in the
‘ompanies (Indian Accounting Standagds) Rules, 2015,

3 per our report attached Fot and on behalf of the Bourd of Dircetors
or Brahmayyz & Co.,
hartered Accountants

. a1 _ y
y. : Ner)

R. Shapkar Raman / Dip Kishor enw
Chairman
(DIN: 00019798} Managing Director
(DIN: 03554707)
+ Ravi Sankar Place: Mumbai Place: Mupbai
trtner
embership No, 025929 %32/
Pramod Sushila Kapoor 13 raéeepta Kumar Puhan
Chief Finanetal Officer Company Secretary
{Membership no - 5£38)
sce: Chennat Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

e - May 05,2022 ' Date : May 05, 2022 Date : May 05,2022
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L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Nodles formming part of the standalone Ind AS finaacial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

1 Significant Accounting Policies

A

i F

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Tinancial statements.

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

(e} Complianee with Ind AS

The Company's financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) read with Companies (Indian Agcounting Standards) Rudles, 2015 (as amtended) and other refevant provisions of
the Act.

The finaccia] statements have been prepared in accordance with Division 1 of Schedule IIT of Companies Act, 2013 vide Notification No.
GSR.I024(B) dated October I1, 2018, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India for Nea-Banking Finance Company
(NBFC).

{b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial statetnents which are measured at Fajr value as
exptained i the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consi deration given in exchange for goods

and services. Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid to transfer a !iahility in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement datc,
{c) Lse gf estimates and Jjudgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considersd
in the reported amouats of assets, liabilitics (including contingent liabilities), income and expenses. The management believes that the estitnates

used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Estimates and underlying assumptiong are teviewed on an angoeing
basis. Actual results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the

are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

= Level [ inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for ideatical assets or liabilities that eatity can access at measurement date

* Level 2 are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either direcily (as prices) .or
indirectly (derived from prices); and

- Level 3 are inputs for the asset or liability that are not based: on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in
Schedule I1I 1o the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act™). The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind
AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™. The disclosure requirements with Tespect to ttems in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as
presctilied in Schedule I to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of accounts along with the ather notes required 1o be disclosed
under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Dizclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015 (as amended).

Cutrency of the primary ceonomic environment in which the Company operates is Indian Rupee (INR) Crores (rounded off 1o two decimals) in
which the Company primarily generates and expenses cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its functional currency to be Indiag
Rupee ¢(INR). Aniounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Crores since the mznagement is of the view that presenting the
same will result in better qualitative presentation of the fnancial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair vatue of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are exclusive of duties and taxes
and et of discounts, rebates and other simil ar allowsnees.

flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities described below. The Company bases ifs estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration. the type of customer, type of transaction and specifics of the arrangement.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Nofes forming part of the standalone Ind AS @inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
a} Interest income from a financial asset is recognised whea it is probable that the sconomic. benefits will flow to the company and the

amouot of income can be measured reliably. fiterest is neerted on time propertion basis, by reference to the principle ouistanding at the
effective interest rate.

b) Contract revenue for fixed price contracts is recopnised only o the extent of cost incurred that it is probable will be recoverable till such
time the outcome of the job cannot be ascertained reliably. When the outcome of the contract is ascertained reliably, contract revenue is
recognised at cost of work performed on the contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method. The company
recognized revenue fo the extent of performance. obligations completed. Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in
accordance with the contract terms but not billed.

Tor the purposes of recognising revenue, contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract, the varfations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they witl result in revenue and they are capable of being
reliably measured,

For this purpose, actual cost includes cost of land and developmental rights but excludes borrowing cost. Expected loss, if any, on the
construction activity is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of fie stage of completion of the
contract,

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which such probability occurs.

¢} Income from operation and maintenance services provided to Subsidiaries are accounted for to the extent that if is probable that the
economic benefits will fow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

d) Income from advisory services are accounted for 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, the
right to receive such income arises and the revenue can be reliably measured.

¢}, Revenue from windmill operations is recognised based on contractual agreements,
f) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date.

g} Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable that the economic benefits will
Haw to the Company and the amount of income car be messured reliably,
D Cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances include cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances
with banks and highly Hquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject 16 an insignificant

risk of change in value and having original maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase. Other bank balances includes fixed
deposits with original maturity of more thaa three months from the date of purchase,

E Statement of cash flows
Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activitics. Cash flow from operating
activities i3 reported using indirect method Under the indirect method, the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects of
{a) transactions of a non-cash nature;
(b) any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cush-receipts or payments and,
(c)all ather items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Comparty are segregaied based on the available information. Cash and
cash equivalents (including bank balences) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. Those cash and cash equivalents which are not
available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet are aleo included under this categary with a specific disclosure,

F  Property, plant and equipment (PPE}

PPE is recoghized when it is probable that future econamic benéfits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost, Al other items of propenty, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and cumidative impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recoghised as a separate asset, us appropriate, only when it is probable that the
fisture evonomic benefits associated with the item will flow o the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Properties in the
course for production, supply or adminisirative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impafrment loss. Cost inclades expenditure that
is directly aftributable and for qualifying assets, borrewing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such
properiies are classified 10 the appropriate categories of property, plarit and equipment when completed and ready for intended use, Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for thefr intended use,

Depreciation is recognised so 25 to write off the cost of assets {other than frechold land and assets under construction) less their vesidual values
over their useful lives, specified in Schedule T to the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the useful life is determined by
technical (management) evaluation, over the usefid life so determined, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and residual

valties are reviewed ot the end of each year, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone lnd AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The estimated useful lives of the assets as per managemenent evaluation are as follows:.

Estimted
Categery of Property, plant and equipment usefu} Iife
. (in years)
Buildings including flats in the name of the Compuny 50
Plant and cquipment:
DG Sets 12
Atr-conditioning and refiigeration equipment 12
Split AC and Window AC 4
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles:
Motor cars (sther than those under the Company owned car scheme)y 7
Moter cycles, seooters and other mopeds 1G
Tractors and other vehitles 8
Vehicles under Company Owned Car Scheme {COCH 5
Office equipment:
Multifunctional devices, printers, switches and projectors 4
(ther office equipments 5
Computers:
Servers and systems 6
Desktops, faptops, etc, 3
Electrical installations 10

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposat of an item of property
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is tecognised in
the statement or profit and loss.

Depreciation charge for impaired agsets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is
dllocated over its remaining useful life.

G Investment property

Properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and are measured and reported at cost, including
transaction costs. Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment property less their residual
values over their usefid Hves specified in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined
by technical evaluation, over the vsefu! Jife so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected
pattern. of consumption of the future benefits embodicd it the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also
teviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of usefil life/ residual value is accounted on prospective basis,

Exceptional items

An ffem of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an (nderstanding of the
performance of the Company is freated as an exceptional item and disclosed a5 such in the financial statements,

Intangible assets

Intangible assciz are stated at original cost aet of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortization and cumulative impainnent.
Intangible asseis are recognized when it is probable that the fitture economic benefits that are attributoble to the asset will flow to the enterprise
and the cost of the asset can be meagured relinbly. Intangible assets arc amortised on straight line basis over the estimated usefidf life. The method

of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of sach accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis,

Intangible assets are derecognised when no futore sconomic benefits are expected from use or disposal and any gain or loss arising on such

disposal ig determined as the difference between the safe proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. The amount so ascertained is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Intangible assels not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assels under

4 Forcign eurrency transaetions and iranstations

‘) The functional cutrency of the Company in Indian Rupee

b} Transactions in foreipn currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction or at rafes that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS finuncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
¢} Exchanpe differences that arise on setiiement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the
closing rate are récognised 88 income or expense in the period in which they arise exeept

{D)  exchange differences on foreign cuwerency borrowings relating to nssets under construction for fature productive- use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustiment to interest costs ifi a foreign corrency not translated.

{ii} exchange differences on rangactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

(i) exchinge differences on monetary items receivable from ar-payable to a foreign operation for which setttement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (fhercforc forming part of the net investment in foreign operation), which are recognised imitially in other
comprehensive income and reclassificd from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

K  Employee henefits
Employee benefits include provident find, superannuation find, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensated absences, long
service awards and post-employment medical benefits.
(i)  Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits, The
benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised in the period in
which the employee renders the related service.
“The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recogoised during the year when the employees render the service. These bencfits include performance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve menths after the end of the period in which the employee renders the retated service,
The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :
(a) in cese of accumulated compensated gbsences, when employees render the services that increase their enfitlement of firfure
compensated absences; and
(b} in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences oceur,

(ii) Post employment benefits

{a) Defined contribution plans:

‘The Company's superannuation scheme and Siate governed provident fund linked with employee pensioh scheme are defined contribution

plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the scheme is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
(b} Defined benefit plans:

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme and the provident fund scheme managed by the trust of the Pramoter are the Company's defined
benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such defined bepefit plans is determined based on acluarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of cmployee benefit entitlement and
measures ¢ach unit separately to build up the final obligation,

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value:
of the abligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yicld on govermment securities of a maturity period equivalent to the
weighted average matarity profile of the related obligations at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan assets (excluding net interest) and any change in the sffcct of
asset ceiling (if applicable) are recognised in other comprehiensive income and is reflected immediately in refained earnings and is not
reclassified to profit or loss.

The interest element in the actusrial valuation of defined benefii plans, which comprises the implicit interest cost and the impact of
changes in discount rate, is classified as employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the dofined benefit plans to recognise
the obligation on a net basis,

Gains or losses on the curlailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or setllement ocours, Past
service cost is recognised as expense at the carlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and when the Company recognises related
restructuring cosis or termination benefits.

(iii) Other long term employee henefits:

The present value of the obligation under long term employee benefit plans such as compensated absences and [iability under Retention
Pay Scheme is determined bused on actuarial valustion using the Projected Unit Credit Method.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes foruting part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The obligation is measured af the present valug of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value
of the obligation under defined benefit Plans, is based on the market yield on govemment securities of a maturity period equivalent 1o the
weighted average maturity profile of the related obligations at the Balance Sheet date,

Remeasurements, comprising actuatial gains and losses, the retumn on plan assets {excluding net interest ) and any change in the effect of
asset ceiling (wherever applivable) are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Gaios or losses on the curtaitment or settlement of any long-term employee benefit plan are recognized when the curtailinent or settlement
occurs, Past service, cost is recognized as expense at the earlierof the plan amendment or curtaiiment and when the Compmny recognizes
refated restructuring costs or termination benefits,

(iv) Terminatisn benefits
Termination benefits such as compensation under Voluntary Retirement cum Pension Scheme (if any) are recognised as expense and a
linbility is recognised at the carlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the emtity
recognises any related resiracturing costs.

Borrowing costs

Borrewing costs inelude interest caleulated using the effective interest method, amortisation af anciflary costs incurred and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowin Es to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs, allocated to and
utilized for acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to
comstruction / development of the qualifying asset up o the date of capitalization of such asset are added (o the cost of the assels. A qualifying
asset is an asset that necessarily require a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use for sale. All other borrowing, costs are
recogaized in profit or loss in the year in.which they are incurred,

Segment reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant saurce, nature of risks and returns and the internal organization and
management strcture, The operating segments are the sepments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating
profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocdte resources and in assessin & performance,

Segment accounting policies are in fine with the accounting policies of the Company, Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and
segment liabilities have been identified to scgments on the basis of their relationship 1o the operating activities of the segment. The identification
of eperating segments and reporting of amounts is consistest with performance assessment and resource allocation by the management.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and Habililies which relate to the Company as a whole and dre not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been
included under 'unaliocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilites,

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract canveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a peried of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether & contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identificd asset(ii) the
Company has substantiafly all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and ({ii) the Company has the right
to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Cormipany recognizes a right-of-use assel("ROU™) and a corresponding [ease Hiabitity for all lease
atrangements-in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a tegm of twelve months or less (shoet-term leases) and Jow vakue leascs. For these

short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease artangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease tenn. ROU asscts and fease linbilitics
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of use ussets are initially recognized at cost, which camprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made a1 or prior to the commencement date of the fease plus any initia] direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on g straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i-e.the higher of the Fair value less cost fo sell
and the value-in-vse} is determined on an individusl asset basis undess the asset does not senerate cashfiows that are largely independent of those
frorn other assets. In such cases, the Tecoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CG1J) to which the asset belongs,
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The lease lability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future Jease payments. The lease payments are discounted .
using the interest rate implicii in the lease or, if not readily determinable, usin g the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these leases, . Lease liabilitics are remeasured with 2 corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will excroise an extonsion or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU assct have been separately presented in the
Balance Sheet and iease payments bave been classified as financing cash flows,

O Eurnings per share

dilutive potential equity shares.
P Taxes on income

The income tax expense or credit for the Year is the tax payable on current year's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and Tiabilities atiributable to temporary differences and to unused tax Iosses. The current income tax charge is
caleulated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management perivdically evaluates,
positions faken in tax tetums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to intetpretation eand provisions are
established where appropriate on the hasis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Minimom Allernate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives futire economic benefiis in the form of adjustment to future
income tax Hability, is considered as an assat if there #s convincing evidence that the entity will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as an asset when jt is highly probable that future economic henefit associated with it will flow to the entity.

Deferred tax is provided in Full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assefs and Habilities and-their camying amounts in the
financial statements. However defesred income tax iy not acoounted if it asises from the initia] recognition of an asset or liability that at the time
of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit {tax lass). Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when. the related deferred income lax
asset/liability is realised or settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible teraporary differences and ustused tax Tosses only if it is probable that fiture taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those lemporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, when the entity has a legally enforceable ight to offier cﬁrrent tax assets and liabilities
ard when the deferred tax balances related to the same authority,

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to jiems recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity wherein the retated tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, as applicable.
Q Impairment of assets

If the carrying amount of {he assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an ithpainment is recognised for such excess amount. The
impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the assel is carried ot rovalyed amount, in which case any
impeirment loss of the revaived asset is iseated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that assel,

exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was
previously charged (o the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverabie amount,
but so that the increaged carrying amount docs not exceed (he carrying amount that would have been determined hed no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.
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R Provisions, contingent liahilities and confingent assels

A provision is tecognised when the Company lias a present ebligation {legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

The amaunt recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surronnding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated

to setile the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
materiaf}

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is

recopnised as an asset if it is virtoally certain that the reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured teliably,

Contingent liabilittes are disclosed in notes in case of a preseot obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible .
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

8 Financial Instrements

Financial asseis and financial Habilities are recognised when the Company besomes a party to the contractual provisions. of the instruments,
Financial assets and financial lisbilitics are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly sttributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial Labilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
Iess. Tn case of funding to subsidiary companies in the form of interest free or concession loans and preference shares, the excess of the actual
amount of the funding aver initially measured fair value is accounted as an equity investment (deemed equity).

A financial asset and a financial liability is offaet and presented en net basis in the balance sheet when there is 2 current legaily enforceable right
to set-off the recognised amaounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise fhe asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

a)  Financial Assets

All recognised financial asscts are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost o fair value, depending on the.
classification of the fnancial assets,

i Cashand cash equivalents

Cesh and bauk balances alse include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank batances
which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term highly liguid investments being not free from more than insignificant risk of
change are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents, Bank overdrafts which are part of the cash management pracess is
included as part of cash and eash equivalents.

ii. Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest method if these financial assets are held
within a business model whase objective is to hold these assets in order to collect coatractual cash flows and the conteactual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

iii. Financial asseis at fair value through otber comprehensive income (FYTOChH
Financial assets are measured at fiir value through othier comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
mode] whose ebjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding: The company, on an instrument-wise basiy, opts to consider certain investment in equity instruments as measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. These investments are disclosed separatcly in the financial statements.

iv. Financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financiaf assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initiat recognition. Eg. Investments in mutual funds,

v. [nvestment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries are shown. at cost less impairments, if any. In case of funding to subsidiary
compunies in the form of interest free or concession loans and preference shares, the excess of the actual amount of the funding over
initially measured fair value is accounted as an equity investment, o financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on
net basis int the balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to sct-off the recognised arounts and it is intended (o
either settle on net basis or {6 realise the asset and sefile the liability simidtaneously.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the stagdalone 1nd AS financial statoments for the vear ended March 31,2022

vi.

Impairment of fizancial assets

The Company applies the expected credit Toss model for recognising impairment loss on Fnancial assets measured at amortised cost,
debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease recefvables, trade receivables and ofher contracmual rights {0 receive cash or other financial asset
and financial guarantees not designated s at FVTPL.

Expecled credit Fosses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of defimlt occurring as the weights. Credit
loss is the difference between all confractual cash flows that are duc to the Compagy in sccordance with the contract/agreement and
alt the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
Company estimates cash flows by considesing all contractual terms of the financial instrument, through the expected life of the
financial instrument.

The Company measurcs the loss allowance for 2 financial instrument at an amount equal {o the life-time expected credit Tosses if the
credit risk on that financizl instrument has increase significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased
significantly, the Company measures the foss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected
credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the Irfe-time cash shortfalls that will resglt if the default
occurs within 12 mouths after the reporting date and thus, are not cash short€alls that are predicted over the next 12 months,

When making the assessment of whether there hes been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognifion, the Company
uses the change in the risk of a default ocourring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of 2 change in the amount
of the expected credit loss. To achieve that, the Company compares the risk of a default ocourring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default .accurring on initial recognition and considers reasonsble and supportable informatien,
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since mitial recognition,

vil. Derecognition of financinl asset

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
*  therights to receive cash flows from the assat have expired, or

*  the Company has teansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement; and with a)the Company has
transferred substantially a1l the risks and rewards -of the aszet, or b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantiatly all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

*  on der¢cognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date of
derccognition and the consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b}  Financial Liabilities and Equity instruments

All financial liabilities are measored at amorised cost using the effective interest method or at fair value through profit or loss.

i

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. A
financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

= Ithas been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near tern; or

*  Oninitral recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages topether-and has
areceit actual patient of shori-lerm profit-taking; or

= lItisaderivative that is not designated and effective zs a hedging instrument,
A financial liability other than = financial Hability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial secognition, if:
*  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a meastrement ar recognition incensistency that would otherwise arise;

*  The financial lability forms part 6f a group of financial assets or financial labilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evalaation oft a fair value busis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management of
imvestment stratepy; and information about the prouping provided internally on that basis; or

* R forms part of a coniract containing one or moere embedded detivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurenient recognized in profit or Joss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the end of
subsequent accounting perjods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are
determined based on the cffective interest method. Financial guuraniee conteacts are subsequently measured at the amoum of
impairment loss allowance, if any, or the amount recognized at inception net of eumolative amortization, whichever is higher. AH
other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost uging effective interest rate method.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming parf of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

w

P

it Fquily instrumeats
An equity instrument is any contract that cvidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its Liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a company are recognized at the proceeds received.

iv. Derecognition
Finaneial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

¢)  Compound financial instruments issued by the Company which can be converted into fixed number of equity shares at the option of the
helders irrespective of changes in the fair value of the instrument are accounted by separately recognising the liability and the equity
components. The fiabifity component is initially recognised at the fair value of a comparable lability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair valne of fhe compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. The directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability
and the equity components in proportioa to their initial carrying amounts.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of the compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the
cffective interest method. The equity component of & compound financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Securities premium account
Securities premium includes the difference between the face vatue of the equity shares and the consideration received in respect of shares issued,
The issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instruments are written off against securities premium account,

Premium on by back of the equity instruments and Compulsorily convertible preference shares is adjusted against securities premium account,

Non-current assets held for sale

Nos-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally through a
sale (rather than thraugh continuing use} when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group) and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for
fecognition 25 a complefed sale within one year fiom the date of classification. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less eosts to sell.

Claims
Claims against the Company not aclmowledged as debts are disclosed under contingent liabilities. Claims made by the company are recognised
as and when the same is approved by the respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged,
Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Comimitments are classified and disclosed as follows:
(i) Estimated amount of contracts renraining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
(if) Uncalled liability on shares and ether investments partly paid
(i} Funding selated commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and
(iv) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of management.
Oiker commitments refated to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed 1o avoid excessive details.




'INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

s forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial siatements for the year ended March 31,2022

inancial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31-03.3022

. As at 31-03.2621
Pariicnlars )
¥ crove ¥ crore
alances with Banks in Current Accounts 122 10.31
1.22 10.31
mancial assets - Other bank balances
. As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03.2021
Particulars
¥ crore Z crore
ted deposits with banks (with Original maturity more than 3 months, including
N . A 387.74 217.11
etest accryed thereon)
mmarked bank account for Non Convertible Debentures 0.04 .05
4,08,315/~ as at March 3 1,2022, T 5,38,608/- as at March 31, 2021}
381.78 217.16

1ancial assets - Trade Receivables

\ As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Pariiculars
¥ crore ¥ crore
ceivables considered good - nnsecured (Refer Note 7R) 3.98 194.07
1: Provision for expected credit loss {1.78) (1.78)
’ 7.20 192.29

ancial assets - Loans

Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-202]
¥ crore ¥ crore
ancial assets measured at amortized cost
Unsecured loans to subsidiarics:
Mezzanine debt {(Refer Note SA} - 122.57
Inter-corporate deposits (Refer Note 5B) 33832 169,82
Unsecured loans (Refer Note 5C) 11.68 11.68
358.00 304.06
Less : Provision for expected credit loss {32.67) (155.25)
31733 148.82




WASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

aing part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

gzzanine debt given to the following subsidiaries

As at 31-03-2022

As at 31-03-2621

Neme of the subsidiary ¥ crove % crore
‘ollway Limited {Interest is payable at SBI bank rate+predetermined 12257
+0.05% after obtaining approval of lenders) B .
- 122.57
- {(122.57)

Allowance for expecied credit loss

Total Mezzanine Debt

-

ter corporate deposits placed with the following subsidiaries (interest charged at one year (-Sec rate p.a. prevailing on the

ve date of borrowing):

As at 31-03-2022

As at 31-03-2021

Name of the subsidiary % crore % crore
ripat Elevated Corridor Limited 84.13 67.61
«T Sambalpur Rourkela Tollway Limited - 17.30
&T Samakhiali Gandhidham ToHway Limited 52.94 16.23
&T Vadodara Bharuch Tollway Limited 12.23 -
¢T Rajkot - Vadinar Toliway Limited 189.02 68.68
338.32 169.81
Provision for expected credit loss 32.67) (32.67)
Total inter-corporate deposits given (Net) 305.65 137.14
Jnsecured loan provided to the following subsidiaries
Name of the subsidiary As ai,% Si;gi;?.ﬂlz As ati:;:i;l&ll
&T Chennai Tada Tollway Limited 11.68 11.68
11.68 11.68
: Pravision for expected credit loss - -
Total unsecured loans provided (Net) 11.68 11.63




INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
i forming part of the standatone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

nancial assets - Investments

As at 31-03:2022 As at 31-83-2021

Farticulars T erore T crore

vestments (unquoted investnents) measured at cost
Equity instraments

Subsidiaries 1,606.95 1,996.47

Associates 13.95 13.95

Others 404.38 14.86
) Preference shares

Subsidiaries 714.03 844.53

Others 130.50 -
nancial assets measured st fair value through P&L
Muatual Funds 177.47 26.11
1ancial assets measured at amortized cost
Jebt Securities

Subsidiaries 109.97 137.78
1ancial assets measured at fair value through OCl

Infrastructure Investment Trust (InvIT ) 468.21 940.03

ub-total (A} 3,625.46 3.973.73
restments in India 3,625.46 3,973.73
/estinents outside India - -
1b-total (B) 3,625.46 3.973.73
55 : Allowance for impairment (C) (1,240.78) {1,140.20)
tal(D=A.C) 2,384.68 2,833.53

fer Notes 6A to 6E for details about the investments, the covenants and undertakings attached to. them and the shares pledged as
urity.




INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

forming part of the staudalone Ind AS fisancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022

etails of fnvestments

Face -
Particalars value No. of units As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
per unit ¥ crove T crore
[nvestment in equity instruments
Subsidiary companies:
Investment in fully paid equity shares:
-&T Halol - Shamlaji Tollway Limited (Refer Note 6D) _ - 389.52
-&T Sambalpur - Rourkela Totlway Limited 10 290,029,998 260.03 290.03
& T Deccan Tollways Limited 16 243,330,998 243.34 243.34
{udgi Transmission Limited 10 192,599,998 192.60 192.60
Ahmedabad - Maliya Tollway Limited 10 148,999,900 149.00 149,00
«&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited 10 109,999,900 110.00 110.00
*anipat Elevated Corridor Limited 4] 30,046,604 30.05 30.05
-&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited 10 80,527,000 80.53 80.53
L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited 10 57,159,998 57.16 57.16
vadodara Bharuch Tollway Limited 10 43,499,993 43.50 4350
& T Transportation Infrastructure Limited 10 30,536,000 53.14 53.14
Vatrak Infrastructure Private Limited 10 99,990 0.01 -
{a) 1,249.35 1,638.87
nvestment in terminated projects (Refer Note 45)
NG Tollway Limited 10 125,133,896 125.13 12513
&T Chennai - Tada Tollway Limited 10 41,999,900 42.00 42,00
{b} 167.13 167.13
Jeemed equity investment component (Amortised cost adjustmenton interest freeflower than market rate Ipans)
\hmedabad - Maliva Tollway Limited 72.6% 72.69
&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited 84.14 84.14
&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited 27.20 27.20
*anipat Elevated Corridor Limited 6.44 &.44
(c) 190.47 190.47
\sseciate companies:
nvestment in fully paid equity shares:
JIDPL INDVIT Services Limited HH 13,950,000 13.95 13.95
{d) 13.95 13.95.
Jlier companies:
nvestment in fully paid equity shares:
::;i?:a; Vivekananda Bridge Tollway Company Private i 915 0.00 0.00
TCAL Iron Ore Terminals Limited (Refer Note 17A) 10 14,300,000 14.30 14.30
adian Highway Management Company Limited 10 555,370 0.56 0.56
&T Halol - Shamlaji Toliway imited (Refer Note 6D) 10 389,519,500 389.52 “
{e} 404.38 14.86
‘otal (A) = {atb+crdie) (A) 2,015.28 2,025.28
reference shares considered as equity
hmedabad - Maliya Tollway Limited 10 268,944,604 268.94 268.94
&T Halo} - Shamlaji Tollway Limited - 130.50
&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited 10 171,794,452 171.79 171.79
&T Samakhialt Gandhidham Tollway Limited 10 128,184,003 128.18 128,19
NG Tollway Limited 10 91,110,000 91.11 9111
&T Deccan Tollways Limited 10 54,000,000 54.60 54.00
{B) 714.03 844,53
ither Companies
westment in preference shares
&1 Halol - Shamlaji Tollway Limited 10 130,560,000 130.50 -
) 130.50 -




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LYMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Il Investment in Ynfrastructure Investment Trust (InvIT)

Indinfravit Trust (Refer Note No. 49)

[l Investment debentures - Subsidiary companies

Panipat Elevated Corridor Limited (16.56% secured noa

convertiblc debentures)

¥V Mutuak Funds
IDFC Ovemight funds
Tata Liquid Fund Regular Plan - Growih
ECICT Prudential Liquid Fund Growth
L&T Ovemight funds
Kotak Liquid Regular Plan Growth
UTI Liguid Cash Plan Institutional ~ Growth
Axis Overnight Fund - Growth
Aditya Birla Overnight Fund
Total investment in Mutual funds

Total= (A) + (B) + (C ) + (D) + (E) +(F)

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment

Total investment

10¢

1,000,000

5,525
1,044,665
49,375
1,880
447,468
12,027
230,742

37,561,677 468,21 940.03
@ 468.21 940.03
1,000 109.97 137.78
(E) 109,97 137.78
- 1.45

0.62 -

11.93 .
7.79 2.79

0.21 -
129.04 7.48

1.35 -
26.52 9.6
(F) 177.47 26.11
3,625.46 3,973.73
{1,240.78) {1,140.20)
2,384.68 2,833.54




_&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Jotes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
Note 6B:

The Company has pledged its following investments in equity shares in subsidiazies as the collateral against the term loans
provided by lenders of the respective subsidiaries

St As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Name of the Company
No T crore ¥ crore
(a) | Subsidiary companies
1 L&T Samakhiali Gendhidham Tollway Limited 41.07 41.07
2 | L&T Halol - Shamlaji Tollway Limited {refer note 6D 520.02 520.02
561.09 561.09
Naote 6C:

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 107 - Tinancial Instruments: Disclosures
The Company has given, inter alia, the following undertakings in respect of its investments:

(a) Jointly with Larsen & Toubro Limited (promoter), to the term tenders of L&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited
(LTSGTL) not to reduce the joint sharehalding in LTSGTL below 51% until the financial assistance received from the term
lenders is repaid in full by LTSGTL.

(b) To the term lenders of the below mentioned subsidiaries, not to divest control without the prior approval of the lenders and
Gujarat State Road Development Corporation Limited.
- L& Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Lirited
- Ahmedabad - Maliya Tollway Limited

{¢) To the term lenders of L&T Sambalpur - Rourkela Tollway Limited (LTSRTL) to retain the management control of LTSRTL
and not to reduce the shareholding below 51%6 without prior written approval of the lenders.

(d) To the term lenders of L&T Deccan Tollways Limited not to reduce its shareholding below 51% of total paid up equity share
capital as per the Finance Plan during the currency of the loan without prior approval of the lenders.

{¢) To the term lenders of L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited not to reduce its shareholding below 51% until the expiry of
three years from Commercial Operation Date (COD} and thereafter not to reduce its shareholding below 26% until the
financial assistance received from the term lenders isTepaid in full.

Note 6D:

During the year ended March 31, 2017, one of the subsidiaries of the Company, namely, L&T Halol Shamalji Toliway Limited
(LTHSTL), pursuant to its withdrawal of the termination letter issued to Gujarat State Road Development Corporation (GSRDC)
had entered into a Master Restructuring Agreement with its lenders under the Strategic Restructuring package of the Reserve Bank
of India. Pursnant to the same,

a) the londers have acquired about 51% stake in LTHSTL.
b} the Company has entered into a deed of pledge wherein all the shares held by the Company in LTHSTL have been pledged in
favour of the lenders of LTHSTL.
¢) the Company has entered into a sponsor undertaking in favour of the lenders wherein the Company has sub-ordinated its
rights to Teceive any amounts from LTHSTL in whatever form unless a1l obligations of the lenders including the equity
portion of their debt is repaid with an agreed [RR.
(d) the Company shall not transfer or pledge the equity shares held by it in LTHSTL, without procuring the prior written consent
of the Jender sharcholders.
(¢) LTHSTL has allotted 9,90,200 0.01% optionally Convertibile Preference Shares of 10 each in favour of the Company for
the rectification of excess conversion of Preference Shares into Equity Shares made during the financial year 2016-17.
During the year ended March 31, 2020, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) has allowed the insolvency application filed
by a Financial Creditor for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under scction 7 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptey- Code, 2016 against LTHSTL. Consequently, the Board of the LTHSTL has been suspended and Insolvency
Professional has been appointed.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022

The Company filed appeal to stay the proceedings of above insolvency order before the Honourable Supreme Court of Indiz and the
Court has granted order of stay on the proceedings of the CIRP. Based on its assessmerit, duly considering the ongoing discussions
with the [enders and legal advice obtained, the Management expects a favourable outcome of the appeal which is currently pending
before the Honourable Supreme Court of India. Supreme Court vide order dated October 21, 2021 dismissed the appeal filed by the
company and the stay has been vacated. Consequent to the erder, LTHSTL has been admitted into CIRP, decision making authority
rests with the Resolution Professional and Committe of Creditors (COC). During the year, RP invited Expression of Interest from
Prospective resolution applicants and accordingly one Company has evinced interest and the same is under review of Committee of
Creditors for further process. Therefore, LFHSTL ceased to be 2 subsidiary of the company.

The cost of investment was Rs, 520.02 Crores and the company has provided for Rs. 420,00 crores in its books of account towards
dimution in value of the above investment during previous years. Consequent to the supreme court order and based on the
management assessment, the balance of Rs.100 crores has been provded in the books of account as further diminution in the value
of investment during the year and the same has been disclosed as exceptional item,

Note 6E:

The Company is carrying net investments aggregating Rs. 740.47 crores (As at March 31, 2021 Rs. 768.28 crores) and has
outstanding net loans and advances aggregating Rs. 293.41 crores (As at March 31, 2021 Rs. 119.84 crores) provided to certain
operating subsidiaries of the Company engaged in infrastructure projects whose networth is fully eroded/undergeing restructuring

due to continuous losses, for a period of more than 5 years, as per the audited financial information of these entities as at March 31,
2022,

Considering the gestation period required for break even for such infrastructure investments, restructuring/refinancing
arrangements carried out/proposed and expected improved cash flows in its fulure business projections, no additional provision/
adjustment to the carrving value of the said investments is considered necessary by the Management as at March 31, 2022.

For the purpose of determining the recoverable value of its investments, the Compary has considered the discounted cash flows
from the investment, determined based on the traffic projections and with discount rates calculated based on the cost of equity for
the applicable investment, adjusted for the proposed restructuring/refinancing.




IFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
wming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31,2022
wcial assets - Qthers

. As af 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Parficalars
¥ crare Ferore

eivable from Subsidiary 573 5.60
ances recoverable in cash (Refer Notes 7A4) 67.05 23.05
r:Provision for expected credit loss {547y {5.47}
Advance recoverabile in cash 61.58 17.58
wity deposits 0.29 027

67.69 23.45

:TA

he Company had received a notice dated April 20, 2015 from Maharashira Airpost Development Company Limited
WDC), as per which MADC had instructed fo hand over the possession of 50.85 acres of vacant land taken oh ninety
years lease at Nagpur, within a period of 15 days, as the Company has not commenced commercial activitics by June
0613. Accordingly, the book value of premium paid to MADC as at March 31,2022 and as at March 11, 2021 shown
xcoverable was TNil. The Company had approached MADC for either transfer of land to any interested party or to
e a total exit from its allotted land by claiming refund. During the year 2019-20, the company reeeived Z 13.73 crores
1 MADC and balance of T 0,47 croves was provided for during 2019.20.

‘he claim of bank Guarantee of 2 5 Crores with Gujarat Maritime Board transferred to the District court of

dhinagar is still pending for hearing and hence the amount of ¥ 5 Crores have been provided for in the books of
unts,

178

g the year 2019-20, the Company has entered into an agreement to recover the cost for rectification works from the
ractor agaregating fo T 169.77 crores {excluding GST). Consequently, the recovery of such rectification works has
i accounted during the period ended March 31, 2020 and disclosed as other financial assets. During the year 202021,

iees were raised to the contractor te the cxtent of T188.79 crores (inclusive of GST) and hence. forms part of frade.
ivables .

-financial assets - Current tax assets

. As at 31-03-2022 Asat 31.03-2021
Particaiars
T erore ¥ ¢rore
ance tax {net of provisions for Tax) 3594 60.55
35,94 60.55
~financial assets - Deferred Taxes _
. As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Particulars
¥ erore ¥ crore
srred fax - Assets/ {Liabilities)* 3.56 (3.79)
3.56 (3.79).

'L of Rs. 3.79 Crs has been shown under labilities in Balance Sheet
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M INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
15 forming part of the standnlone Ind A% finnncisl statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Nou-flnancial assets - Qthers

. Asat 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Particulars )
¥ erore ¥ crore ¥ ¢rore ¥ crore
Advanees recoverable other than in cash 705 8.38
7.08 B.38
Tinancial Liabilities - Teade paynbles
. As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-63-2021
Particulars
. ZF crore & crore ¥ erore ¥F crore
Due to related parties
Prometer 0.75 -
Feltow subsidinries 0.33 1.68
1.08 1.68
Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Entecprises Q.02 253
Dug to others 19.03 27.%6
20.13 32.07
Note 15A

As at March 31, 2022, based an and 1o the extent of information seceived from the suppliers regarding their registration as
Migro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, there is an
amount of Z0.02 crore (PY - ¥2.46 crores) outstanding, but not due, in respect of these vendors. Interest of nil {PY-2G:07 crore}
has been provided in respect of these dues as per Section [6 of The Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006.

Financial Linbilities - Debf Securities

. As at31-03-2022 As.at 31-032021
Particulars
¥ crore ¥ crore ¥ crore ¥ erore
Financiol Babilities measured at amoertized cost
Secured:
Redeemable non-convertible fixed mte debentures - 60.14
Unsecured:
Redeomabie nen-convertible fixed rate debentures - 25528
- 315.42
Debt securities. inside lndia - 31542
Debl securities outside Tadta - -
- 315.42

Note:

During the year, the company has effected early redemption of non convertible debentures having a principal outstanding of Rs.

290 crores and interest thereon,




INFRASTRUCT URE.-DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
forming parf of the standalone Ind AS finageial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

inancial liabilities - Others

. As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Particulars
. Forore . Fcroare ¥ crore Ferore

dvance received against sale of investments 14.30 14.30

‘efer Note 174)

thers 877 .27
23.07 258.57

e ey
otc I7A:

dvance received zgainst sale of investments represents advance of' ¥ 14.30 crare received from Sical Logistics Limited (SLL)
sinst sale of 1,43,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10~ each in Sical Iron Ore Teminals Limited (SIOTLY) at cast to SLL vide
greement for Share Sale and Purchase dated Decemher 17, 2008. The sale is subject to the condition that it can be completed
dy after threc yesrs from the date of commencement of commercial oparation by SIOTL as per clause 18.2.2 (i) {d) of the
conse agreement dated September 23, 2006 between SIOTL and Fnnore Port Limited (EPL). SIOTL has not been able to
mimence commercial operation as of March 31, 2022 due fo the bar of export of iron ore from the State of Karnataks, SIOTL
18 ot necessary approvals for wansfer of such shares and is in the process of identifying a suitable investor for infusion’ of
nds.. The Company has requested SIOTL, ta approach EPL for approval of the transfer, As per NCLT order dated March 01,
122, SIOTL has been admitted under IBC (Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code) proceedings.

om financial liabilities - Provisions

. Asat 31-03-2022 As at 31.03-2021
Particulary
ZTcrore F erore T erore ¥ crore
ovision for employee benefits
Retention pay 123 315
Compensated absences 3.60 6.16
Gratuity 0.91 1.67
mtingent provisions against standard assets 1.95 195
lemnities provided on sale of subsidiaries 20.60 2211
28.29 35.04
v financial abifities - Others
. Asat 31-03.2022 As at 31-03-2021
Particulars
¥ crore Ferore T erore Z crore
her payables
Statutory liabilities 2.89 312
2.55 3.12.

<<<<<<< This space Is intentienally left blank >>>5>>5>



IFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
yrming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

ity share capital

Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up

a) Authorised:
Particulars As at 31-03-2022 Asat 31-03-2021
rhetar No. of shares g crore No. of shares Z crore
lity shares of ¥ 10 each 800,000,000 800.00 800,000,000 800.00
:cial equity shares of ¥ 10 each 10,000 0.0i 10,000 0.01
mpulsorily convertible preference shares
fes 1 of & 1,00,00,000 cach 1,800 1,800.00 1,800 1,800.00
mpulsorily convertible preference shares 5
jes 2 of ¥ 1,00,00,000 each 00 200.00 200 200.00
880,012,000 2,800.01 800,012,000 2,800.01
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
No. of shares Z crore No. of shares ¥ crore
[nity shares of ¥ 10 each 629,511,664 629.51 629,511,664 629.51
ecial equity shares of ¥ 10 each 10,000 0.01 10,000 0.01
629,521,664 629.52 629,521,664 629.52

[) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
No. of shares Z crore No. of shares ¥ crore
juity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up
At the beginning of the year 629,511,664 629.51 629,511,664 629.51
Issued during the year as fully paid up - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 629,511,664 629.51 629,511,664 629.51
secial equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up
At the beginning of the year 10,000 0.01 10,000 0.01
Issued during the year as fully paid up - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 0.01 10,000 0.01

II) Terms / rights / restrictions attached to equity shares:

quity Shares of ¥ 10 each
he Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of
ares/disinvesiment.

ach holder is entitled to one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indian Rupees. Dividend proposed by the Board
f Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, except in the case of
sterim dividend. The shares issued carry equal rights to dividend declared by the Company and no resirictions are attached
» any specific shareholder.




T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
es forniing part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Special Equity shares of ¥ 10 each

I. The Special Equity Shares carry specific incremental rights (*Director Voting Rights") with respect to the election,

appointment and/or removal of directors of the Company. These Director Veting Rights are trigpered only under specific
conditions. '

2. The Special Equity Shares cany no right to receive any dividend or other distributions of the Company, or otherwise carry
any economic rights. However, upon the occurrence of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the Company, the helder of Speciai Equity Shares is entitled to receive a maximuom of Z 10 per Special Equity Share.

3. The Special Equity Shares have no right to receive bonus shares or offers for rights shares.

(IV) Shares held by holding company/ ultimate holding company/ promoter and/or their subsidiaries/associates:

As at 31-03-2022 Asat 31-03-2021
No. of shares Shareholding %  No. of shares Shareholding %

Particulars

Equity shares of % 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, Promoter

(including shares held along with its 321,049,096 51.00 321,049,096 51.00
notinees)

Special equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Larsen & Toubro Limited, Promoter 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00

(V) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at 31-03-2022 Asat 31-03-2021
No. of shares Shareholding %  Ne. of shares Shareheolding %

Particulars

Equity shares of 10 each
Larsen & Toubro Limited, Promoter

(including shares held along with its 321,049,096, 51.00 321,049,096 51.00
nominees)

CPPIB India Private Holdings Inc. 308,462,568 49.00 308,462,568 49.00
Special equity shares of F 10 each

Larsen & Toubro Limited, the Promaoter 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00

(VI) Sharekolding of Promoters:

As at March 31, 2022
. - .
Shares held by Promoters at the end of Year % Cl;ﬁ:i:::lrmg
Promoter Name Type No of Shares % of Total Shares
tarsen & Toubro Limited Equity Shares 321,049,096 51.00 -
y & Toubro Limited ' i i
arseri oubro Limite Spe_c,;al Equ}ty 10,000 100.00 _
Shares
As at Marech 31, 2021 _
Py ;
Shares held by Promoters at the end of Year % Cl::::f:;irurmg
Promater Name Type . No of Shares % of Total Shares
-.arsen & Toubro Limited Equity Shares 321,049,096 51.00 -
.arsen & Toubro Limited Special Equity

10,000 100.00 -
‘Shares




NFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1Ty Agpregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash; shares bought back during
: period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
t During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has bought back 217 fully paid up Compulserily Convertible

zference Shares Series 1 (CCPS) of ¥ 1,00,00,000 each of nominal value at a premiom of ¥55,42,3435 per CCPS for an
gregate value of ¥ 337.27 crores. Capital redemption reserve to the extent of the nominal value of preference shares is

sated during the year.

} During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has bought back 920 fully paid up Compulsorily Convertible
eference Shares Series 1 (CCPS}) of ¥ 1,00,00,000 each of nominal value at a premivm of ¥21,73,913 per CCPS for an
gregate value of ¥ 1,120 crores, Capital redemption reserve to the extent of the nominal value of preference shares is

sated during the year.

) During the year ended March 31, 2020, the balance CCPS of X 863.00 crores was converted to equity shares of the

ympany.

TIT) Calls unpaid: NIL; Forfeited shares: NIL.

) During the year ended March 31, 2020, 863 CCPS of Z 1,00,00,000 each has been converted to 30,84,62,568 equity
ares of T 10 each ata premium of T 17.98 as per terms of the Investment Agreement (as amended) entered into between

& shareholders of the Company,
ther equity

Particutars

As at 31-03.2022
¥ crore F crore

As at 31-03-2021

T crore

¥ crore

:curities premium account
As per last balance sheet

zbenture redemption reserve
efer Note 21A)
As per last balance sheet
Add: Transferred to General Reserve

aserve us 45-1C of Reserve Bank of India
et, 1934
As per last balance sheet
Add: Transferred from Surplus in
Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note
21B)

apital Redemption Reserve
As per last balance sheet

eneral Reserve
As per last balance sheet
Add: Transfer from debenture redemption
reserve

997.45
997.45

8.82
(8.82)

98.33

98.33

1,137.00
1,137.00

15.06
8.82

23.88

99745

8.82

98.33

1,137.06

15.06

997.45

8.82

1,137.00

15.06



[ INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
:s forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Retained earnings
As per last balance sheet 229.33 282.16
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (43.02) {(53.10}
Add: Other comprehensive income ~

remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.09) 027
Add: Realised gains on sale of equity 3.58
instrument carried through FVOCL )
Less: Settlement on account of erystallized
: (8.53) .
claims
186.27 229.33
] As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Particulars ‘
F crore € crove € crore T crore
Other comprehensive income
As per last balance sheet (22.75) 80.73
Add: OCI for the year 109.52 (103.48)
Less: Realised gains on sale of equity (8.58)
shares casried through FVOCI '
78.19 (22.75)
2,521.12 2,463.24

Note 21A

The Balance in the Debenture Redemption Reserve of Rs. 8.82 crores has been transferred to General Reserve since the
debentures has been fully repaid.

Note 21B

Considering the loss after tax for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, no amounts were required to be
transferred to the statutory reserve as required under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bark of India (RBI) Act, 1934.

Note 21C

In accordance with Notification G.S.R. 404(E), dated April 6, 2016, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognized as
part of retained earnings.

<<<<<<< This space is intentionally left blank >>>>>>>



L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone fud AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

22 Interestincome

Particulars 2021-22 2620-21
arten ¥ crore ¥ crore ¥ erore ¥ crore
On financial assets measured at fair valug theoogh OCL
Tnvestments 2284 11.89
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Dehentures 10.67 13.32
Inter corporate deposits 14.35 7.96
Cther loans and advances - 1.66
Bank deposits 13.95 13.73
3397 36.66
61.81 48.56
23 Net gain oz falr value changes
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
arien Z ¢rore # crore Fcrore ¥ crore
Net gain on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or
loss
Cu trading portfolio
Huvestments in mutugl fund 6.34 1.12
6.34 1,12
Fair value changes
Realised 5.17 0.90
Unrealised 1.17 0.22
Total net gain on fair value changes 6.34 1.12
24 Sazle of service
Parficulars 2021-22 2020-21
¢ ¥ crore ‘€ erore T crore Fcrare
Project faciitation and advisory service fees 48.03 43.38
Business support services 1.39 1.56
5142 50,94




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes farming part of the stagdalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2622

25 Others
P‘a rticulars 3021-22 2020-21
# croye ¥ erore % crore Fcrore
Other Incoms: from Indinfravit Trust 6.34 -
£.34 -
26 Oeher lacome
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
¥ crore T crore ¥ orore ¥ erore
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {net) Q.06 .11
Miscellaneows income 6.18 710
6.24 7.21
27 Fins_mcc casts
Particalars 2021.22 2620-21
¥ erore ¥ ¢rore T crore ¥ erore
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on borrowings
Interest on redecmable non-convertible fixed rate debentures 12.15 2727
(Others
Interest on delayed payment to MSMEs - 0.07
FealCharges for Prepayment of non-convertible fixed rate debentures 0.63 -
12.78 27.34
2% Employee benefits expense
. 202122 2020-21
Particulars ¥ crore T crore € erare T crore
Salaries and wages 25.18 29.04
Contribution to Provident fund and pension scheme 1.22 1.20
Contribution to Gratuity fund 0.49 1.49
Contribution to Superannuation fund 0.17 0.20
1.88 2.89
Staff welfare expenses 0.55 0.62
27.61 32.55




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended Harch 31, 2022

19 Construction and refated operating expenses

Parficulars 2021-22 2020-21
T erore ¥ erore T crore ¥ crore
Related operating expenses
Proféssienal and consultancy charges - 262
Tender document expenses - 0.04
- 2.66
- 2.66
30 Administration and other expenses
Particulars 2021-22 2026-21
¥ crore ¥ crore % crore F crore

Legal & Professional charges 544 539
Auditor’s fees and expenses (Refer Note 30 A below) 0.48 049
Insurznce 1.50 1.42
Rent (Refer Note 35) 276 273
Rates and faxes 0.25 0.97
Repairs & maintenance 9.96 12.82
Printing & stationery 022 0.20
Power & electricity charges 0.10 0.09
Communication & postage 0.58 0.79
Bank and bank guarantee charges 0.66 0.78
Travelling & conveyance £.03 0.59
Corporate sacial responsibil ity {Refer Note 308 below) 1.39 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1.57 .24

25.94 27.51




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31,2022

Note 30A:
Details of auditor's fegs and cxpenses (excinding applicable taxes)
Particulars 2621-22 2020-21
T erore T crore
As-auditor - Sautory audit.fees 0.24 0.27
For taxation mafters 12171 (.02
For Cetification 009 0.06
Limited review and oihier services (Includes Rs.0.04 ers paid to Previous Auditors) 0.11 0.12
. For reimbursenient of expenses {paid to Previous Auditors) 0.2 0.1
Total .48 (.49
Note 30B:

The company has made a prevision of Rs. 1.39 Crs for period ended 31st March 2022, pursuant te Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 relating

to Corporate Social Responsibility,

Particulars. 2021-22 2020-21

¥ crore ¥ crore
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 1.39 -

Ampunt spent / transfer during the year on

a) Construction/Acquisition of any Asset - -
b) Ongoing Projects - -
¢) On Purposes other than (a) & (b) sbove - -
Shorifall at the end of the year* ' 1.39 -

*Represents the amount to be deposited in specified funds as mentioned in schedule V11 {relafing to other than angoing projects) as at the end of

the year.

31 Exceptional items

Particula 2021-22 2820-21
culars T erare ¥ crare F crore T crore
{i} Provision for diminution in vatue of investments/ loans and
advances in subsidiaries baving networth erosion/ undergaing . (69.26)
restricturing due to continuous losses for a period of more )
than 5 years
{ii) Writeback of provision made earlier for terminated
‘4 - 5.06
subsidiary (net)
(iii) Reversal of Provision for expected credit Joss on Mezzanine Debt 122.57
Write off of Mezzanine Debt (122.57) -
(iv) Provision for diminution in value of other'investments (100.58) -
(100.58) {64.20)
{100.58) iﬁ«i.iﬁ)
32 Otber comprehensive income ’
Particulars 202122 2820-21
¥ crore ¥ crore % crore ¥ crore
Items that will be reclassificd to Profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or loss
Cain/ (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation {0.09) 0.27
Gain/ {lossy on fair value of investments measured at EVTOCL 100.96 100.86 (138.28) (133.00)
Income fux relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss 8.56 34.80
109.43 {103.24).




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial instruments: Disclosure”

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves atiributable to the
equity holders of the parent. The primary ebjective of the company’s capital management is to maximisc the shareholder value.

Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market Tisk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is 1o foresee
the unpredictability of financial markets and seck to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Board of Directors of
the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and. oversight of the Company's isk management framework. The Board of

‘Direciors has established avisk management policy to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set apptopriate risk limits and

controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities, The Board of Directors oversee compliance. with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the risk management framework.

A) Market risk

=4

The market risk is the risk that the fair valus or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises thres types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk,

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or fiture cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctnate because of changes in foreign
oxchange rate. 'The company is not cxposed to foreign currency risk as it has no borrowing or no material payables in foreign currency.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company measuses risk through sensitivity analysis. Currently, lending is from debentures for which the the intcrest rates ate fixed.

Price risk

Price risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of chariges in market prices {other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

The Company is exposed to price risk due lo investments in mufual funds which classified as fair value through profit or loss and investments
infrastructure investments trust which is classified as fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company measures rigk through sensitivity analysis.

The Company's risk management policy is (o mitigate the risk by investments in diversified mutual funds.

The Company's exposure to price risk due to investments in mutual fund and units of InvIT is as follows:

Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments in Mutual Funds ; 17747 26.11
Investment in Indinfravit Trast 46821 940.03

Scositivity Analysis

Impact on profit/ loss after tax
2021-22 2020-21

Increuse or decrease in NAY / Unit Price by 1% 1.77 0.26
Note - In case of decrease in NAV, profit will reduce and vice versa.

Impact on other comprehensive income
before tax
2421-22 2026-21

Increase or decrease in NAV / Unit Price by 1% 4.68 9.40
Note - In case of decrease in NAV, OCIwill reduce and vice versa,

B) Creditrisk

Cradit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation. The comapany primarily is an investment company and returms is by way of return on investment. The company also provides toll
operation and maintenance services to the road projects where the company has invested at a mutually apreed fee. The company sees no credit
risk in that transaction. The company has seceivables from few govenrmental agencies which are either under 2 dispule or is pending
settlement.

C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encouater difficulty in meeting obligations assaciated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or anotber financial assets.

‘The Company is exposed to liguidity risk duc 1 borrowings and wade and other payables. The Company measures risk by forecasting cash
flows.




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial staterients for the year ended Mareh 31,2022

33 Disclosure pursuant to Tnd AS 107 "Financial instruments: Disclosure” (contd.)

D) Expeeted eredit loss-Loans

Particulars Asat As at
March 3§, 2022 March 31, 2621
Financial assets for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition
Opening balance as on April 1 17597 169.85
Increase/ (decrease) in provisioning during the year {122.58) 6.12
Closing balanee as on March 31 53.39 17597
E} Expecied credit doss-Trade and-other receivables
s As at Asat
Parti
articulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Financial assets for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition
Opening balance as on April | 1.25 7.25
Increase/ (decrease} in provisioning dring the year - -
Closing batance as en March 31 7125 7.25
The following are the contractual mafurities of Anancial lLiabilities
Carrying
March 31, 2022 upte I year 1-~2years 2-Syears > 5 yearg Total Amount
Neon Derivative Financiat LiabHity
Advance received against sale of investments
(Refer Note 17A) 14.30 - 14.30 14.30
Trade payables 2013 - 20,13 20.13
Other financial liabilities 8.77 - 8.77 877
BDerivative Financial Liability - - - - - -
Carrying
March 31, 2021 upto 1year 1-2years 2-Syears > 5 years Tatal Amount
Non Berivative Financial Liability
Secured debentures 30.14 30.00 - - 60.14 60.14
-Unsecured debentures 5.14 - - 250.00 255.14 255.28
Advanice received against sale of investments
(Refer Note 17A) 14.30 - 1430 14.30
Trade payables 31.88 - 31.88 3207
Other financial liabilities 11.46 - 11,46 11.27
Perivative Financial Liabilify - - - - - -

<< c<<<< This space is imtentionally left blank >>>>>>>




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 107 nFinancial instruments: Disclosure” (contd.}

a) Category-wise clasification of applicahle Financial Instruments

Mareh 31, 2022 March 31,2021
pvrer, Fvrocr  AmOrtizd  purp pyrocr  Amertned
cost cost

Finangial asset

Investmerits in mutual funds (77.47 - - 26.11 - -

Tnvestments in infrastructure frusts - 468.21 - - 940,03 -

Loans - - 350.00 - - 304.06

Investrnent in debt securities - - 109.97 - - 137.78

Investment in other companics 534.88 - - 14.86 - -

Trade receivables - - 7.20 - - 192.29

Cash and cash equivalents and - - 389.00 " - 22747

bank balances

Other receivables “ - 67.60 - - 2345
Total Financial Asset 712,35 468.21 923.77 40.97 949.03 885.06
Financial liability

Debenfures - - - - - 31542

Trade payables - - 20.13 - - 32.07

Other liabilities - - 23.07 - - 25.57
Total Financial Liabilities - - 43.20 - - 373,05

Defaulf and breaches

There are no defaults with respect to payment of principal interest, sinking fund or redemption terms and no breaches of the
terms and conditions of the borrowings.

There are no breaches diiring the year which permitted lender to demand accelerated payment,

b) Fair value of Finaneial asset and liabilties at amortized cost

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particul . -
artleutar Carrymg Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Finanecial Assets

Loans 350.00 350.00 304.06 304.06

Tnvestment in debt securities 109.97 109.97 137.78 137.78

Trade receivables 7.20 7.20 192.29 192.29

Cash and cash equivalents and 389.00 389.00 227.47 2747

bank balances

Other receivables 67.60 6760 23.45 23.45
Total Financial Assets 923.77 923.77 885.06 885.06
Financial liability

Debentures - - 31542 31542

Trade payables 20.13 20,13 32.07 32.07 - -

Other linbilities 23.07 23.07 25.57 25.57 - -
Total Financial Liabilities 43.20 43.20 373.05 373.05

The carrying amount of security deposit measured at amortized cost is considered to be the same as its fair value due to iis
insignificant value.

The carrying value of loan to related parties approximate fair value as the instruments arc at prevailing market rate.




The carrying amount of loans and advances, trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other financial Tigbilities
measured at amortised cost are considered to bethe same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.

The carrying amount of other receivables and current trade payables measured at amortised cost are considered to be the same
as their fair values, due to their shori term nature,

The carrying value of term loans and debentures approximate fair value as the instruments are at prevailing market rate.
Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 113 "Fair Valae Measurement”

Fair value hierarchy of Einancial asset and Financial liabilties

March 31, 2022

Particulars | Levell | Levelz | Level3d |  Total
Financial asset measured at FVTPL

Investmentts in mutual funds 177.47 - - 177.47
Investment in other companies - - 534.88 534,88

Total Financial Assets at FVTPL 177.47 - 534.88 71235




Financial assets measured at FVTOCH

Investments in infrastructure trusts 468.21 - - 468.21
Total Financial Assets at FYTOCI 468,21 - - 468.21
March 31, 2021

Particulars |  Levell ] Level2 l Level 3 ] Taotal
Financial asset measured at FVTPL :

Thvestments in mutual funds 26.11 - - 26.11
Tnvestment in other companies - - 14.36 14.86
Total Firancial Assets at FVTFL 26.11 - 14.86 40.97

Financial assets measured at FVTOCT
Investments in infrastructare irusts 940.03

040.03
Tofal Financial Assets at FVTOCI 940.03 - - 940.03

There is no transfer between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

The company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer out of fair values hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

d) Valuation techuique and inputs used to determine fair value

Financial assets and Habilities Valuation Inputs
methad
Financial assets
Investment in mutual funds Market Approach- NAY
Investments in infrastracture trusts Market Approach Market Price

e) Assefs pledged as security

March 31, March 31,

Particulars 2022 2021
Non Financial Asset
Investment property D.10 0.10
Financial Assct
Investments in debentures 109.97 137.78
Cash and bank balances 0.04 0.05
TQOTAL 110,11 137.93

34 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”

The company operates mainly in the business segment of investment activity. As such there are no reportable segments as per
Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.
35 Disclosures pursuant to Tud AS 116 * Leases”

The company has taken residential and office premises under short term feases, Lease rental expenses in respect of these short
term leases for the year is  2.68 crore (previous:year ¥ 2.73 crore).




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT FROJECTS LIMITED
Nutes forming part of the standalone fnd AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

36 Disclosure pursarat te Tnd AS 12 Y[ncome taxes™

2} The major components of income tax expease for period/ years ended:
Particulars 2021-22 2020-2F
2 crore ¥ crore
Current income Tax:
Current incame tax charge - 274
Deferred Tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 121 1.35
Income tax reported in. the statement of prefit and loss 1,21 4.0%
Deferred Tax
On items that wilt not be reclassified to statament of profit and loss
Fair Valuation of Investrments through Other comprehensive licome (B.56) (34.80
Tncome tay, reported in the Qiber Comprehiensive Income (8.56) (36.7L
b) Reconciliztion of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2021 and March 31, 202%:
Particulars 202122 2020-11
T crove T crore
‘Accounting prafit before tax from continuing eperations {41.81) {49.01)
Corporate Tax Rate @25.17% as per Income Tax Act {10.52) (12.34)
Other non dedoctible expenses 1L73 1643
Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 121 409
Tncome tax expense reported fn the statement of profit and bess 121 409
121 4,09
Major components of deferred tax liabilities and assels
Recoguized in
Asat Recognized in other Others As at
Particulurs 01-84-2020 profit and losz | comprebensive 31-03-202%
income
T crore T trore T crore T crore ¥ crore
Financial assets at FVTOCT (43.36) 34.80 {8.56)
Qthers 6.12 {1.35) - = 477
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ { Liabilities) {37.24) {1.35) 34.80 -] {3.79)
Recognized in
Asat Recognized in ather Others As al
Particulars 05-04-2021 § profitand loss | comprebensive 31-03-2022
income
¥ crore ¥ crore T eroxe T crore ¥ crore
Financial assetn at FYTOCI {8.56} - 8.56 - -
Others 4.77 {121) “ - 3156
Net Deferred Tax Assetsf ( Liobilitics) 3.79) (1.21) £.56 - 3.56
d) Trems for which.na deferred tax asset is recognised in (e balance sheet for March 31, 2022 )
Unused tx losses on which no deferred laxes is recognized in Balunce Shect
Asat Asal
Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
T crore ¥ crore
ayTax losses {long term capital Ioss o which no deferred tax assetis created)
AY 2017-18 606,24 638.61
AY 2618-19 5476 54.76
AY 201920 67.49 67.49
AY 202021 14.32 1432
Unrecognized deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tat asset is recognized in the Balance Sheet
Asaf Asat
Particulars 31-03-2022 31.03-2021 .
T erore T crore
Towards provision for diminution in value of investnents 1,240.78 1,140.20
Towards provision for Expected Credit Loss 3267 $55.25




ASTRUCTURE DEVELOPAENT PROJECTS LIMITED

ng part of the standalome Ind AS financiol stafements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

ysure pursaant to Tnd AS 1% “Employee Benelis”

¢d Contribution Plin

“orapany mokes Provident Fund and Superannuation Fand contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees, Under the

wes, the Company is required to contribute & specified p
by the Company is as per the rules of the schemes. ‘The
ious year ¥ 0.20 crore} towards Recognised Provident Fund asd Superannuation Fund contribution respectively

Refer Note 23,

oed Benefit Plans:
Plan:

ercentage of the payroll ¢ests to fund the benefits. The contibutions payabilo to the.
Company recognised ¥ 0.25 crare (Pravious year ¥ 0.26 crore) and ¥ 0.17 crore
in te Statement of Profit and

“ampany operates pratity plan through LICs Group Graguity scheme where every employes is entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen days
¢ lagt drawn for each completed year of service. The sante is payable on termination of service or refirement whichever i5 earlier. The beneft

after five years of continuous service.
anaged provident fand plan:

Company makes Provident Fand and Superannuation Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying cmployees. Under the
mes, the Company is reyuired to contribuze a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fimd the benefits. The contributions payzble to the

by the Company is as per the rules of the gchemes.
amounts recognised in Balance Shect are as follows:

Gratuity plan Trust-managed provident fund plan
. Asat Asat Asgat Asat
Partleulars 31-03-2022 31-63-2021 31-03-2022 31032021
4 crore % crare ¥ crore ¥ crove
Preseat value of defined henefil obligation
- Wholly funded 423 4.50 2664 22.13
- Wholly unfunded -
4.23 4.50 26.64 22.13
Less : Fair value of plan assets 332 2.83 28.66 24.22]
Add * Unrecognised asset
Amount to be recognised as liability or {asset} 4.91 1.67 {2.02) {2.09)
Amounts reflected in the Balance Sheet
Lighilities 0.91 1.67 2.02) (2.09)]
Assels ! - - -
{et Liability / (asset) 0.91 1.67 (2.0%) (2.09)
Jet Lizhility / {asset) - Current 091 1.67 {2.02} {2.09
Jet Liability f (asset) - Non Current . - - - -
s amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Less are 2s follows:
Gratuity plan Trust-managed provident fund plan
Particutars 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020.21
3 ctore ¥ crore T crgre ¥ crore
1 Current service cost 0.40 055 0.96) 0.94]
2 [Interest on Dafined benefit obligation 0.28 0.30 LB6 1.65
3  Expected retum oa plan assels (0.18) {0.21) {1.86) {1.65)
4 Actiarial losses/(gains) 0.09 0.27) 0.12 (0.79)
5 Pastservice cost - -] - -
6  Actuaria! pain/(loss) not recognised in books B - 0.12) 0.79
7  Benefits received E - - .
g8 Adjustment for earlier years - - - -
Total {1 to 8) 0.58 .36 (.96 .94
T Amount included in "empioyec benefit expenses” .49 Q.63 0.96 0.94
U Awmount incleded as part of "Other Comprehensive Income” (.09 {3.27) - -
Total (1+11) 0,58 0.36 0.96 0.94
Actual return on plan assels 0.18) 0.21 1.86 1.65




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone Tnd A% financial statements for the yearended March 31,2022
The amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive ncome comprises of the following:

€}

¢l

4

D)

Gratuity plan
Parficulars 2021-22 2020-21
¥ crore % crore

Components of actuarial fosses/ gains on, obligations
1 Duetochange in financial assumptions {0.09) 0.12
2 Dneto change in demographic assumptions - -
3 Dueroexperience adjustments 0.16 {0.40)
?’tcrum on plan assets excleding amounts included in.interest 0.02 (©.00)
income
Tesal . 0.03 ©.27)

‘Fhe changes in present value of defined benefit obligation représenting reconciliation of opening and closing

bakeaces thereof are as follows:

Gratuity plan Trust-managed provideat fund plan

Particalars Asat As at Asat Asat

31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2022 31-03-2021

2 crore ¥ crore X crore T crure
Opening balance of presest value of defired benefit obligation 4,50 498 2213 30.67
Add: Cutrent service cost 040 0,55 0.96 0.94
Adtd: Interest cost .28 0.39 1.86 165

Add:  Contribution by plan participants

i) Employee E - 1.82 1.7%
Add: Actuarial losses/(gains) 0.07 {0.27) - -
Add:  Benefis received - - - -
Less:  Benefits paid (1.02) (1.05) (0.72) (1.70)
Add: Liabilities assumed on ansfer of employees - - 0.59 {1.19}
Addiless) - Adjustment for earlier years - - -
Closing balance of present value of defiped beaefit obligation 4.23 454 26.64 22.13

and ¢losing balances thereof arc as follows:

The changes in the fair value of plan assets representing recoucifiation of opening

Gratuity plan Trust-managed provident fund plan
. Asat As at Asat As at
Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
T crore T crore % crore X crofe
Opening balance of fair value of plan assets 2.83 3.484 2421 2198
Add: BExpected retom on plan assets 0.18 021 186 165
| Addifless): Actuarial {losses)ygains 0.02) 0.00 ©.12) 079
Add:  Contribution by employer 1.34 019 0.95 0.93
Add:  Contribution by plan participanta - - 1.88 1.76)
Less;  Benafits paid {1.02) {1.05)] {0.72) (1.70)
 Add/less}: ‘Transfer inf{out) - - 0.59 {1.20}
Closing balance of fair value of plen assets 3.32 2.83 28.66] 2421
‘The major components of plan assels as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:
Grataity plan Trust-managed provident fund plan
Parficulars As af As at Asat As at
31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Govemment of India securities . - 17% a4ez]
State government securities n - 28% 24%
Special deposit schemes - - 3% 5%
Public sector unit bonds 5 . 163%4 725
Corporate bonds - - 31% 21%
Mutusl funds - e 9%, 3%
Others - - 1% i%
Policy of insurance 160% 1005 -] -
Total 108%) 100% 100%] 1009%
“The averape duration of the defined benefit plan obligations at the end of the reporting period is us follows
Pl Asat As at
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Gratity plan 5.96 6.56 .



ASTRUCTURE BEVELOFMENT PROIECTS LIMITED

ing part of the standalone Ind AS fipancis! statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

ipat actuaria! assumptions at the Balance Sheet date,

. As at Asal
Parficulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Discount rate:
) Grawity plan 6.90%, 6.50%
) Trust managed provident fund plan T.19% 7.19%
¢} Compensated abserices 6.70% 6.0%
Expecied refwm on plan assets: [
a) Gratuity plan 6.90% 6.50%
b) Trust managed provident find plan 7.19% 7.19%
Salary growth rate - Gratuity plan and compensated absences 6.00% 6.00%
Asat Ay at
Particulars 31032022 | 31-03:2021
Attition rate - Gratuity plan - -
25 and below 15.00% 15.00%
26ta 33 12.00% 12.00%
361045 9.00% S.00%
4610 55 6.00% 6.00%
56 and zbove 3.00%. 3.00%
Indian Assured | Indian Assured
Lives Lives
i+ Mortality rate Mortabity (2012 | Morlality (2002-
14) 14
Table Table
ity analysis of expected benefit payments
Particulars Caghllows %
¥ crore
2022 0.80 B8.90%
2023 102 16.20%
2024 0.4 3.90%
2025 037 5.90%
2026 0.26 4.20%
3237-2031 155 24.70%

juantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as st Marck 31, 2022

I A5 at 3133022 A% at 31-03-2021
Change Obligation Change Obligation
T » 10.5% win| 4% “36)
1) Discourt rote 05% 434 0.5% 4.65
) 10.5% rev] H0.5% @65)
i) Salary growih rate 0.5% @il 4% 4.36

xpested contribution towards grstuity to be made in the next financial year is Re.0.37 crore (Previous year Rs.0.45 crore)

impensated Absences
e significant assumptions considered by the independent actuary in carrying out the aciuarial valuation of long lerm compensated absences are
7en below:
Parficulars 2021-22 2028-21
Assamptions
Discount Rate 7.00% 6.70%
Falure Salary Increase 6.00% 6.00%
Aftrition Rate
Age Band
25 and below 15.00% 15.00%
P LEN 12.00% 12.00%
36ta4s 2.00% 9.00%
461053 6.00% 6.00%
56 and above 3.00% 3.00%

etention Pay

1e significant assumptions considercd by the indegendent actuaty in carrying cut the actuarial valuation of retention pay are given below:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Discoaut Rate 7.15% 7.15%
Indiae Assured | Indian Assured
Lives Lives
Mogality Rate Moriafity (2006~ | Morality (2006-
08) 08}
Takle Table




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Nates forming port of the standalene Ind AS financial statements far the year endesd March 31,2022
38 Discloswe pursuant 1o Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24 - Related Party Disclonwes
{i} List of related parties:
Promoter, Entity kaving joint control aver the Company.
Larsen & Tewbro Limited
Enuty having joint control aver the Cemipany
i CPP lnvestment Board Singaporean Holdings | Pte. Limted

Common control Entities of 1 sbove
1 CPP Singaperean Holdings e 1 Led

2 CPPBInc
Subsidiary componies
1 L&T Transportation Infrastructre Limited

2 Vadodara Bharuch Tollway Limited
3 L&T Interstate Road Comidor Limited
4 Panipat Bievated Corridor Limited
5 Abmedabad - Maliya Tothway Limited
6  L&T Halol - Shamlaji Toflway Limited - Upto 30/05/2021
7  L&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Limited
%  L&T Chemai - Tada Tollway Limited
9 L&T Samakhiali Ganchidhan Tollway Limited
10 L&T Deccan Tollways Linited
11 PNG Toflway Limited.
12 Kudgi Transmission Limited
13 L&T Sambalpur - Rourkela Tollwny Limited
14 Wask Infrastructure Private Limited { Incorporated on 18/81/2021}
Associotes
I LTIDPL INDVIT Servicss Liniited {formerly knownas L&T Western India Teflbridge Limited)
Feltow subsidiaries with whom transactions were incurred during the year
1 Lamsen & Tonbro Infotech Limiled

Subsedizsy's Assaciales
} International Seaports (Haldia} Private Eimited

Key Management Personnel
Mr. R Shanlar Raman, Chairman and Non-cxecutive director
Mr. Shailesh i Pathak, Chief Executive Officer & Whole-time Director {upto April 27, 2021}
Mz, Sudheker Reo, Indopendent Director
M. Vijzyslakshmi Rajaram Iyer, Independent Director
Mr Pushkar Vijay Kulkars, Non-cixenutive Director
Mr. DX _SenManaging Director & Chief Executive Officer (w.e f: May 5, 2021)
Dr. A Veeraraghavan, Independent Director {(w.e.f, June 05, 2021)
Post employment benefit plan
1 Larsen & Toubro Officers & Supervisory Staff Provident Fund

(i} Details of transacticns with refared paries:

DN - ST R e

2021-22 202021
Nature of transaction/ refationship/ major parties Amount A"fm"“’ for Amount Amounts for
muajor partles malor parties
¥ crome 2 crore T crorg R crare
1 Purchase of goods and services incl, taxes
Promoter, Larsen & Toubro Linited 3.50 21.65
Fellow subsidiaries 224 i54
' 614 T
2 Sale of GoodsContract reverme and Services rendared incl, taxes
Subsidiaries & follovw subsidiary, including: 35,12 31.95
vadodam Bharuch Tollway Limited 934 196
Associate, LTIDPL INDVIT Services Limited 1.30 .
37.42 31.95
3 Investment related receivables
Promater, Larsen & Toubro Limited 61,48 -
61.48
4 Purchaze of assets and intangibles under developmens
Fellow subsidiaries, Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited B 258
Subsidizries inchading:
L&T Deccan Toliways Limited - ¢.ol
- 2.58
5 Rentpaid incl toces
Promoter, Larsen & Toubro Limited 5.06 506,
5.06 5.06
&  Interest income
Subsidiaries including 5.02 21,28
Panipat Elevated Corridor Linied 11,94 1629
25,02 2128




Nature of iransaetion/ relationship/ mafor parties

2023-22

2029-21

Amount

Amuunts for
major pacties

Amount

Amounts for
majar parties

¥ eroye

R cxore

3 aore

T erore

7 Reimbutsement of expenses charged o
Subsidiaries including
L&T Frmsportation Lefrastnucture Lintited
L&T Samakhiali Gondbidhan ollway Limited
L&T Szmbalpuy - Raurkela Tollway Limited
E&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Linited
18T Halo} - Shamiaji Tollway Limitcd

8 1CD / Mezzanine Debt 7 Unsecured Loan prasted to
Subsidiaries including
Panipat Elevated Corvidor Limited
Vadodara Bharuch Toltway Limited
L&T Samnakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited
L&T Rajkot - Vadinas Tallway Limited

9 [CD/ Mexmanine Debt / Unsecured Loan realised
Promater, Larsen & Toubro Limited

Subsidiaries incloding
L&T Samokchiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited
L&T Sambalpur Raurkerla Tollway Limited
Vadodara Bharuch ToBway Limned
L&T Rajkot - Vadinar Tollway Lixiited
Panipas Blevatcd Corridor Limited
PNG Tollway Linited

19 Debeantures realised
Subsidiary
Panipat Elevated Corsidor Limited

11 Qrher advances paid
Subsidiaries including
PNG Totlway Limited
L&T Cheanai - Tada Tollway Limnted

12. Sale of equity shares in Associale
CEP INVESTMENT BOARD PRIVATE HOLDINGS {4) INC.

454,90

464.90

28250

292 50

25.00

0.i5

0.15

554.00

564.00

23,50
288.00
36.00
11740

283.00

9.50

0.02
0.13

564,00

380

396

7.66

7.66

2500

a3z

164
182

037
0.07

2500

0402
031

13 Teamsaction with spproved provideat fumd trust
Towards employer contribution
Larten & Tovbro Officers and Supervisory Staff Providest Fund

14  Considerstion recetved for sale of windmill
Fellow subsidiacy, 1&T Geostructure Private Limited

15 Return of advance reesived for sale of windmilt
‘Promater, Larsen & Toubro Limited

16 Key Managenen Persommel
Executive Director
Mt. T.5. Venkatetan (Whole-time Director)

Independent / Nan-executive Directors

095

0.95

&2l

0.21

.95

083

.93

6,38

2500

0.02
0.i4

a.16

0.93




“Majot parties” denote entitics who aceount for 10% or tnore of the aggregate for that category of transaction during respective year,

(ii1) Amount (due 10) and due from related parties (Net) .

Due to)/ Due from
Asat As at
Fartieulars 3032022 | 31432021
¥ oo X crare
i. Promoter )
Larsen & Toubro Limitad 6073 185.61
ii. Subsidiaries
L&T Transporiation Infrastrugture Limited 0.12 1A%}
Panipat Elevated Corridor Limited 134,10 205:37 |
Vadodara Bhanuch Tollway Limited 1274 0.80
Abmedabad - Makiya Tollway Limited 0.54 0.53
L&T Halol - Shamlaji Tollway Limited - 011
L&T Interstate Road Cestidor Limited 0.7 0.17
E& T Samskhiali Gandhidham Tollway Lizited 5337 16.66
PNG Tollway Liniited - 12257
L&T Rajkat - Vadinar Toltway Lumited 189.02 68.67
L&T Deceen Tollweys Eimited 042 035
Kudgi Transmission Limited 043 0.43
LET Sarnbalpur - Roudelz Tollway Limited 037 1.6l
L&T Chennai - Tada Tollway Limited 1741 17.28
fit. Fellow subsidiaries
Larsen &Toubro Infotech Limited (0.33) (1L.68)
L&T Infrastructure Enginecsing Lintited - -
iv. Poxt employment benelit plan
Lasen & Toubro Officers & Supervisory Staff Pravident Fund 0.23) (0.22))

{iv) Amount ta the extent of ¥122.57 receivable from PNG Tollway Limited crores was written off during the curremt year, Also refer note in respect of
provisions created for investments / loans and advances given to certain subsidiaries.

{¥} Asper the mrangement that the Company has with its Promoter/ Subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group Company'), the commen cast
incurred by the Company/ Group Companies mre accounted for in the Financk
raised on the Compary 3/ by the Group Companics,

fvi) Al the related parly contracts !/ amanpgements have been entered on arm’s length hasis,

{vii} Refer Note 42 for detsils of Commitments provided to related parties.

ts of the C

y to the extent, of actuzl debit, mised by/




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Motes farming part of the sfandaloae Ind AS fi ial st

Iwestment n the foliowing subsidiary companiss and associales is sccounted 3t cost

ts for [he vear ended March 31, 2022
3% Disciosure pursuant to Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements"

As al 31-03-2022 As at 31-03.2021
i Effective Effective Effective Effective
SNeo Name of the subsidiary Pzt;zﬁ::np:;ce proportion of | propertion of | proportion of proportion of
awnership voting power ewnership voling power
nterest (%) held (%) intereat (%63} held {24)

{0 Subsidiaries

1 |L&T Transportation Infrastructure Limited indiz 13.76 7376 73.76 .75
1 |Vadodar Bharach Tethway Limited Tndiz 8599 5999 99.9% 98.9%
3 |L&T Intérstate Road Comvider Limited India 90.5% 9959 9599 a9 09

4  |Panipat Elevated Comidor Limited India 5,95 9989 99,99 99.99

5 [Ahmedabed - Maliya Taliway Limited India §9.99 99.5% 9.9 69.99
6  |L&T Halol - Shamiaji Tellway Limited - Upso 30/09/2021 India - - 4897 4897

7 |L&T Rajknt - Vadinar Toliway Limited India Gt ol 9%9.99 9599 99,99

2 |L&T Chennai - Teda Tollway Limited India 59.99 9999 9253 $9.99

9 iL&T Samakhiali Gandhidham Tollway Limited India 99.9% 99,98 99,08 9908
18 |L&T Decean Tollways Limited India 4528 8528 B523 85.28
il }PNG Tollway Limited Tndia 7400 74.00 7400 T4.00
12 |Kudgi Transmission Limited Endia 99,99 99.99 99.99. 99.99
13 |L&T Sambalptz - Rourkeln Tollway Lirited India 99.99 9999 99,99 99.99
14 [Watrsk Infrastucture Private Limited { Incorporated on 1871 12021) India #9.99 $9.99 - -
{ii} [Associate

1 |LTIDPL INDVIT Sesvices Limited* fadia 100,00 100.00 100.00 100.00

* Post becoming Investmen Manager.of the Indinfravit Trust has been treated as an Associate of the Company




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes fornting part of the standalone Ind AS financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2022

48 Basic and Biluted Earnings Per Share in accordance with Tud AS 33 "Earnings per Share"
A, Equity Shares

Particalars 262122 2020-21

Basit earnings per share

Profil/ (loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit or Loss A (43.02) (53.10)

Weiglited average number of equity shares ouistanding B 629,511,664 629,511,664
Basic EPS (%) A/B {0.58) {0.84)
Difuted earnings per share

Profit/ (foss) afier tax as per Statemant of Profit or Loss A (43.02) (53.10)

Weighted average number of shares B 629,511,664 639,511,664

Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares gn account of conversion of c - .

compulserily convertible preference shares

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for diluted EPS P=B+C 629,511,664 629,511,664
Diluted EPS (F) AD (0.68) {0.84)

( The Company has 10,000 Special Equity Sharés of ¥ 10 each outstanding which da not have any right to receive dividead or other distributions

of the Company or otherwise cary any economic rights.

{if) Basic and diluted EPS for the Special Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each does not arise as the shares do not have any right to receive dividend or other
distributions of the Compemy or otherwise carry any econemic rights, except to the extent of ¥ 10 per share in the svent of liguidation or

dissolution of the Company.

<< < This space is imentionally left blank >>>>>>>




T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
ites forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022

4 Confingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

(@) Income tax liability (ncluding penally) that may arise in respeet of which Company is in appeaf X 6.46 crore (3 1522 crore as
at March 31, 2021)

{if) Service tax lability (inciuding penalty) that may arise in respect of which Company is in appeal ¥ 133 crore (¥ 1.33 cote as at
March 31, 2021)

(ifi) Maharashtrs Value Added Tax liskility that may arise in respect of which Company is in appeal T 0.42 crore ( ¥ 0.42 crore as at
March 31, 2021)

(iv) Contingent liability in respect of acceptances and guarantees isswed on behalf of subsidiaries/ assaciate and the Company
¥ 404.34 crore (T 404.42 crore as at March 31, 2021)

(v) The Company is contingeatly liable to the extent of its investments pledged [refer Note 6 B] for loans taken by:

. As at 31-03-2022 As a1 31.83-2021
Par{iculars
T ¢rore % crote
Subsidiary companies : 561.08 561.09
Otfier company [curent year T10,000/- and previous year £10,000/-]
Total ' 561.09 561.69

42 Commitments:
{a) Commitments quantifiable

¢y Estimated smount of committed funding by way of equity/ loans to subsidiary companies ¥ 11.87 crore (previous year % 23.50 crore as ot
March 31, 2021)

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital aceount T 0.34 crores (previous year T 1.86 crores)

(b} Commiitments not guantifizble

(i)  The Company has given, inter alia, the following commitments in respect of its investments:

{#) The Company has given an undertaking to the debenture trustee of L&T Interstate Road Corridor Limited (LTIRCL) to make payment of
the Tenmination Shortfall amount due to Concessionaire event of default in the event that LTIRCY fails to make payment of the same
within 5 business days from the due date of deposit of the Termination Payments by NHAI into the Escrow Account and also to make
payment of the Operation & Maintenance(O&M) expenses shortfalt amounts eaused due to increase in O&M Expenses beyond the limits
set out in Base Case D&M Expenses Schedule and resulting in shortfall in amounts available for debt servicing andfor DSR Amount
snd/or the Major Maintenance Reserve, without utilising the sarplus amounts within a period of 30 (thirty) Business days from the date
of demand therefore issued by the Debenture Trustee.

{t) To the term lenders of L&T Deccan Toliways Limited {LTDTL) to meet shortfall in major maintenance and. Debt Service Reserve (DSR)
Account and to maintain minimum year to year Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.2 times ina manner satisfactory to Senior Debt Tranche
A Lenders (Facility amounting to Rs. 1,080.92 crore) in line with base case revenue projections. The Company. has nlso given an
pndertaking to Senjor Debt Tranche B Lenders {Facility amounting to Rs, 154.42 crore) for servicimg the obligation in the event of failure
of repayment by LTDTL.

(e) The Compasty has given 2 commitment to the debenture {rustees o Ahmedabad Maliya Toliway Limited {AMTEL) vide a Sponsor Suppart
Apreement daied Avgust 28, 2017 wherein the Company has undertaken that in the event of shortage of funds for coupon payment and
repayment of the debentures to the Achenture trustees, the Company shall fund such shortfall. Also the Company has undertaken to fund
the vail over hridge expenses of AMTL.

(iiy The Company, on sele of lhe subsidiaries 10 the fndinfravit Trust have in the purchase agreements listed certain claim which are raised against
the company and certain claims which are raised by the Compeny against the respective suthorities. The amount of elaim has not been
disclosed since they are not determinable as.at March 3 1,2022.

(i) The Company has given nott divesiment commitrments as mentioned in Note 6 C.




{t) Managemeni's Assessment

The amounts shown under contingent Habilitics and commitments represent the best possible estimate arrived at on the basis of the available
information. Further, various govemment auwthorities/other stakeholders raise issues/Clarifications in the normal course of business and the
Management has provided its responses in respect of the same and no formal demands/claims have been raised in respect of the same other than
those disclosed above. The obligations and possible reimbursements in respect of the above are dependent on the outcome of the various

discussions/proceedings that are ongoing and, therefore, cannot be predicted aceurately, The Compeny does not expect any financial exposure in
respectof these as at March 31, 2022,

43 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 40 "Investment Property*’

SNo Particalars 2021-22 2020-21
) Fcrore ¥ crore
1 [Rental income derived from investment property 0.05 0.08
2 |Direct operating expenses atising frém investrent property that generated rental income - ¢.01

Fair values of investment property: ¥ 527 crore as at March 31, 2022 (¥ 4.46 crore as at March 31, 2021). The fair values of all the investment
properties have been determinedt with the help of independent valuers. Valuation is based on govermment rates, market research and market trends,
pesiod and type of construction as considered appropriate.

<<<<<<< This space is imtentionatly left blank >>>>5%>




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forining part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

44 Disclosures nnder the Reserve Bank of India {Core Envestment Compaxey) Regulations

Disclosures as required by paragraph 21 (Annex, IE} of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 - Master
Direction DoR(NBFC). PD.UT3/03.10.119/2016-17

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking Core Investinent Company.

Linlilities side -
1)  Loans and advaoces availed by the uon-banking Onancial company inclusive of interest xccrued thereon but nat paid:

As at 31-03.2022 As at 31-03-2021
Particulars Of!;?:::itng Ampunt Overdue Oxfl::::;itng Amount Overdue
T crore T erore % crore ¥ crom
{a) Debentures
Secured - - 60.14 -
Unsecured - - 254.90 -
{ather than falling within the meaning of public déposits) - -
(b} Deferred Credits - = - -
(c) Term Loans - - - B
(d) Inter-corporate loans and barrowing - - - -
| {e} Commereia! Paper - - - -
{f} Other Loans - - - -
Assets side ;
1) Break-up of Loans and Advances inclading bills receivables {Net of provision) [other than those included in {d) below]:
As af 31-03-2022 Ag at 31-03-2021
" Amount Amoant
Particulars Qutstanding Dutstanding
X crore 3 crore
a} Unsecured 323.06 13714

3} Breakup of Leased Asscts and stock on hire and other assets counting towards Asset Finance Company [AFC) activities:
As at 31-03-2022 As af 31-03-2021

. Amaunt Amount
Particudars ]

Articutar Quitstanding Outstanding
L erore % crore

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
(8} Financial Jease _

(b) Operating lease - -
(i}} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors;

{a) Assets on hire LI -

{b) Repossessed Assets - -

(ifi} Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(2) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
{1 Loans other than (a) shove - -

4) Brealeup of Investments; (Amount uet of provision)

Ay at 31-03-2022 | As at 31-03-202(

Amount Amount
Particalars Outsianding Cutstanding
(Net of diminution} | (Net of diminution)
% crore % crore
Current [nvestinents: (Net of provision)
I Quoted:
(i) Shares: {a} Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and Bonds . .
tifi) Units af mutval funds 177.47 26.41
{iv) Govertiment Securities - -
{v) Qthers - -
2 Unquoeted:
{i} Shares: {z) Equity - -
{b) Preference - -
(ii} Debentures and Ronds 3000 25.00
(iii} Units of maual funds N u
(iv) Governnent Securities - -
(v) Others . - -
Long, Term Iuvestments: (Net of provision)
P Quated:
() Shares: (a) Equity - .

(b} Preference R .




(i) Debentures and Bonds - .
(iif} Linits of mutual fimds - -
(iv) Government Securites - -
(v) Others - .
2 Unquoted:
€} Sheres: (a) Equily 1,649.74 1,619.33
(b) Preference - 130.50
{ti} Debentures and Bonds 59235 92.06
{iif) Undts of mutual funds - -
tiv} Government Securities " -
(v} Others 468.21 940,03
3} Borrower group-wise classification of nssets finaniced as in (2) and {3) above : (Amount net of provision)}
As at 31-83-2022
Particulars Secured Unsecuresd Total
X crore T crme T coore
1 Related Parties
(2) Subsidiaties . 323.06 323,06
{b) Companies in the same group - - -
(c) Other refated parties - - -
2 _Other thao related parties - - -
Tatal - 323.06 323.06
As at 3103-2021
Particolars Secured Unsecured Tatal
% crore 3 crore £ crore
1 Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - 137.14 137,14
(b) Companies in the same Broup - - -
(€) Othier refated parties B - -
‘2 Oher than related parties - - -
Total - 137.14 137.14
6} Investor group-wise classification of all fnvesiments {current and fong term) in shares sad securities (botk quoted and unquoted):
As at 31-03.2022 As at 31-03-2021
Market Value / Barket Value/
Particulars Breakup or Fair Baok Va!.“ N {Net of Breal: up or Fair Baok Va[mf (Net of
value or NAY Provision) value or NAV Provision}
T crore ¥ crore T crore T crore
I Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries 1,724.69 1,724,698 1,852.03 1,852.03
{b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related panies - - - -

2 _OQther than related parties 48251 43151 35439 954.89
Total 2,207.20 2,207.20 2,806.92 280692
Market Vatue / Break up or Fair value or MAV is tokent as same as-book value in case of unqueted shares in absence of Market value / Break ugt value or Fair
value or NAV,

7} Other inforemation
Pa mwlm Asat 31032022 [ As at 31032031
% crore 2 crore
() Gross Non-Performing Asseis
{a) Related parties - -
(b} Other than related parties - -
(i} Net Non-Performing Assels
(a) Related parties - P
{b) Oher than retated pasties - -
{Hi} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

Disclosures as required by paragraph 30 {(Annex V) of the Master Direction - Core Inves

Direction DoR(NBFC).PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17

tment Compranies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 - Master



Adjusted Netwerth and Related Information

Parficulars

Asat 31-03-2022 | Asa131-03-2021

(3 Capital Ratin (%} [Adjusted Net Worth/Risk Weighted Assets]

86% 1%
(i) Unrealized appreciation i the book value of quoted investments - -
{iii} Diminution in the agpregate book value of quoted invesiments - -
(iv) Leverage Ratio (Times) fOutside Liabilities/Adjusted Net Warthi] 031 0.50

ltvestment in Qther CIC's
I

Particulars

Asat31-03-2022 1 As at31-03-2021

(i} Towal amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution-made by one CIC in another CIC
{ircluding name of CICs)

{it) Number of CiCs with their nomes wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution exceeds 10% of Owned
Funds

(i) Nuenber of CICs with their names wherein the direct o indirect capital contribution is less than 10% of
Owned Funds

OIF Balance Sheet Exposure

Particulars

Asat 31-03-2022 | As at 31-03-2021

(1) Off balunce sheet exposure

(ii} Financial Guarantee ps 2 % of total off> balance sheet exposure

(iif) Non-Financial Guarantee as 8% of rotal off- balance sheet expostre.
(iv} OF balance sheef exposure 10 overseas subsidiarjes

(¥} Letter of Comfort issued to sny subsidiary

[avestmenis
Particulars As at 31.03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
Value of Investments
(i} Gross Value of Investments
{3) In Indiz 3,625.46 397373
{b) Cutside India, . -
(ii) Provisions for Depreciaiion
(8) In India. 1,240.78 1,140.20
{b) Qutside ndia, - -
{iii} Net Velue of Investments
{a} In India 2,384.68 2,833.53
{b) Outside India, - .
vovement of provisions held ownrds depreciation on investoienss.
1) Opening balance 1,140.20 1,082.11
ii) Add : Provisions made during the year 100,58 '58.09
i) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year -
iv} Closing balance 1,240.78 1,140.29
Adaturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
issets and liabilities as 2t 31,03.2022
LiabHides Assets
" Borrowings . Loans & Advanges Investments
Particulars __from banks Market Borrowings {Net of provisisn) | (Net of provision}
T crore £ crore T crore T erore
1 day 10 30/31 days {one moath} - - - 40.00
QOver one mentit to 2 months - - - -
Over 2 months upio 3 months - - " -
Over 3 months to 6 months " - - -
Over 6 months to 1 year - - 323.06 64568
Over | year 1o 3 years B - - -
Over 3 years 1o 3 years - - B -
Over 5 years - - - 1,699.00
Total - = 323.06 21,384.68




Assets and iabBities as af 35.03.2021

Liabilities Assels
o Investments
Partieulars Borvowings Market Borvowings Admn“.s. (Netof
from bauls (Net of grovision) e
provisimm}
T crore T crom T crore 2 crore
1.day to 30/31 days (oue month) - 25.00 - 37.78
Over cne month to 2 months - - - -
Over 7 months vpio 3 months - - - -
Over 3 months to 6 months - - . -
Over 6 months to | year - - 137.14 -
Over 1 year fo 3 years - 38.00 - 70.00
Over 3 years fo 5 years - - - 0.00
Over 5 years - 250.0¢ - 2,669.13
[ Toutal - 305,00 137.14 2,806.91
Basiness Ratios
Particolars As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03.2021
Returmn on Equity - -
Returm on Assets - -
Net Profit Per Emplovee - -
Provisions and Confingencies
Particolars As at 31-03.2022 As 8t 31-03-2021
Provisions for depreciation on Investment 1,240.78 1.140.30
Provision towards NPA - -
Provision taade towards Income fax (Represents Current Tax) - 274
Other Provision and Contingencies - -
Provision for Standard Assets 1.95 1.95
Concentration of NPAs
Tarticulars As a1 31.03-2022 As at 31-03-202]
Total Expasure o top five NPA accounts - B
Expostire as a % of total asgets . - -
Oversens Assets
Parficulars Asat 31.01.2021 As at 31-03-2021
Overseas Assets {for thoss with Jaint Venmres ang Subsidiaries abroad) - -
Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category 2021.22 2020-21
2}  Direct Exposure '
(i} Residential Mortzages
Lending secured by mortgages on residential properly that is or will be ocoupied by the borrower or the Nil Nil
property Is rented; (Individual housing loans upto * 15 lakh may be shown separately)
(i) Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buitdings, multi-tenaivted commercial prenises, . .
industrial or warchouss space, hatels, land acquisition, Jevelopment and consttuction, efc.). Exposire NiI Nl
would also include non-find based (NFB) limits;
(i) Investments in Mortgage Backed Scearifias (MBES) and other securitised exposures
it) Residentiat il il
b} Corasmircial Real Estate Nil Nil
b) Indirect Expusure
Fund based and non-fiund based exposures on Mational Housing Bank (NHB) and Honsing Finanies Nit NIt
Companies (HECs).

Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio:

As per RBI Master Circular RBI2015-16/153 DNBR (PI3) €2C. No.043 7/ 03.10.119/ 2015-16 maintenanee of Capital Adequacy Ratio is not applicable.

Nate;

(i} 'The Company has applied for Deregistration as Care Invesiment
The same is under review with RE],

i< This space iy intentionally lefi bank 5o o v

Company with Reserve Bank of India vide their application dated February 04, 2623




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS finszcial statements for the year cuded Murch 31, 2022

44 Discloseres under the Reserve Bank of India {Core lovestment Com pany) Regulations - Liquidity Risk

2} Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

Particulars

As at 31-03-2022

Asat 31-03-2021

(i) No of Significsnt Counterpartics
(i1) Amount in {Rs.in Lakhs}

(iil} % of Total Deposits

{iv) % of Total Linbikitics

b} Top 20 largz deposits (amount in fts. Lakhs and % oftata deposils) ~ Not Applicable
€} Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. Lakhs and % of totad deposiis) - Not Applicable
d} Funding Concentration based on Significant Instrument/Product - Not Applicable

e) Stack Ratios

Particulars

As at 31-03-2022

As at 31032021

(1) Commercial Paper as a % of Total Publie Funds

(ii) Commercial Paper as 2 % of Total Liabilitics

(it} Commercial Paper asa % of Total Asscts

(v} Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of Total Public Funds
(¥) Non-Canvertible Debentures (original-maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities

{vi} Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) 25 2 % of Total Assets

(vif) Other Short-Term Liabilities as a % of Total Pabfic Funds

(viii} Other Short-Term Liabilities as 2 % of Total Liabilities

(ix) Other Short-Tenm Liabilities as-a % of ‘Fotal Assels

0%
2.38%

100%
1£.83%

Impairment Reserve

As per the RBI ciroular RBI2019-20/176 dated 131k Mareh, 2026, where inpairment atlowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required
under RACP (including standard nsset provisioning), NBFCS/ARCs shal] approgriaie the difference from their net profitor loss after tax fo a separate
‘Impairment Reserve’, The balance fn: the ‘Impainnent Reserve shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital. Furthier, no withdrawals shall

be permitted from 1his reserve without prior penmission from the Department of Supervision, REY.

Impairment Reserve FY 2122

Asset Assct
Classific Classifi Gross Difference Between
ation as [C2HON Canying|Lass Allowznce Net Camrying Provigions requitedas  |IND .A.S 10%
RBT [0S PeT Amount Amount per IRACP Nomms Provisions and
pe IND AS IRACP norms
Norms 109
Standard |Stage 1| 430.27 39.92 390.35 1.95 37.97
impairment Reserve FY 20-21
Asset
Asset  Jorossiti Difforence Between
Classific atian Gross MNet Carryin: Provisiol redas [IND AS 109
ationas |0 Camrying|Loss Aflowanee ying VESIONS Tequire L
rBr |5 FEF Amount Amount per IRACP Nosms Provisions and
per = D asfA™ IRACP norms
Nerms
109
Standard |Stage | | 525.01 162.49 362.52 1.95 160.54




L&T INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS LIMITED-

Notes forming past of the standalone Tnd AS financial statements for the

45-As al March 31, 2022, amounts sggregating Rs. 53.91 orores {Rs_ §
5.50 crorey a5 at Marck 31, 2022 (s, 5.50 croves as @ March 31, 202

Daring the year 2019-20, one of the terminated subsidiary, PNG Tollway Limited, has cntered jnto
lenders for receipt of the termination payment, In respect of this, the Company received the amount
the company is carrying an amouat of # Nil crom vet of estimated provisions of T338.82 crore as

year exded March 31, 2022

3.78 crores as at Mareh 31,2021,
1), 15 r2fiected as net camying value
subsidiary of the Company, engaged in an infrastructure project, which has terminated the concession
Autharity of Tndia (NHAI). The nature of default and the termination amount claimed under the concessian

gbove subsidiary based on the estimated recoverability as per the said settlement agresment.

46 Trade Receivables Ageing

net of estimated provision for dimination of Rs.
of investmentsToans and ndvances relating to.one
agreement cotered into with National Highways
ageement has riot been accepted by the NHAT and

contractuz! stipulation /

is to lenders, legal advice,
recovery and no addiional provision/adjustment to the

a settlement agreement, with the NHAI and the respective
of settlement duriag the finanical
at Marck: 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021)

year 2020-21. As g resuly,
receivable from the

Ageing as at March 31,2022 Rs. Crx
. Qutstanding for following days from the due date of- paymant .
Fasticulars <m Grdyr 12¥s | 33ys | s3vm ] Todl
Unsdisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Gaod 6.81 039 - - - 7.20
Apeiog ax at March 31,2021
f . OQuistanding for following days from tie due date of payment.
Particulars <6m 6m-Tyr 12 Yis 33 yis >3 Yra Total
Unsdisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 1,92 - - - - 1.92
47 Trade payables Ageing:
As at March 31, 2022 Bs, Crs
Thoees Quistanding for following periods from due dzte of payment
S.No Particulars Mot Due <1 ¥r L2¥s | 23V | >3yrs | TOUl
1 MEME - 0.02 - - - 0.02
2 Others 14.04 439 0.09 0.00 0.61 12.03
3 Related Parties - I 1,08 148
Total 14.04 5.39 t4s 0.00 0,61 20.13
* There are no disputed dues wih regard 1o above disclosnre
As at March 31, 2021 Rs. Cry
s Outstanding for following pariods from due date of payment
SNe Particulars Not Due vy 12 Yrs 23 Yo >3 Yrs Total
1 MSME - 253 - - - 25
2 Others 17.70 4.56 0.90 4,760 27.86
3 Reloted Parties - 168 - - 1.68.
Total 17.70 8.77 3.9¢ 1,70 - 32,097

* There are 0 disputed dues with regard o abave disclosure




18 Tntangible Assets Under Development

Axat March 34,2022 ], Crs
eyl Amount in CWIP for a peried ol
7 !
Tatangible Assets Under Development Py 15 Vs 33V ,_-———‘—————‘q_?ayrs Total
Specialised softwars under Development 092 0.83 - - b 175 §
As at March 31, 2021 Rs. Crs
. . ‘ Apguut in CWIP for a period of
Intangihle Assets Under Developuent i 13 Vis 53ve | i ] Total
Specialised software ander Developrent T o8 - P -1 013

49 RBI has permitted NBFC-CICs 10 subscribe 1o infrastructire investment trust units (InvIT) as a Sponsor aad has capped the holding period us prescribed by SEBlie.
three years from the listing date. The mandatory three year period of the holding of the initial investment of 5,55 crore units of Indinfravit Trust ended on May 92021,
During the year, the sompany has sold the 5.55 crore units of Indinfravit Trust to CBP Invesiment Board Private Holdings Inc. for an aggregate amount of Re,563 58

crores. Balance 3,75,51,677 units (fais vatue of Rs. 468,21 croresy will be disposed off in FY 2022-23.

Rs. Crs

Particulars 202122
Nmber of snits sold during the year 5.55
Fair Vaine of (e units sold as on Mar 35,2021 560.61
Fair Value of the units sold a the date of derecopmition 563.58
Fair Value gain recogaizad in other comprehensive income during 596
the year ’
Cumalative gain or loss on disposal 8.58

%0 The Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed the realizable vahie-of ali the financial assets-and hes confitmed that the value of such assets in the

ordinary course of business will not be fess thatt {he value at which these are recognized in the standatone Ind AS financial statements. i addition, the Board

has alsa confirmed fhe carrving value of the non financial assets in the stendatone Ind AS financial statements. The Board, duly taking into actount alf the
relevant disclosures made, has, approved these standazione Ind AS financial statemernts i its meeting held on May 03, 2022,

51 Previous year's fipures have been regroupedirectassified; wherever necessary, to confimn with the eurrent yeur's classification.
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